Attachment 12

## UNITED STATES OF AMERICA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION RESEARCH AND SPECIAL PROGRAMS ADMINISTRATION



## HAZARDOUS MATERIALS CERTIFICATE OF REGISTRATION FOR REGISTRATION YEAR(S) 2002-2003

## Registrant: ROCHESTER GAS AND ELECTRIC CORPORATION ATTN: KAREN SAHLER 89 EAST AVENUE ROCHESTER, NY 14649-0000

This certifies that the registrant is registered with the U.S. Department of Transportation as required by 49 CFR Part 107, Subpart G.

This certificate is issued under the authority of 49 U.S.C. 5108. It is unlawful to alter or falsify this document.

Reg. No: 062002550003K Issued: 06/20/02 Expires: 06/30/03

Record Keeping Requirements for the Registration Program

The following must be maintained at the principal place of business for a period three years from the date of issuance of this Certificate of Registration:

- (1) A copy of the registration statement filed with RSPA; and
- (2) This Certificate of Registration

Each person subject to the registration requirement must furnish that person's Certificate of Registration (or a copy) and all other records and information pertaining to the information contained in the registration statement to an authorized representative or special agent of the U.S. Department of Transportation upon request.

Each motor carrier (private or for-hire) and each vessel operator subject to the registration requirement must keep a copy of the current Certificate of Registration or another document bearing the registration number identified as the "U.S. DOT Hazmat Reg. No." in each truck and truck tractor or vessel (trailers and semi-trailers not included) used to transport hazardous materials subject to the registration requirement. The Certificate of Registration or document bearing the registration number must be made available, upon request, to enforcement personnel.

For information, contact the Hazardous Materials Registration Manager, DHM-60 Research and Special Programs Administration, U.S. Department of Transportation, 400 Seventh

Street, SW, Washington, DC 20590, telephone (202) 366-4109.



~

• ~





ROCHESTER GAS AND ELECTRIC CORPORATION + 89 EAST AVENUE, ROCHESTER, N.Y. 14649

•,

TELEPHONE REA CODE 716 546-2700

CONTROLLED

DOGUMEN

ASSIGNEE

NUMBER

April 1, 1977

Dr. Richard A. Baker, Chief Status of Compliance Branch U. S. Environmental Protection Agency Region II - Room 908 26 Federal Plaza New York, New York 10077

> Subject: Ginna Nuclear Power Plant 316(a) Demonstration Supplement NPDES Permit No. NY 0000493 Federal Docket No. II-WP-75-58 File: 0278

Dear Dr. Baker:

.

Please find enclosed herewith the Rochester Gas and Electric Corporation supplement to the data and information submitted to your office on July 30, 1974 (as further supplemented on August 23, 1974) in support of a Section 316(a) application for the Ginna Nuclear Power Plant.

This document has been prepared to resolve certain thermal contentions raised in our adjudicatory hearing requests for the above-referenced facility, subject to the reservation of RG&E's rights in connection with such contentions pending the outcome of your agency's review of this document and determinations related thereto. This supplement was prepared in accordance with guidelines provided by staff members of your agency.

As pointed out in the introductory material, we are expecting a "no action" letter relative to the above-referenced facility containing an agreement on the part of Region II to exercise its prosecutorial discretion to refrain from enforcement of any thermal limitations pending completion of the decisionmaking related to the enclosed document.

The cooperation of your agency with regard to the preparation and submission of this supplement has been appreciated. If you have any questions on this submission, please contact me or, in my absence, Wendel L. Knoll at 716-546-2700, extension 2561.

Very truly yours, ser W.

Roger W. Kober Manager, Environmental Engineering

xc: (see page 2)

ROCHESTER GAS AND ELECTRIC CORP. DATE April 1, 1977 TO Dr. Richard A. Baker, Chief

ī

xc: Mr. Joel Golumbek - EPA Region II Mr. Thomas E. Quinn - DEC Albany Mr. Dennis J. Sugumele - DEC Avon Region 8

# GINNA NUCLEAR POWER PLANT ROCHESTER GAS AND ELECTRIC CORPORATION

## **316(a) DEMONSTRATION SUPPLEMENT**

NPDES PERMIT NO.070 0×2 2 000079 (NY 0000493)

**MARCH 1977** 

### TABLE OF CONTENTS

#### GINNA 316(a) DEMONSTRATION SUPPLEMENT

#### INTRODUCTION

#### SUMMARY AND CONCLUSIONS

#### 1. THERMAL PLUME CHARACTERISTICS

- 1.1 Plant Description
- 1.2 Heat Dissipation System Description
- 1.3 System Operation
  1.4 Thermal Plume Model and Characteristics
- 1.5 Definition of Discharge Zone and Mixing Zone

#### 2. REPRESENTATIVE IMPORTANT SPECIES DETERMINATIONS

- 3. DISTRIBUTION, ABUNDANCES, AND YEARLY FLUCTUATIONS OF RIS
  - 3.1 Macroflora: Cladophora
  - 3.2 Macroinvertebrates: Gammarus
  - 3.3 Fish
- 4. TEMPERATURE TOLERANCE INFORMATION AND AREAS OF EXCLUSION
  - 4.1 Discharge Considerations
  - 4.2 Thermals Effects Upon RIS
- 5. ASSESSMENT OF ADDITIONAL PLUME EFFECTS
  - 5.1 Plume Entrainment
  - 5.2 Effects on Migration of Fish
  - 5.3 Potential for Gas Bubble Disease

APPENDICES 2A

#### INTRODUCTION

This document (Supplement) supplements the data and information submitted to the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (EPA), Region II, on July 30, 1974, in support of a Section 316(a) application for the Ginna Nuclear Power Plant (Application No. 070 0X2 2 000079; NY 0000493) for alternate effluent limitations pursuant to Section 316(a) of the Federal Water Pollution Control Act Amendments of 1972 (FWPCA).

The July 30, 1974 Ginna 316(a) application containing a Demonstration Type I (absence of prior harm) was prepared and submitted to EPA, Region II in a 30-day period required by the draft Section 402 permit dated May 22, 1974 for the Ginna Nuclear Power Plant issued by EPA in accordance with proposed effluent limitations and standards of performance for steam electric generating facilities (Proposed 40 CFR Part 423, 39 Fed. Reg. 8293, March 4, 1974). This submission was further supplemented on August 23, 1974 by a Demonstration Type II (protection of representative important species). Those proposed regulations required closed cycle cooling for existing power plants of the Ginna Power Plant size category or, alternatively, an exemption authorizing once-through cooling system related discharge limitations under criteria established under Section 316(a) of the FWPCA. That Ginna 316(a)

ii

application was filed but not formally processed by EPA since in November of 1974 final regulations for the steam electric generating plant source category eliminated the requirement for closed cycle cooling for existing facilities below 500 MW, which excluded the Ginna Plant.

A final permit was issued by EPA for the Ginna Nuclear Power Plant on February 24, 1975, and portions of this permit were contested in an adjudicatory hearing request submitted pursuant to the requirements of 40 CFR Part 125. The issues subject to adjudicatory hearing proceedings, including numerous thermal issues, are specified in a letter from Meyer Scolnick of EPA dated May 15, 1975, to Robert R. Koprowski of RG&E. With regard to the thermal issues, the final permit required closed cycle cooling in the absence of a demonstration that the facility was not required to meet the 3°F discharge limitation on discharges to lakes contained in New York State thermal water quality standards and criteria. (6 NYCRR Part 704.) The contention related to the thermal provisions involved, first, the authority of EPA to disapprove (or "exempt from consideration") certain portions of 6 NYCRR Part 704 which would have clearly exempted the Ginna Plant from the 3°F limitation and, second, the authority of EPA, Region II (as opposed to the State of New York) to establish a mixing zone for the 3°F isotherm.

iii

EPA, RG&E and the New York State Department of Environmental Conservation (DEC) have participated in - efforts to reach a resolution of the thermal and other permit issues prior to the opening of adjudicatory hearings. Several conferences have taken place among EPA, RG&E and DEC representatives and numerous telephone conferences and correspondence have been exchanged between the parties.

An agreement in principle has been reached with EPA with regard to the settlement of issues raised in the adjudicatory hearing request, although the settlement has not been finalized in formal stipulation documents. The settlement agreement includes resolution of the thermal issues described above. Without conceding the validity of their respective legal positions, RG&E, EPA, Region II and the DEC determined that adjudication of legal questions on the State's thermal standard and criteria and the role of EPA in the implementation of them would not be necessary if it could be shown with reasonably available information that the Ginna Plant is entitled to operate with the once-through cooling system now utilized at that facility. Assuming EPA and DEC agreement on the feasibility of the existing system, the avoidance of potentially lengthy adjudication and the expectation of a State desire to review reasonably available information on the effect of the Ginna Plant in any event, a settlement seemed particularly appropriate.

iv

1

Among the provisions of the settlement reached on the thermal contentions described above was an agreement by . EPA to issue a "no-action"letter, that is a letter by which EPA agrees to exercise its prosecutorial discretion to refrain from enforcement action against RG&E for failure to achieve any of the thermal limitations in the Section 402 permit while further resolution of the thermal issues is pending before the agency. As a condition of EPA's agreement not to initiate enforcement action in this regard, RG&E agreed to submit this Supplement on or before March 31. 1977. RG&E has chosen not to withhold submission of this Supplement even though the promised "no-action" letter is not in hand. However, this Supplement is submitted contingent on receipt by RG&E of the above mentioned "noaction" letter containing provisions which do not differ significantly from those discussed orally between the parties during settlement conferences. In the event either that the "no-action" letter is not issued or that, when issued, its contents do not comport with prior understandings, this Supplement is subject to withdrawal by RG&E. Further, RG&E reserves the right to contest by 40 CFR Part 125 procedures the Section 316(a) determinations ultimately rendered on the Applicant's Section 316(a) submittals, including the right to raise any of the thermal contentions

V

now pending in the adjudicatory hearing proceedings for the Ginna Nuclear Power Station. It should be noted that this - right is specifically recognized in stipulations to be signed in settlement of the Section 402 permit issues.

In the course of conferences convened to resolve the thermal issues raised in the adjudicatory hearing request, EPA requested additional information from RG&E with regard to its 316(a) showing, since, subsequent to submission of RG&E's 316(a) report on July 30, 1974, as supplemented on August 23, 1974, EPA has published additional information on the subject of 316(a) demonstration evidence.

RG&E agreed to submit the requested additional information in this Supplement in accordance with guidelines set forth in a letter dated November 9, 1976 from Harvey Lunenfeld of EPA Region II to Roger W. Kober of RG&E. In addition to the specifications provided in this letter, this Supplement has been prepared on the basis of agreement between RG&E and the EPA Staff with regard to the definition of the scope of information to be provided in this Supplement as well as the appropriate format for its presentation. In some instances, RG&E has incorporated by reference discussions from its Section 316(a) and Section 316(b) demonstration for the Sterling Nuclear Power Plant. This document is entitled "The Sterling Power Project -

vi

Nuclear Unit No. 1, Volume 4 - Water Permits" and copies thereof have been provided to EPA, Region II. This procedure is used with the expressed approval of EPA.

Finally, it is recognized that there may be some inconsistency between this Supplement and the Section 316(a) document submitted on July 30, 1974. Wherever this Supplement is inconsistent with the previous document, the statements in this Supplement shall supersede those in the 1974 document. This Supplement references two additional years (1974 and 1975) of ecological studies at the Ginna site and summarizes effects of Ginna operations upon the Representative Important Species over the period 1969 to 1975. Data used for verification of thermal plume modelling includes 1976 lake triaxial studies.

vii

#### SUMMARY AND CONCLUSIONS

Ginna Nuclear Power Plant 316(a) Demonstration Supplement

The following statements are summaries and conclusions of the data and material contained in this document. Section numbers, which present complete discussions of the bases or reasons for each statement, are included in parenthesis.

- The water quality related discharges from the Ginna Plant are governed by a final National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) permit issued for this facility in February, 1975. The Ginna Plant discharges are in compliance with all chemical limitations specified in that permit. The purpose of this report is to provide supplemental information necessary for the determination of the thermal limitations for the existing discharge. (Introduction)
- 2. The Ginna Nuclear Power Plant is licensed to permit operations at power levels up to 1520 MWt. A pressurized-water reactor (PWR) is used to produce thermal energy. A steam turbinegenerator uses this heat to provide 490 MWe (net) of electrical power output. (1.1)
- 3. Heat-removal facilities for normal operation consists of a conventional once-through system with cooling water being withdrawn from and returned to Lake Ontario. The total circulating water flow of 400,000 GPM is withdrawn through a submerged octagonal intake structure that lies some 3100 ft offshore in about 35 ft of water and is returned to the lake via a canal as a shoreline surface discharge. Retention time of condenser cooling water in the plant system is about eight minutes. (1.2)
- 4. The waste heat released to Lake Ontario by the plant is about  $4.0 \times 10^9$  BTU/HR at 490 MWe of rated output. The 400,000 GPM flow is normally maintained at all power levels. A temperature increase of 20F° has been assumed across the condenser cooling and service water systems for calculations of waste heat rejection, (1.3.1)
- 5. A dimensionless empirical model of a heated surface discharge into shallow water was derived. Five years of thermal survey data at the Ginna site were used to determine the model constants. Both surface and six foot depth thermal distributions were simulated. (1.4.1.1)

- 6. The model was compared with both the five years of thermal survey data used to determine the model constants plus eight independent surveys not used in the model development. Good agreement was found. (1.4.1.2)
- 7. Bottom temperatures (1.4.2.2) and velocities (1.4.3.1.2), based on field measurements, were also simulated. 3°F hottom contact occurs within approximately 1000 feet of shore (1.4.2.2). Lake bottom scour areas are less than 5 acres (1.4.3.1.2).
- 8. Seasonal expected and extreme ambient conditions were found (1.4.2.1). The thermal effects of the Ginna discharge during each seasonal condition were simulated. The largest thermal effects, exclusive of winter conditions, were generally found in the spring (1.4.2.5). The expected 3°F spring isotherm has areas on the lake surface, 6 foot depth, and bottom of 86, 32, and 5.6 acres, respectively. (1.4.3.5.1.2)
- 9. Winter effects, although not explicitly modelled were estimated based on mechanistic considerations (1.4.2.4). The winter plume was found to be of the same general size as the other seasonal plumes (1.4.2.5.1.1, 1.4.2.5.2.1).
- 10. Segmental impact zones to the 3°F isotherm are utilized as a basis for the areal assessment of any thermal impacts upon the aquatic ecosystem. Zones of impact are classified as a DISCHARGE ZONE and and MIXING ZONE. The DISCHARGE ZONE is evaluated quantitatively due to the high frequency of plume occurrence. The MIXING ZONE is addressed on a qualitative basis due to its low probability of occurrence. The area of the DISCHARGE ZONE at the surface, 6 foot depth, and bottom is 176, 65 and 11 acres, respectively. The zones of impact defined herein conservatively exceed the areal dimensions of the expected and extreme thermal plumes of the Ginna discharge. (1.5)
- 11. Representative Important Species (RIS) designated for the aquatic ecosystem at the Ginna site are <u>Cladophora</u>, <u>Gammarus</u>, Alewife, Smelt, Spottail Shiner, Smallmouth Bass, White Perch, Coho Salmon and Brown Trout. Rationale for selection of these species is provided in discussions contained in the Sterling 316(a) Demonstration and incorporated herein by reference (2.0).
- 12. The macroflora community at Ginna Station is composed entirely of <u>Cladophora glomerata</u>, the abundance of which decreases lakeward and is essentially absent by six meters of water depth. <u>Cladophora</u> demonstrates random yearly abundances, with the variance among years at each transect greater than the variance among transects for each year. A lasting effect of the discharge cannot be detected (3.1).

- 13. The macroinvertebrate community, represented by <u>Gammarus</u>, shows typically greater concentrations at the two and five meter depths, diminishing lakeward from the five meter depth. No significant differences in abundance have been found between the transects even though the distribution of <u>Gammarus</u> appears to be patchy. Annually, abundances of <u>Gammarus</u> are relatively stable. The discharge does not seem to have an adverse impact on this community (3.2).
- 14. The fish net studies conducted at the Ginna site from 1969 through 1975 have supplied information upon which the RIS fish have been chosen. These species, listed in order of decreasing Catch per Unit Effort (CUE), are: Alewife, White Perch, Spottail Shiner, Rainbow Smelt, Smallmouth Bass, Brown Trout and Coho Salmon. Each RIS fish population at the Ginna Site has been analyzed with respect to general distribution and abundance, relationship to the thermal plume based on perference temperatures and swimming abilities, attraction to or avoidance of the plume based on collected data, use of the site as a spawning or nursery area, and yearly fluctuations in abundance. A final section deals with all of the above areas on a total RIS-fish community basis. (3.3)
- 15. Seasonal preference temperatures and swimming capabilities for each RIS fish are discussed relative to acclimation temperature and other modifying factors. These data are variously utilized in other sections to both predict and verify actual responses of fish to the Ginna discharge, and to determine their potential for plume penetration and possible impact (3.3.3.2, 3.3.4.2, 3.3.5.2, 3.3.6.2, 3.3.7.2, 3.3.8.2,3.3.9.2).
- 16. RIS fish show varying degrees of attraction to and avoidance of the thermal plume during the course of the year based upon an Attraction Index. All species appear to behave generally in good agreement with their thermal preferenda and migratorv instincts. This results in apparently minor effects upon the RIS fish community, in that these species fluctuate seasonally, showing that natural behavior patterns are dominant over influences of the thermal plume (3.3.10.2).
- 17. Fish egg and larvae studies have identified the following RIS-fish larvae at the Ginna site: alewife, smelt, white perch and shiners. Utilization of the site as a spawning or nursery area is assumed to be predominated by alewives, while other species may use it spora-dically. Some species (coho salmon and brown trout) are not assumed to be able to naturally reproduce in Lake Ontario or its tributaries. Spawning intensity seems normal for each RIS in accordance with their species-specific habitat requirements. The area does not appear to be a preferred or unique spawning or nursery area for any RIS-fish. (3.3)

18. A quantitative assessment of theoretical thermal impact, expressed in terms of time and areas within the discharge zone from which organisms might be excluded, is provided for each RIS. Exclusion areas occur either at the surface, six-foot depth, or region of plume bottom-contact, depending upon the behavior and habitat of each species; they represent portions of the discharge zone where upper thermal tolerances are exceeded for various life activities such as parent survival, summer survival, growth (optimal and acceptable), reproduction, and development (4.1, 4.2).

Species - specific conclusions derived from this theoretical approach are as follows:

Macroflora (<u>Cladophora</u>) - Considering the extremely small areas of bottom contact (less than six acres) and time in summer when parent stock may be excluded, and considering the absence of potential thermal impact on all remaining life activities outside from the scour zone, it is reasonable to expect the Ginna plume to have a negligible adverse impact on <u>Cladophora</u> (4.2.1).

Macroinvertebrates (<u>Gammarus</u>) - Given the absence of potential thermal impact on survival of adult gammarids, the extremely small areas of plume bottom - contact and brief periods of impact on eggs, immatures, and reproduction, and lastly the predicted suboptimal growth within a small area during summer, it appears unlikely that the Ginna discharge could have a significant, much less a measureable, adverse thermal impact on Gammarus, hence the macroinvertebrate community (4.2.2).

Fish (<u>Alewife</u>) -- To summarize potential thermal effects of the Ginna discharge upon alewives, the applicant anticipates a small area of possible exclusion for mature fish in July, very small areas consistently or larger areas for brief time periods excluding juveniles in summer, suboptimal growth in various portions of the discharge zone mostly in summer (assuming alewives remain there for weeks or months), and finally negligible thermal impact on their development and reproduction activities. On this basis the applicant concludes no appreciable adverse thermal impact on the alewife population (4.2.3.1).

(Smelt) - Due to smelt's preference for cold water, and its normal distribution in deep, offshore waters in the summer, the potential for thermal impact on this species is expected to be minimal. Reproduction and development activities would not be thermally impacted apart from the maximum scour zone (4.2.3.2).

(Spottail Shiner) - The applicant anticipates no consequential thermal effects on either reproduction, development, or parent survival of spottail shiners within the Ginna discharge zone. The potential for direct impact on spottails, and suboptimal growth within various sized areas in summer, is minimized by their general avoidance of the nearshore area at this time (4.2.3.3). (White Perch) - The applicant finds no potential thermal impact on reproduction, development, and parent survival within the Ginna discharge zone. There is a potential for some exclusion of white perch from small areas during the warmest part of summer, and a potential for suboptimal growth in areas of various dimensions during the summer months. Enhancement of food reserves in and about the discharge may compensate for thermally induced suboptimal growth, and serve to minimize the extent of potential impact (4.2.3.4).

(Smallmouth Bass) - To summarize the findings of a theoretical thermal impact assessment on various life activities of smallmouth bass, one could safely conclude that the Ginna discharge has a negligible impact on development, reproduction, and parent survival, and would exclude individuals from inhabiting very small areas (less than 3.5 percent of the discharge zone) during the summer. Growth could be suboptimal within reasonably small subsurface areas, however enhanced availability of food resources may compensate for such potential effects (4.2.3.5).

(Coho Salmon) - The applicant's evaluation of theoretical thermal impact on coho salmon of Lake Ontario, has demonstrated a low potential for impact on mature forms migrating through the region beneath the discharge zone in late summer and October, and a minimum potential impact on acceptable growth of individuals occupying the discharge zone in spring and fall (4.2.3.6).

(Brown Trout) - The results of a theoretical impact assessment on brown trout at Ginna suggest no impact on mature specimens occupying nearshore waters in the fall, though there is a possible exclusion from a small area of the discharge zone should some individuals migrate shoreward earlier (September). The potential for impact on growth (optimal and acceptable) should be greatly minimized in summer since brown trout occupy waters somewhat offshore within their preferred temperature range. No significant impact is predicted on growth in late spring. Successful reproduction and development of this stocked species is questionable in Lake Ontario; therefore the applicant anticipates no potential for thermal impact on these activities (4.2.3.7).

19. A species-specific evaluation of cold-shock effects, stemming from a reactor shutdown (rapid or scheduled), indicates a potential for low impact and a confinement of possible effects to specific colder months. Minimal concentrations of rainbow smelt, coho salmon, and brown trout might experience cold-shock during winter; spottail shiners and white perch could be stressed and/or coldshocked only in February; alewives are prone to impact mainly in April; and smallmouth bass are never expected to experience cold-shock. In general, the extent of potential impact would be slight based on the few individuals inhabiting discharge waters during cold months, and is not expected to adversely affect protection and propagation of RIS fish at Ginna (4.2.3.1-7).

- 20. The plume entrains local lake water and transports it out into the lake. This offshore transport of lake water is replaced by an equal onshore movement of water. Such a countercurrent is usually found beneath the plume and has its origins offshore of the plume area. The flow rate of water entrained into the plume was calculated as a function of temperature and plume location. The maximum flow of entraining water exposed to 3°F temperatures or higher with expected spring conditions is approximately 2700 cfs (5.1.1).
- 21. Numbers of organisms which may be entrained into the plume have been estimated based upon: (1) the concentrations of fish eggs and larvae and the RIS-Gammarus found at the Ginna site, and (2) calculations of the volume of water entrained. These estimates are presented for the period of May through September which would be the period of highest concentrations for such organisms. Considerations and findings of this plume entrainment assessment (1) evidence of a limnetic countercurrent which flows include: shoreward beneath the thermal plume which may significantly reduce entrained organisms, (2) an insignificant thermal stress imposed upon Gammarus and a slight displacement of some of these organisms, (3) minor entrainment of fish eggs since most found near the Ginna site are dimersal, and (4) indications that larvae entrained into the plume would not reach detrimental temperatures. Overall, entrainment into the thermal plume has not be determined to result in adverse impact upon the RIS (5.1.2).
- 22. Fish tagging studies conducted from 1973 through 1976 support evidence that little, if any, interference to fish movements along shore may be attributed to the Ginna thermal discharge into Lake Ontario (5.2).
- 23. Gas bubble disease (GBD), a condition which may develop in fish subjected for a critical species-specific period of time to discharge waters supersaturated with a critical concentration of total gases and/or threshold ratio of dissolved oxygen to nitrogen, has neither been, nor is expected to be, a problem at the Ginna discharge. Support for this conclusion is derived from studies on L. Michigan where it was demonstrated that sensitive species such as brown trout, coho salmon, spottail shiners and others, captured from supersaturated discharge waters, did not exhibit symptoms of GBD. The author attributes these findings to short residence times of fish in critical areas of potential impact. This behavior, coupled with a paucity of fish observed occupying discharge waters at Ginna during critical periods (mainly winter months), greatly minimizes potential impact. Actual observed occurrences of GBD at the Ginna site have been rare (5.3).

This supplement demonstrates that the shoreline surface discharge of the Ginna Nuclear Power Plant assures the protection and propagation of a balanced indigenous aquatic community as exemplified by the Representative Important Species at the Ginna Site.

## TABLE OF CONTENTS

## CHAPTER 1: THERMAL PLUME CHARACTERISTICS

Section					-	Pag	re
1.1	PLANT D	ESCRIPTION	• • • • • • • • • • • • • •		•••••	1.	l
1.2	HEAT DI	SSIPATION SYS	TEM DESCRIPTIO	ом	•••••	1.	1
1 <b>.</b> 3	SYSTEM (	OPERATION	•••••••••••••	••••••	•••••	1.	2
	1.3.1 1.3.2 1.3.3 1.3.4	Circulating W Recirculation Biocide Treat Reactor Shute	Vater System h tment lown		• • • • • • • •	· · · · 1.	2 2 3 3
1.4	THERMAL	PLUME MODEL A	AND CHARACTERI	STICS	•••••	1.	4-1
	1.4.1	Mathematical 1.4.1.1 1.4.1.1.1 1.4.1.1.1 1.4.1.1.1 1.4.1.1.2 1.4.1.1.2 1.4.1.1.2 1.4.1.1.2 1.4.1.1.2 1.4.1.1.2 1.4.1.1.2 1.4.1.1.2 1.4.1.1.3 1.4.1.1.3 1.4.1.1.3 1.4.1.1.3 1.4.1.1.3 1.4.1.1.4.1 1.4.1.1.4.1 1.4.1.1.4.2 1.4.1.1.4.3 1.4.1.1.4.5 1.4.1.1.5 1.4.1.1.5.1 1.4.1.5.1 1.5.1 1.5.1 1.5.1 1.5.1 1.5.1 1.5.1	Model Used Discussion of Introduction. Problem Descr Possible Solu Other Empiric Analytical Di Describing Pa Centerline Te Plume Half Wi Lateral Distr Data Collecti Data Collecti Data Collecti Data Range Surface Data Subsurface Da Statistical M Resulting Equ Statistical M Centerline Te Plume Half-Wi Lateral Distr Possible Sour Model Applica Isotherm Cons Worst Case Is	Model. iption. ion Me al Mode scussion rameter mperatu dth ibution ion Reduction ta Reduction ations. ethods. mperatu dth ibution ces of I tion truction otherms	thods Is re Excess on on ction and re Excess Data Sca	1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1.	4-1 4-1 4-1 4-2 4-1 4-12 4-226 4-26 4-26 4-26 4-26 4-26 4-226 4-26
		1.4.1.2	Comparison of	Model I	With Dat	al.	4-28

- .

٠

## TABLE OF CONTENTS

## CHAPTER 1 (Continued)

## Section

1.4.2	Thermal Effe	cts of Discharge1.4-30
	1.4.2.1	Ambient Conditions1.4-30
	1.4.2.2	Lake Bottom Temperature Rise1.4-30
	1.4.2.3	Velocity Decay
	1.4.2.3.1	Exposure Time
	1.4.2.3.2	Plume Trajectory
	1.4.2.4	Winter Recirculation1.4-33
	1.4.2.5	Seasonal Thermal Effects1.4-35
	1.4.2.5.1	Expected Seasonal Conditions1.4-35
	1.4.2.5.1.1	Expected Winter Plume1.4-35
	1.4.2.5.1.2	Expected Spring Plume1.4-35
	1.4.2.5.1.3	Expected Summer Plume1.4-36
	1.4.2.5.1.4	Expected Fall Plume1.4-36
	1.4.2.5.2	Extreme Seasonal Conditions1.4-37
	1.4.2.5.2.1	Extreme Winter Plume1.4-37
	1.4.2.5.2.2	Extreme Spring Plume1.4-37
	1.4.2.5.2.3	Extreme Summer Plume1.4-37
	1.4.2.5.2.4	Extreme Fall Plume1.4-38
	1.4.2.6	Parametric Plume Analysis1.4-38
1.4.3	Physical Eff	ects of Discharge1.4-41
	1.4.3.1	Velocity Effects1.4-41
	1.4.3.1.1	Surface Velocities1.4-41
	1.4.3.1.2	Bottom Velocities1.4-41
	1.4.3.2	Concentrations1.4-42
	1.4.3.3	Shoreline Erosion1.4-43
References		

## LIST OF TABLES

Table No.	Title		
1.4-1	List of Variables Used in Discussion of Mathematical		
	Model		
1.4-2	Basic Parameters of Surveys Used to Develop Model		
1.4-3	Ginna Surface Isotherm Data		
1.4-4	Ginna Six Foot Depth Isotherm Data		
1.4-5	Correlation Constants and Statistical Results for		
	the Ginna Data Representation		
1.4-6	Ginna Lateral Distribution and Normalized Gaussian		
	Distribution		
1.4-7	Monthly Difference in Ambient Temperature between		
	the Shoreline and 5000 Feet Offshore in the Ginna		
	Vicinity as Given by Chermack and Galletta <sup>(20)</sup>		
1.4-8	Seasonal Discharge and Ambient Conditions		
1.4-9	Surface Centerline Excess Velocity Decay for Seasonal		
	Conditions		
1,4-10	Ginna Triaxial Surveys		
1.5-1	Ginna Discharge Zones		
1.5-2	Ginna Mixing Zones		
1.5-3	Ratios of Seasonal Thermal Plumes to the Ginna Zones		
	of Impact		

•

## LIST OF FIGURES

Figure No.	<u>Title</u>
1.4-1	Design Curves Describing the Ginna Thermal
	Discharge Plume
1.4-2	Comparison of Possible Froude Number Functional
	Forms
1.4-3	Comparison of Hypothesized Relation Between T
	and $\chi$ with Values Determined at Ginna
1.4-4	Triaxial Survey Map
1.4-5	Range of Ginna Thermal Survey Densimetric Froude
	Numbers and Lake Elevations
1.4-6	Dimensionless Centerline Temperature Excess
	and Half Width Measured on 9/25/70 at the Lake Surface
1.4-7	Dimensionless Centerline Temperature Excess and
	Half Width Measured on 10/27/71 at the Lake Surface
1.4-8	Dimensionless Centerline Temperature Excess and
	Half Width Measured on 5/1/70 at Six Foot Depth
1.4-9	Dimensionless Centerline Temperature Excess and
	Half Width Measured on 10/1/73 at Six Foot Depth
1.4-10	Dimensionless Centerline Temperature Excess-Surface
1.4-11	Dimensionless Centerline Temperature Excess-Six
	Foot Depth
1.4-12	Dimensionless Plume Half Width-Surface
1.4-13	Dimensionless Plume Half Width-Six Foot Depth

:

•

11.1

-

ī

l-iv

Figure No.	Title_
1.4-14	Lateral Temperature Distribution
1.4-15	Variation of Densimetric Froude Number (F) with
	Lake Conditions for the Ginna Discharge
1.4-16	Linear Scale Factor vs. Lake Elevation
1.4-17	Dimensionless Centerline Temperature Excess and
	Half Width Measured on 9/11/75 at the Lake Surface
1.4-18	Dimensionless Centerline Temperature Excess and
	Half Width Measured on 9/11/75 at Six Foot Depth
1.4-19	Dimensionless Centerline Temperature Excess and
	Half Width Measured on 10/21/75 at the Lake Surface
1.4-20	Dimensionless Centerline Temperature Excess and
	Half Width Measured on 10/21/75 at Six Foot Depth
1.4-21	Dimensionless Centerline Temperature Excess and
	Half Width Measured on 5/24/76 at the Lake Surface
1.4-22	Dimensionless Centerline Temperature Excess and
	Half Width Measured on 6/10/76 at the Lake Surface
1.4-23	Dimensionless Centerline Temperature Excess and
	Half Width Measured on 7/6/76 at the Lake Surface
1.4-24	Dimensionless Centerline Temperature Excess and
	Half Width Measured on 9/13/76 at the Lake Surface
1.4-25	Dimensionless Centerline Temperature Excess and
	Half Width Measured on 9/29/76 at the Lake Surface
1.4-26	Dimensionless Centerline Temperature Excess and
	Half Width Measured on 11/5/76 at the Lake Surface

.

l-v

Figure No.	Title
1.4-46	Expected and Extreme Seasonal Isotherm Volumes
1.4-47	Time - Temperature Decay, Expected Spring Conditions
1.4-48	Time - Temperature Decay, Expected Summer Conditions
1.4-49	Time - Temperature Decay, Expected Fall Conditions
1.4-50	Time - Temperature Decay, Extreme Spring Conditions
1.4-51	Time - Temperature Decay, Extreme Summer Conditions
1.4-52	Time - Temperature Decay, Extreme Fall Conditions
1.4-53	Expected Spring Plume Trajectories
1.4-54	Expected Summer Plume Trajectories
1.4-55	Expected Fall Plume Trajectories
1.4-56	Extreme Spring Plume Trajectories
1.4-57	Extreme Summer Plume Trajectories
1.4-58	Extreme Fall Plume Trajectories
1.4-59	Expected 2°F Surface Isotherm Areas
1.4-60	Expected 3°F Surface Isotherm Areas
1.4-61	Expected 5°F Surface Isotherm Areas
1.4-62	Expected 10°F Surface Isotherm Areas
1.4-63	Expected 2°F Six Foot Depth Isotherm Areas
1.4-64	Expected 3°F Six Foot Depth Isotherm Areas
1.4-65	Expected 5°F Six Foot Depth Isotherm Areas
1.4-66	Expected 10°F Six Foot Depth Isotherm Areas

l-vi

.

Figure No.	Title
1.4-27	Discharge Velocity vs. Lake Elevation
1.4-28	Discharge Flow Rates During Recirculation Mode
1.4-29	Lake Surface Isotherms - Expected Spring Conditions
1.4-30	Six Foot Depth Isotherms - Expected Spring Conditions
1.4-31	Lake Surface Isotherms - Expected Summer Conditions
1.4-32	Six Foot Depth Isotherms - Expected Summer Conditions
1.4-33	Lake Surface Isotherms - Expected Fall Conditions
1.4-34	Six Foot Depth Isotherms - Fxpected Fall Conditions
1.4-35	Lake Surface Isotherms - Extreme Spring Conditions
1.4-36	Six Foot Depth Isotherms - Extreme Spring Conditions
1.4-37	Lake Surface Isotherms - Extreme Summer Conditions
1.4-38	Six Foot Depth Isotherms - Extreme Summer Conditions
1.4-39	Lake Surface Isotherms - Extreme Fall Conditions
1.4-40	Six Foot Depth Isotherms - Extreme Fall Conditions
1.4-41	Isotherm Areas along Lake Surface - Expected Seasonal
	Conditions
1.4-42	Isotherm Areas at Six Foot Depth - Expected Seasonal
	Conditions
1.4-43	Isotherm Areas along Lake Surface - Extreme Seasonal
	Conditions
1.4-44	Isotherm Areas at Six Foot Depth - Extreme Seasonal
	Conditions
1.4-45	Isothermal Lake Bottom Areas Expected and Extreme
	Seasonal Conditions

.

## l-vii

,

.

Figure No.	Title
1.4-67	Average and Maximum Isothermal Lake Bottom
	Areas - $T_a = 40^{\circ}F$
1.4-68	Average and Maximum Isothermal Lake Bottom
	Areas - $T_a = 60^{\circ}F$
1.4-69	Average and Maximum Isothermal Lake Bottom
	Areas - $T_a = 80^{\circ}F$
1.4-70	Worst Case 2°F Surface Isotherm Areas
1.4-71	Worst Case 3°F Surface Isotherm Areas
1.4-72	Worst Case 5°F Surface Isotherm Areas
1.4-73	Worst Case 10°F Surface Isotherm Areas
1.4-74	Worst Case 2°F Six Foot Depth Isotherm Areas
1.4-75	Worst Case 3°F Six Foot Depth Isotherm Areas
1.4-76	Worst Case 5°F Six Foot Depth Isotherm Areas
1.4-77	Worst Case 10°F Six Foot Depth Isotherm Areas
1.4-78	Time - Temperature Decay, $E = 244$ Ft. USGS
1.4-79	Time - Temperature Decay, E = 246 Ft. USGS
1.4-80	Time - Temperature Decay, $E = 248$ Ft. USGS
1.4-81	Time - Temperature Decay, $E = 250$ Ft. USGS
1.4-82	Average and Maximum Lake Bottom Scour Areas
	(Bottom Velocity >1 FPS)

l-viii

.

----

Figure No.	Title
1.5-1	3°F Discharge Zone Development - Lake Surface
1.5-2	3°F Mixing Zone Development - Lake Surface
1.5-3	Isothermal Discharge Zones - Lake Surface
1.5-4	Isothermal Discharge Zones - Six Foot Depth
1.5-5	Isothermal Discharge Zones - Lake Bottom
1.5-6	Isothermal Mixing Zones - Lake Surface
1.5-7	Isothermal Mixing Zones - Six Foot Depth
1.5-8	3°F Lake Surface Impact Zones with Expected
	3°F Spring Isotherm
1.5-9	3°F Six Foot Depth Impact Zones with Expected
	3°F Spring Isotherm

#### CHAPTER 1.0

#### THERMAL PLUME CHARACTERISTICS

#### 1.1 PLANT DESCRIPTION

The Ginna Nuclear Power Plant is located on Lake Ontario in the northwest corner of Wayne County, N.Y. This location, on the south shore of Lake Ontario, is about 20 miles ENE of Rochester, N.Y. and 45 miles WSW of Oswego, N.Y. Figure 1.1-1 shows the counties and the larger cities and towns within 50 miles of the site. The nearest planned and existing nuclear facilities are located at the Sterling site (about 34 miles away) and Nine Mile Point Units (about 49 miles away), respectively.

Rochester Gas and Electric Corporation (RG&E) obtained its provisional license on September 19, 1969 to operate Ginna at 1300 megawatts thermal (MWt). The AEC Directorate of Licensing amended this provisional operating license to RG&E on March 1, 1972 to allow operation at power levels up to 1520 MWt. A pressurized-water reactor (PWR) is used to produce this thermal power level. A steam turbine-generator uses this heat to provide 490 MWe (net) of electrical power capacity.

The plant consists of a closed-cycle, pressurized, lightwater-moderated nuclear steam-supply system, a turbinecondenser system, and auxiliary equipment. Figure 1.1-2 is a simplified flow diagram of the steam-electric system. After passing through the turbines, spent steam is condensed by once-through cooling with water from Lake Ontario. At -full design power, the plant removes water from Lake Ontario at the rate of 400,000 GPM and heats it to a temperature 20F° above ambient lake temperature before returning it to the lake as a shoreline surface discharge.

#### 1.2 HEAT DISSIPATION SYSTEM DESCRIPTION

Heat-removal facilities for normal operations consists of a conventional once-through system with cooling water being withdrawn from and returned to the same waterbody. The intake-discharge facilities are designed to provide the water requirements for the circulating water system and the house service water system. The total flow of circulating water through these systems under normal operating conditions is about 400,000 GPM (891.2 CFS). Figure 1.2-1 is a flow diagram of these once-through systems. Lake Ontario is the

source and recipient of the circulating water which is withdrawn through a submerged octagonal intake structure that lies some 3100 ft offshore in about 35 ft of water. Figure 1.2-2 is a perspective drawing of the intake structure, screenhouse and discharge canal. Intake water flows by gravity through a 10 ft diameter concrete-lined tunnel into the screenhouse, where it passes through a coarse screen and fine-mesh traveling screens before being pumped to the condenser or service water system. The water from these two systems is combined and released to the discharge canal which opens into Lake Ontario at the shoreline. The discharge canal is an open structure approximately 20 ft wide at the base with side slopes of 1:1 at lake entry. Average water depth in the canal is about 8 ft and a discharge velocity of 3.7 fps is typical. The 400,000 GPM flow is normally maintained at all power levels and its discharge velocity, which depends upon on lake elevation, is presented in Figure 1.4-27.

1.3 SYSTEM OPERATION

## 1.3.1 Circulating Water System

The waste heat released to Lake Ontario by the plant is about 4.0  $\times 10^9$  BTU/HR at the 490 MWe rated output. The water used to remove heat from the main condensers is provided by a once-through circulating system designed to limit the temperature rise through the main condensers to a maximum of approximately 20F° at 100 percent of rated capacity. As presented in Figure 1.2-1, 381,000 GPM of the measured 400,000 GPM total circulating water flow passes through the condensers and 19,000 GPM flow through the service water system. A temperature increase of 20F° has been assumed across the service water system for calculations of waste heat rejection.

The 400,000 GPM circulating flow is normally maintained at all power levels except during periods of recirculation to prevent the accumulation of frazil ice on the intake structures. Retention time of condenser cooling water in the plant system is approximately eight minutes and no consumption or process contact of the water occurs.

#### 1.3.2 Recirculation

During normal operating conditions, at rated thermal power, the temperature of the water that leaves the discharge canal is increased about 20F° above the temperature of withdrawal from Lake Ontario. During the period from mid-December through mid-April, a portion of the condenser discharge water

;

is recirculated to the forebay to prevent any ice accumulation on the screenhouse facilities. Ginna operating procedures state that condenser water inlet temperature should be maintained at no more than 40°F maximum by use of the recirculation gate during the winter months. Discharge flow rates versus temperature excess during the recirculation mode are presented in Figure 1.4-28. Under such conditions of maximum recirculation, the temperature of the discharge water to Lake Ontario would be increased 28F° above inlet water temperatures. Recirculation has the effect of lowering the flow rate while raising the discharge excess temperature. Plume development with reference to winter recirculation is discussed in section 1.4.2.4.

### 1.3.3 Biocide Treatment

Sodium hypochlorite is intermittently added to the intake water at the forebay to inhibit biological growths and maintain heat transfer efficiency in the main condenser and house service water systems. Total residual chlorine is continuously monitored during chlorination periods.

In January 1977, chlorination procedures at Ginna have been reduced to one 30 minute period per day five times per week in an effort to keep chlorine discharges as low as practicable. The facility is operating in compliance with its NPDES effluent limitation of 0.5 mg/l free available chlorine and maximum value of 45.4 kg/day (100 lbs/day).

#### 1.3.4 Reactor Shutdown

Scheduled shutdowns for refueling and maintenance generally occur once a year for about a six week period. It is expected that the refueling outage would normally occur during the Spring or Fall when electrical system demands are at a minimum and not during the period December through March, except as required by New York Power Pool Planning (NYPP). Coordination of planned shutdowns with NYPP is required so that an acceptable state power reserve is maintained.

Any changes in reactor power during operation will cause timearying temperature behavior in the thermal plume. A normal startup or shutdown would typically result in finer incremental temperature changes in the circulating water discharge than an emergency shutdown. The severest impact would result from the simultaneous occurrence of the following conditions:

- (1) full-power operation in winter,
- (2) maximum recirculation,
- (3) instantaneous decrease from full-power operation to zero-power, and
- (4) continued operation of the main circulating water pumps.

The temperature drop of the discharge water associated with rapid outage would be most severe during the first minute (about 17°F). The average number of unscheduled shutdowns per year for the Ginna unit is 10 based upon a-5 year operation period.

----



LOCATION OF THE GINNA NUCLEAR POWER PLANT

1



Figure 1.1-1



SIMPLIFIED FLOW DIAGRAM OF THE CONDENSER AND SERVICE-WATER SYSTEMS OF THE GINNA NUCLEAR POWER PLANT.



Figure 1.2-1



#### SIMPLIFIED FLOW DIAGRAM OF THE STEAM-ELECTRIC SYSTEM OF THE GINNA NUCLEAR POWER PLANT

ROCHESTER CAS AND ELECTRIC

:

-

Figure 1.1-2



DRAWING OF THE INTAKE STRUCTURE, SCREEN-HOUSE, AND DISCHARGE CANAL OF THE GINNA NUCLEAR POWER PLANT

- Gl TROCHESTER BASAND ELECTRIC

Figure 1.2-2

1.4 THERMAL PLUME MODEL AND CHARACTERISTICS

## 1.4.1 MATHEMATICAL MODEL USED

## 1.4.1.1 Discussion of Model

1.4.1.1.1 Introduction

## 1.4.1.1.1.1 Problem Description

When a stream of warm water is released from an open channel into a large body of water, the warmer effluent mixes with the cooler ambient water, resulting in spreading and cooling of the discharge. The area in the receiving body where the discharge can be sensed is referred to as the thermal plume. The plume can be thought of as being comprised of four basic regions: the core region, in which the initial jet effect of the discharge results in a mixing of the plume with the ambient water but in which the temperature and velocity of the plume centerline remain essentially constant; the entrainment region, in which the turbulent shear forces caused by the velocity difference between the plume and ambient result in the mixing of cooler water with the discharge plume while the buoyancy of the warmer water tends to cause the plume to rise; the stable region, in which the plume continues to spread due to the buoyant rising of the warm water but in which the rate of entrainment is inhibited by the low plume velocity and the high density stratification between the plume and ambient; and the far field, in which the plume surface area is large enough to allow significant heat transfer from the lake to the atmosphere. This discussion is intended to concentrate on the near field portion of the plume, which essentially encompasses the first three regions.

The temperature distribution within these regions are influenced by many variables such as location within the plume, discharge channel geometry, discharge water temperature and flow rate, ambient water temperature, elevation, turbulence level, and velocity, lake shore and bottom configuration, and atmospheric conditions.

## 1.4.1.1.1.2 Possible Solution Methods

A number of theoretical models exist to describe a surface jet discharge. For example, Motz and Benedict(1) formulated a two dimensional model. However, the two dimensionality of the model results in neglect of jet spreading due to buoyancy. Stolzenbach and Harleman(2) and Shirazi and Davis(3) have formulated three dimensional models for deep receiving waters. However, these
formulations cannot be used past the entrainment region due to their underlying assumption that jet momentum is much greater than ambient momentum. Also, their predictions are not accurate for shallow receiving waters. When one considers the complexity of the thermal plume and the many variables which affect it, it is not surprising that a general theoretical model does not exist which will give acceptable predictions of the thermal distribution in a shallow receiving basin, such as the nearshore region of Lake Ontario, due to a surface jet discharge of heated water.

An alternative to the use of a theoretical model as the chief predictive tool in determining the effects of the Ginna discharge is an empirical model. Examples of empirical models are those of Pritchard, <sup>(4)</sup> Asbury and Frigo, <sup>(5)</sup> and Shirazi. <sup>(6)</sup> Such models have the advantage of being based upon actual field measurements of surface jet discharges, thereby implicitly accounting for all of the governing mechanisms. However, their disadvantage is related to their advantage. That is, since all of the mechanisms governing plume behavior are implicitly accounted for, extrapolation of these formulations to sites not similar to those used to derive the formulations is not good practice. This is because the relative magnitude of the various mechanisms may be entirely different at different sites.

It should be clear from the above that the best method of predicting the effects of a discharge is to use a formulation based upon direct field measurements. In this light, extensive data are available for the R.E.Ginna Nuclear Power Plant surface jet discharge. Therefore, an empirical model based upon these extensive field measurements will be developed. This model will then be used to assess the effects of the Ginna discharge.

## 1.4.1.1.1.3 Other Empirical Models

A number of empirical studies of surface jet discharges are available in the literature. Pritchard<sup>(4)</sup> used data from a number of sites along the Great Lakes to arrive at an algorithm for drawing surface isotherms. This model, however, is quite arbitrary in that the chief dependent variables are channel width and discharge temperature. No functional dependence is included for such basic factors as discharge flow, discharge Froude number, etc. The model is applicable to the original data base because the governing factors vary over a fairly narrow range. The plants studied were relatively low capacity fossil fired units with low velocity discharges. The use of this model for the Ginna plant would be inappropriate.

Asbury and Frigo<sup>(5)</sup> also studied various Great Lakes sites to arrive at a relation between dimensionless excess centerline

temperature, and the ratio of isotherm area to discharge flow,  $I/Q_0$ . It is obvious, however, that the latter parameter has the dimensions of inverse velocity. If two data sources have different length scales, the same temperature rise, and equivalent Froude numbers, the latter being required if the near field jet behavior is going to be the same at the two sites, then the ratio of their isotherm areas would be proportional to the square of the ratio of their length scales while the ratio of their flows must be proportional to the 2.5 power of the length scale ratio. Therefore, it would be incorrect to use the parameter  $I/Q_0$  for data sources other than those from which the relationship was derived.

Shirazi<sup>(6)</sup> investigated the centerline temperature excess and plume half width of a number of data sources. He took a purely statistical approach and assumed that

$$\frac{\Delta T_{c}}{\Delta T_{o}} \quad \text{and} \quad \frac{r_{h}}{h_{o}} = a' \left(\frac{s}{h_{o}}\right)^{b'} R'^{c'} F^{d'} A^{e'} a_{c}^{f'} \qquad (1)$$

where: 
$$\Delta T_c$$
 = centerline temperature excess,  ${}^{O}F$   
 $\Delta T_o$  = discharge temperature excess,  ${}^{O}F$   
 $r_h$  = plume half width, ft  
 $h_o$  = discharge depth, ft  
 $s$  = distance along plume trajectory, ft  
 $R'$  = ambient velocity/discharge velocity =  $U_a/U_o$   
 $F$  = densimetric Froude number =  $U_o / \sqrt{gh_o (\frac{\rho_a - \rho_o}{\rho_a})}$   
 $A$  = aspect ratio =  $W/h_o$   
 $a_c$  = angle between discharge and ambient velocities,  
 $U_a$  = ambient velocity, ft/sec  
 $U_o$  = discharge velocity, ft/sec  
 $g$  = gravitational acceleration, ft/sec<sup>2</sup>

W = discharge channel width, ft  $\rho_a$  = ambient density, lb/ft<sup>3</sup>

 $\rho_0$  = discharge density, lb/ft<sup>3</sup>

and a',b',c',d',e',f' = correlation constants which are different

for 
$$\frac{\Delta T_c}{\Delta T_o}$$
 and  $\frac{r_h}{h_o}$ 

Stefan, et al <sup>(7)</sup> investigated plume effects within the core region and slightly beyond and found that

$$\frac{s}{h_{o}} = (a'-b'T)^{C'} A^{d'-e'T} \exp(-f'R') \left[ 1 + \frac{g'F-h'}{\exp(i'F)} \right]$$
(2)

where:  $T = \Delta T_{C} / \Delta T_{O}$  = dimensionless centerline temperature excess and g',h',i' = correlation constants

resulted in a good fit to the data for  $1.0 \le A \le 9.6$ ,  $0 \le R' \le 0.41$ ,  $2.0 \le F \le 15$ , and  $0.8 \le T \le 0.98$ .

2

## 1.4.1.1.2 Analytical Discussion

#### 1.4.1.1.2.1 Describing Parameters

The effects of a surface jet discharge are influenced by many variables. In the near field these variables can be reduced to the dimensionless parameters F,A,R',K (where  $K = k/\rho C U$  where k = surface heat transfer coefficient,  $Btu/ft^2 - {}^{OF} = {}^{P}sec$  and  $C_p = specific heat of water, <math>Btu/lb-{}^{OF}$ ), and  $a_c$  for a deep receiving water body. For a shallow receiving water body, the effect of lateral and bottom boundaries must also be considered. Ambient turbulence is considered to have secondary importance within the near field. (2)

The heat loss parameter, K, can always be neglected in the near field for practical purposes.<sup>(8)</sup> This can best be illustrated by a sample calculation. Using Figure 1.4-29 which shows the expected spring surface isotherms, and taking a value of (9) k = 92 Btu/ft<sup>2</sup> - <sup>OF</sup> - day, an average value for Lake Ontario, <sup>(9)</sup> the heat lost through the surface of the plume to the atmosphere was calculated.<sup>(1)</sup> It was found that less than 3 percent of the heat rejected to the lake by the plant was lost to the atmosphere within the 2<sup>O</sup>F isotherm.

R' and its associated parameter a\_ have not been measured at Ginna. This is not considered to be a serious deficiency in this case. A surface jet in the presence of a crossflowing ambient will exhibit a distortion of the lateral temperature profiles. However, if R' is much less than one, the effects of the crossflow on the plume temperature distribution will be small. The major effect of the crossflow will be a gradual bending of the jet trajectory.<sup>(8)</sup> At Ginna the discharge velocities are in the range of 3-5 ft/sec., an order of magnitude larger than the currents normally occurring on Lake Ontario. Therefore, the effects of lake currents are expected to be small. It is important to realize that if lake velocities larger than normally expected were to occur, the plume would exhibit greatly increased entrainment rates and, therefore, a much greater rate of temperature decay. (8,10) Hence, at large lake velocities where the crossflow becomes important, its effect is to significantly decrease the size of the thermal plume. On these bases, the parameters R' and  $a_{c}$  are not considered further.

A linear scaling factor must be defined so that the plume parameters  $s, r_h, and I$ , the isotherm area, can be described in dimensionless form. Shirazi(6) and Stefan, et al (7) used the discharge depth, h. Inspection of their general functional forms, equations 1 and 2, shows that the discharge flow,  $Q_0 = U_0 a$ , where a = cross section

area of discharge flow, is accounted for through the use of the variables F,A, and the scale factor h. However, a better choice of length scale would be  $\sqrt[n]{2}$ . Use of this factor in the formulation will reduce the dependence of plume behavior on the aspect ratio, (2) the aspect ratio no longer being necessary to define the size of the discharge.

## 1.4.1.1.2.2 Centerline Temperature Excess

As described in Section 1.4.1.1.1.3, Shirazi<sup>(6)</sup> described the dimensionless centerline temperature excess, T, as the product of the describing parameters raised to constant powers, as shown in equation 1. For a specific set of lake and discharge conditions, this equation form reduces to a straight line when log T is plotted against  $log(s/h_0)$ . Figure 1.4-1, which describes the centerline temperature decay at Ginna based on some early field measurements, is such a plot. Note that the curves defining centerline temperature decay are not straight lines. Rather than h,  $\sqrt[n]{a/2}$  has been used as the scale factor. For a specific set of conditions, use of h<sub>0</sub> would result in a translation of the curves without changing their shape or slope. As is obvious, the functional form used by Shirazi to describe the dependence of T on the distance along the plume trajectory, X, is not appropriate for Ginna.

The form used by Stefan, et al<sup>(7)</sup> was also considered. Although this formulation was derived only for  $0.8 \le T \le 0.98$ , it was thought that the same functional representation, equation 2, might be applicable to the entire range of temperature excess. As discussed previously, the value of R'can be considered to be essentially zero for this study. Therefore, equation 2 becomes:

$$\frac{s}{h_0} = (a'-b'T)^{C'} A^{d'-e'T} \left[1 + \frac{g'F-h'}{\exp(i'F)}\right]$$
(3)

Using  $\sqrt{a/2}$  instead of h<sub>o</sub> as the linear scale factor, equation 3 becomes

$$\chi = \frac{s}{\sqrt{a/2}} = (a'-b'T)^{C'} A^{d'-e'T} \left[1 + \frac{g'F-h'}{\exp(i'F)}\right] \quad (4)$$

1

where:  $\chi =$  dimensionless distance along jet trajectory and a',b',c',d',e',g',h', and i' may have different values than in equation 3.

The function describing the effects of Froude number, the term in brackets in equation 4, was investigated. The values of g',h', and i' found by Stefan, et al <sup>(7)</sup> were 0.5, 1.5, and 0.4 respectively. However, this Froude number function is very difficult to work with statistically in that it cannot be linearized. Therefore, a new function is sought which would reproduce the basic characteristics of Stefan's function but would be easier to manipulate. The first attempt would obviously be Shirazi's function,

$$f(F) = a'F^{b'}$$
(5)

where: f(F) = functional dependence of T on F.

However, as is quickly obvious, equation 5 is a monotonic function, whereas Stefan's function,

$$f(F) = 1 + \frac{g'F-h'}{\exp(i'F)}$$
 (6)

has an extremum located at,

$$\mathbf{F} = \frac{\mathbf{i}'\mathbf{h}' + \mathbf{g}'}{\mathbf{i}'\mathbf{g}'} \tag{7}$$

The required functional form of f(F) must, therefore, also have an extremum. A possible function can be deduced from Shirazi. If equation 5 is expressed in a slightly different form,

$$f(F) = \exp (a^{*}+b^{*}\ln F)$$
(8)

where: a" is a new correlation constant, then an extension of this can be postulated as,

$$f(F) = \exp\left[\alpha' + \beta' \ln F + \gamma' (\ln F)^2\right]$$
(9)

where: a',  $\beta'$ , and  $\gamma'$  are new correlation constants.

Using the values of g', h', and i found by Stefan, the method of least squares, which will be explained in Section 1.4.1.1.4, was used to find the best fit of equations 5 and 9 with equation 6 for the range of Froude numbers spanned by the Ginna data. As will be shown in Section 1.4.1.1.3, this range of F is from approximately 3 to 13. Figure 1.4-2 graphically shows the comparison between these functions. As expected, equation 5 is a poor substitute for equation 6, whereas equation 9 mimics the characteristics of equation 6 guite well.

If equation 9 is substituted for equation 6 in equation 4 then the equation describing the centerline temperature excess becomes,

$$\chi = (a'-b'T)^{C'} A^{d'-e'T} \exp \left[a'+\beta'\ln F+\gamma'(\ln F)^{2}\right] (10)$$

The use of aspect ratio as one of the describing parameters in equation 10 must be examined further in light of the present study. The aspect ratio is defined as,

$$A = W/h_0 \tag{11}$$

However, the Ginna data is derived from a single discharge with a constant channel width, W. On the other hand, the discharge depth, h, varies directly with the lake elevation. Therefore, any changes in aspect ratio are directly related only to changes in lake elevation, or lake depth. If A were used to describe the thermal distribution at Ginna, it would not be known whether plume charges were due to variation in lake elevation or aspect ratio. In a shallow body of water, changes in lake water depth may result in changes in thermal plume behavior due to a variation in the characteristics of plume interference with the lake bottom. The phenomenon of plume interference with the lake bottom does not occur in deep water bodies. The latter case was the one investigated by Stefan, et al,<sup>(7)</sup> and therefore the use of A as a describing parameter did not lead to any uncertainty in model interpretation. In this case, however, model interpretation will be aided by determining whether the variation in lake water depth or aspect ratio is the controlling mechanism. Model results, of course, depend only on knowing the effect of lake elevation on the plume and not on knowing which mechanism is controlling.

As described previously in this section, the use of  $\sqrt[4]{a/2}$  as the scale factor for length, rather than h , as used by Stefan, reduces the dependence of the plume description on the aspect ratio. Stolzenbach, et al<sup>(12)</sup> found that the governing equations

outside of the core region in a deep receiving water body are only dependent upon a modified densimetric Froude number, F', where,

$$\mathbf{F'} = \mathbf{F}\mathbf{A}^{-\frac{1}{4}} \tag{12}$$

This indicates that plume characteristics are insensitive to changes in aspect ratio as compared with changes in Froude number. Since the effects of aspect ratio variations are known to be small, a significant effect of lake elevation on the plume can only be interpreted as signifying that lake depth variations are the controlling mechanism.

The parameter describing lake water depth can be taken as lake surface elevation minus an effective lake bottom elevation which would result in a similar thermal distribution as the sloping bottom at Ginna. In order to reduce this parameter to dimensionless form, the length scale factor,  $\sqrt{a/2}$ , might be considered. However, since changes in channel cross section area, <u>a</u>, are due solely to changes in lake water depth, the use of  $\sqrt{a/2}$  as a scale factor would effectively be the same thing as considering the square root of the lake depth as the dimensionless parameter. This, of course, is no longer dimensionless, having the dimension of ft<sup>2</sup>. A better choice as scale factor would be the average lake depth. This value is independent of the instantaneous lake depth. Therefore, in place of aspect ratio, a dimensionless lake depth is used, which is defined as,

$$D = \frac{E-b}{\overline{E}-b}$$
(13)

where:	E = lake surface elevation, ft
	<pre>b = effective lake bottom elevation, ft</pre>
	$\overline{E}$ = average lake surface elevation, ft
	D = dimensionless lake depth

The use of D rather than A as a describing parameter leaves in question the appropriate functional form to be used in describing the centerline excess temperature of the plume. The functional form of the aspect ratio used by Shirazi<sup>(6)</sup> was,

$$f(A) = A^{e'}$$
(14)

where f(A) = functional dependence of T on A. Stefan, et al<sup>(7)</sup> used,

$$f(A) = A^{d'-e'T}$$
(15)

The lake depth, or plume bottom interference, will have a varying effect along the length of a thermal plume. Initially, the plume would not interact significantly with the bottom. As the water is transported further from the discharge, turbulent shears induced by the discharge jet momentum would tend to deepen the plume, thereby resulting in greater bottom interference. As the discharge momentum was dissipated, buoyant forces would cause the plume bottom to rise off the lake bottom. Therefore, the functional form describing the dependence of T on D must possess the characteristic of an extremum at some value of T between 0 and 1. An extension of equations 14 and 15 leads to the form,

$$f(D) = D^{n_1 + n_2 (T-1) + n_3 (T-1)^2}$$
(16)

and T-1 is used in place of T so that the value at the end of the core region, T=1, is readily apparent. The use of T-1 rather than T does not change the function but does change the correlation constants.

Substituting equation 16 for 15 in equation 10 results in,

$$\chi = (a'-b'T)^{c'} D^{1+n} 2^{(T-1)+n} 3^{(T-1)^{2}} \exp\left[a'+\beta'\ln F+\gamma'(\ln F)^{2}\right] (17)$$

Equation 17 was investigated with respect to the major temperature dependence,

$$f(T) = (a'-b'T)^{C'}$$
 (18)

where: f(T) describes the major interdependence of T and  $\chi$ . This functional form, although adequately describing the shape of the Ginna data found in Figure 1.4-1, is statistically very difficult to work with due to the impossibility of expressing it in linear form. Also, as described in Section 1.4.1.1.3, less than 1% of the Ginna data has dimensionless excess centerline temperatures greater than 0.8, the lower limit of the range of Stefan's data. Equation 18 was used to fit sample data for T<0.8. It was found that b'>a'. Therefore, f(T) in equation 18 is negative for T=1. This, of course, is physically unrealistic. The dual problems of physical realism and difficulty of manipulation required a different function than that given in equation 18.

In earlier parts of this section, the inadequacy of Shirazi's<sup>(6)</sup> functional form, which can be derived from equation 1 as,

$$f(T) = a'T^{b'}$$
(19)

where a' and b' are the inverses of the correlation constants indicated in equation 1, was discussed. Equation 18, on the other hand, does provide a clue to a convenient and realistic function. Rather than using a'-b'T as the base for an exponent c', c' was used as a base for the exponent a'-b'T. This can be expressed as,

$$f(T) = c'^{a'-b'T}$$
 (20)

Equation 20 can be transformed to,

$$f(T) = \exp \left[\phi' + \psi'(T-1)\right]$$
(21)

. . . \_

where:  $\phi' = (a'-b') \ln c' = new correlation constant$  $\psi' = -b' \ln c' = new correlation constant$ 

and a',b' and c' are the values appropriate for equation 20. Note that one less correlation constant is necessary for the description f(T) in the form of equation 21 than is required in the form of equation 20. As in equation 16, T-1 is used rather than T so that the value of f(T) at the end of the core region is readily calculable.

Unlike equation 18, equation 21 has the advantage of always being positive at the end of the core region . This is readily apparent by substituting T=1, the definition of the end of the core region, into equation 21. The result is

$$f(T) = e^{\varphi'} at T = 1$$
 (21a)

This function is greater than zero for any value of  $\phi$ '.

Equation 21 has the additional advantage of being readily expanded to include higher powers of T-1. For example,

$$f(T) = \exp \left[ \phi' + \psi (T-1) + \theta (T-1)^2 \right]$$
(22)

where:  $\phi^{"}, \psi$ , and  $\theta$  are correlation constants, might be used to improve the fit of equation 21 to the data.

For illustration purposes, the method of least squares, which will be explained in Section 1.4.1.1.3, was used to determine

the constants of equations 21 and 22 so as to provide the best fit to the worst case, surface curve of Figure 1.4-1, which shows the actual trend of the Ginna data. Figure 1.4-3, is a graphical depiction of the results. It is seen that both equations 21 and 22 are good representations of the data, but, as expected, equation 22 is a slightly better fit.

Replacing equation 18 with equation 22 in equation 17 results in,

$$X = \exp\left[\phi'' + \psi(T-1) + \theta(T-1)^2\right] D^{n_1+n_2(T-1)+n_3(T-1)^2}$$

$$x \exp\left[a' + \beta' \ln F + \gamma' (\ln F)^2\right]$$
Equation 23 can also be expressed as,
$$(23)$$

$$\chi = \exp \left[ \phi + \psi (T-1) + \theta (T-1)^2 \right]_{D}^{n_1 + n_2 (T-1) + n_3 (T-1)^2}$$

$$\chi = \exp \left[ \beta' \ln F + \gamma' (\ln F)^2 \right]$$
(24)

where  $\phi = \phi'' + a'$  of equation 23 = new correlation constant.

Equation 24 represents the general form used in this study to determine the dependence of temperature excess along the plume centerline on lake elevation and Froude number. The latter depends on discharge velocity, which, for a constant discharge flow rate and channel width such as exists at Ginna, depends only upon lake elevation, discharge flow depth, which also depends only on lake elevation at Ginna, and  $(\rho_a - \rho)/\rho$ , which, for a constant excess discharge temperature, depends only on lake temperature. Therefore, for a constant discharge excess temperature, equation 24 actually shows the effects of varying lake elevation and lake temperature on the centerline excess temperature of the plume.

#### 1.4.1.1.2.3 Plume Half Width

The plume half width,  $r_h$ , is a convenient parameter for describing the manner in which the plume spreads. Shirazi<sup>(6)</sup> assumed that the same functional form describes plume half width and centerline temperature excess. However, Figure 1.4-1 indicates that the functional form describing the dependence of  $r_h$  on s is quite different than the form of T versus s indicated in equation 21 or 22.

Engelund and Pederson<sup>(13)</sup> developed a semi-empirical model to describe the temperature distribution near the discharge point

of a high Froude number surface jet discharging into a deep, stagnant water body. Edinger, et al (14) reduced the work of Engelund and Pederson into two possible surface distributions of excess temperature,

$$\frac{\Delta T}{\Delta T_{o}} = \frac{\Delta T_{c}}{\Delta T_{o}} \exp\left[-\frac{14}{9} F^{2} \left(\frac{r}{\sqrt{a/2}}\right)^{2} \chi^{-14/3}\right]$$
(25)

and

$$\frac{\Delta T}{\Delta T_{o}} = \frac{\Delta T_{c}}{\Delta T_{o}} \left[ 1 + \frac{14}{9} F^{2} \left( \frac{r}{\sqrt{a/2}} \right)^{2} \chi^{-14/3} \right]^{-1}$$
(26)

where: r = plume width at excess temperature  $\Delta T$  and dimensionless longitudinal distance X, ft

and  $\Delta T = \text{excess temperature at location } (X,r), {}^{O}F$ 

If  $\Delta T$  is taken as one half  $\Delta T_c$ , then  $r=r_h$  in equation 25 and 26 by definition.

If equations 25 and 26 are then solved for  $r_{\rm h}$  the results are,

$$r_{0.5} = 0.67 \chi^{7/3} F^{-1}$$
 (27)

and

$$r_{0.5} = 0.80 \ \chi^{7/3} \ F^{-1}$$
 (28)

where  $r_{0.5} = r_h / \sqrt{a/2} = dimensionless plume half width. Equations 27 and 28 correspond to equations 25 and 26 respectively.$ 

Equations 27 and 28 can be seen to be similar in form to Shirazi's function; that is,

 $r_{0.5} = a' \chi^{b'} F^{d'}$  (29)

where a',b' and d' are correlation constants different than those of equation 1.

Equation 29 differs from equation 1 in that no functional dependence is present for R, a', and A. R and a' are not included because Engelund and Pederson considered a stagnant receiving water. As discussed near the beginning of this section,  $r_0$  may be taken as independent of R and a' for the present study: That is, from

the standpoint of plume dilution at Ginna, Lake Ontario may be considered as a stagnant body of water.

The aspect ratio, A, was thoroughly discussed in Section 1.4.1.1.2.2. It was shown that D, the dimensionless lake depth, was a better variable to consider than A for a shallow receiving water body such as Lake Ontario at the Ginna site. However, experimental data (2,8) has shown that the plume half width does not depend upon the receiving water depth. Therefore, it is expected that  $r_{0.5}$  will depend only on X and F in a manner similar to equation 29.

Note that the plume half width curves of Figure 1.4-1 would be straight lines if equation 29 were a proper description of the Ginna data. Since they are not, the functional form of equation 29 is extended in a similar manner to the extension of equation 8 into equation 9. The resulting equation, which includes a possible lake depth dependence is,

$$r_{0.5} = \exp\left[\alpha + \beta \ln \chi + \gamma (\ln \chi)^2 + \delta \ln F + \epsilon (\ln F)^2 + \zeta \ln D\right]$$
(30)

Note that the functional form of D is not as complicated as the form for X and F. This is because, as explained previously,  $r_{0.5}$  is not expected to depend on D. If the data verifies this, the last term in equation 30 will be dropped. If the analysis of the Ginna data shows otherwise, the functional form of D can easily be expanded into a form similar to either equation 9 or equation 16.

## 1.4.1.1.2.4 Lateral Distribution

The lateral excess temperature distribution in a surface jet discharge plume is usually assumed to be Gaussian in form. (3,6,8,11,14) In those cases where other forms are used, (2,13) the resulting distribution does not vary greatly from that which would be given by a Gaussian relationship.

The lateral temperature distribution at Ginna will therefore be expressed as,

$$T_{m} = n \exp \left[-p \left(r/r_{h}\right)^{2}\right]$$
(31)

where:  $T_m = \Delta T / \Delta T_c$  = dimensionless lateral temperature at r n and p = constants

and r and r<sub>h</sub> are as defined previously. Outside of the core

region, r must be 0 when  $T_m = 1$ . Also, by definition, r must equal r, when  $T_m = 0.5$ . Substituting these conditions into equation 31, and solving for n and p results in,

> n = 1 (32) p = ln 2 = 0.693

The use of equations 31 and 32 does not allow for any variation of the postulated distribution which may be inherent in the Ginna data. However, data variations can be accounted for by assuming that separate distributions be calculated for the ranges  $0.5 \le T \le 1$  and  $T \le 0.5$ . If equation 31 is used for both ranges, then it has been shown previously that equations 32 must hold for  $0.5 \le T \le 1$ . However, the distribution for  $T \le 0.5$  requires only that  $T=r_h$  when  $T_m=0.5$ . Substituting this criterion into equation 31 and solving for n in terms of p results in,

$$n = 0.5 \exp(p)$$
 (33)

If p=ln 2 then equation 33 is equivalent to equation 32.

The lateral distribution for this study is therefore taken as equations 31 and 33. The equation set 32 is noted as a special case of equation 33.

# 1.4.1.1.3 Data Description

# 1.4.1.1.3.1 Data Collection

Rochester Gas and Electric Corporation has an extensive field survey program for collecting lake temperature data in the vicinity of the Ginna discharge. During surveys, temperatures are continuously recorded from thermistors at four different depths along a grid pattern which is traversed by boat. Figure 1.4-4 shows the survey transect locations, bearing lines, and nine site-alignment target locations. The boat follows the bearing lines, its passing a transect intersection being noted on a multichannel strip-chart recorder. A pass is also made between intersections 14 and 20 to determine the fine structure of the plume in the region near the discharge. Ambient temperatures are determined from offshore thermal measurements outside of the plume area. When no horizontal thermal gradient is measured, ambient temperature is considered to have been sampled. The measured data are converted into isotherm plots at each depth. The surveys are performed approximately monthly, except during winter months and periods of plant shutdown. See Table 1.4-10.

# 1.4.1.1.3.2 Data Range

The above described isotherm plots for the period from the middle of 1970 to the middle of 1975 served as the data source for this analysis. As described in Section 1.4.1.1.2, the temperature excess at various locations within the plume will be functions of F, the densimetric Froude number, and D, the dimensionless lake depth. The latter variable, however, depends only upon the lake elevation, E.

In order to determine the Froude number, the discharge temperature, ambient temperature, and lake level, or discharge depth, must be known. The former two variables are measured by RG&E. Lake levels were obtained from NOAA(15) records for the Rochester gaging station. The levels used were the daily means reported by NOAA for the dates of the thermal surveys. For consistency, Froude numbers were calculated using the ambient temperature at the lake surface. Table 1.4-2 lists the survey dates and their associated values of F and E. Figure 1.4-5 is a graphical interpretation of Table 1.4-2, each point representing one survey. The figure shows that, although F ranges from 2.87 to 12.88, most of the data lie between 3.5 and 10. The elevation data, in feet USGS, range from 244.90 to 249.25, with the major cluster lying between 245 and 247.

Two survey dates, 3/19/70 and 3/30/72, were available but were not used. The ambient water temperatures in these two cases were  $33^{\circ}F$  and  $34^{\circ}F$ , respectively. Due to the fact that water density reaches a maximum at  $39.2^{\circ}F$ , the thermal plume will sink below the lake surface rather than remain at the surface for low excess temperatures. This plume behavior can not be described in the same way as buoyant plume behavior. Therefore, these two dates were not used as part of the data base for this study.

## 1.4.1.1.3.3 Surface Data Reduction

Once the describing parameters F and E were found for each date, the thermal plume behavior for the corresponding survey was characterized. This was done by examining the appropriate surface isotherm plot (the surface data were actually taken at a depth of 0.5 feet) and determining the plume centerline by drawing a smooth curve through the vertices of the isotherms. The plume centerline in the plane of the isotherms defined the s coordinate.

Centerline temperatures were read at values of s corresponding to isotherm vertices. Centerline excess temperatures were determined by subtracting the field measured lake ambient temperature. Plume half widths were found corresponding to the s coordinates of isotherm vertices whose excess temperatures were multiples of 2. In this way, actual isotherm boundaries could be measured, thereby eliminating any need for determining half widths from interpolated values. The centerline temperature excesses were then scaled to the discharge excess temperature, while s and  $r_h$  were normalized to  $\sqrt[n]{a/2}$ . The resulting dimensionless values defined the temperature decay and spreading characteristics of the plume.

Table 1.4-3 is a reproduction of the computer printout giving the data obtained by the methods described above. In this table, DT=date, FR=densimetric Froude number, ELEV=lake elevation in ft USGS, NO.PTS(CL)=number of centerline excess temperature data points for that date, NO.PTS(RHALF)=number of half width data points for that date, X=dimensionless longitudinal distance, T=dimension-less centerline excess temperature, and RHALF=dimensionless plume half width. A value of RHALF=-0.0 indicates that the plume half width at the corresponding longitudinal distance was not reduced. The bottom of the table shows that 425 centerline excess temperature data points and 197 half width data points were reduced at the surface. Figures 1.4-6 and 1.4-7 show typical data for the dates 9/25/70 and 10/27/71 in the same graphical form as Figure 1.4-1.

## 1.4.1.1.3.4 Subsurface Data Reduction

Temperature surveys at Ginna show that the thermal plume rarely goes below 9 or 10 feet. Therefore, the temperature distribution at a depth of 6 feet was used to describe the subsurface thermal effects. The surface and 6 foot isotherms describe the three dimensional aspects of the thermal distribution at Ginna. Subsurface temperatures over the 5 years of data were sampled at various depths. Therefore, lake depths of 6 feet ±13 inches were nominally identified as 6 foot data.

Some of the survey dates did not include subsurface isotherms within the indicated depth range. Others had to be neglected due to anomalies in the isotherm patterns. This left 32 of the 43 surveys to form the subsurface data base for this study. Table 1.4-2 shows the dates and depths of those surveys that were used to indicate the subsurface behavior of the plume. A dash in the Subsurface Isotherm Depth column indicates a survey that was not used as input to the model.

The subsurface isotherms were measured and reduced in exactly the same manner as the surface isotherms, except for the determination of ambient temperature. In order to achieve the most realistic analysis of the Ginna data, any vertical lake temperature stratification was accounted for by taking the ambient temperature as that indicated in the appropriate isotherm plot rather than that measured at the lake surface. Table 1.4-4 gives the data reduced in the manner described above. The headings for this table are the same as those given for Table 1.4-3, the surface data listing. 259 centerline excess temperature data points and 111 half width data points were reduced. Figures 1.4-8 and 1.4-9 show typical plots of the data for 5/1/70 and 10/1/73.

## 1.4.1.1.4 Statistical Methods and Resulting Equations

#### 1.4.1.1.4.1 Statistical Methods

In order to mathematically describe the Ginna data, a relation must be established between the data and the describing mathematical expressions. An often used method is the method of least squares.

The criterion describing the relationship between the data and the describing mathematical expression is,

$$\bar{s} = \sum_{i=1}^{m} \bar{e}_{i}^{2}$$
 must be a minimum, (34)

where m = number of data points

- $\bar{e}_i$  = difference between the i<sup>th</sup> data point and the value of the mathematical expression at that point; that is, the error of the mathematical expression at data point i
- $\overline{S}$  = sum of the squares of the errors. and

This method determines the coefficients of the mathematical expression such that the sum of the squares of the errors are minimized. A necessary and sufficient condition for equation 34 is, (16)

$$\frac{\partial \bar{S}}{\partial a_j} = 0 \tag{35}$$

where:

a = the correlation constants which define the describing mathematical expression.

Equations 35 describe one equation for each correlation constant that is to be determined, thereby uniquely defining the solution.

If the describing mathematical expression is linear in the correlation constants, equations 35 define a system of simultaneous linear equations. The solution to such a system is always obtainable. On the other hand, if the mathematical expression is nonlinear in the correlation constants, equations 35 must be solved by numerical iterative techniques. If the number of equations are large and the form of the equation is complicated, the numerical iterative techniques will not always converge to the solution.(17) It is for this reason that equation 9 is preferred to equation 6 in describing the Froude number effect on centerline temperature excess, as described in Section 1.4.1.1.2.

# 1.4.1.1.4.2 Centerline Temperature Excess

As shown in Section 1.4.1.1.2, equation 24, which is repeated below, represents the expected form of the relationship among the dimensionless centerline distance, x, the dimensionless centerline excess temperature, T, the dimensionless lake depth, D, and the densimetric Froude number, F.

$$x = \exp\left[\phi + \psi(T-1) + \theta(T-1)^{2}\right] D^{n_{1}+n_{2}(T-1)+n_{3}(T-1)^{2}} \exp\left[\beta'\ln F + \gamma'(\ln F)^{2}\right] (24)$$

As described in the discussion of statistical methods, it is advantageous to express equation 24 in such a way that the resulting equation is linear in the correlation constants  $\phi$ ,  $\psi$ ,  $\theta$ ,  $n_1, n_2, n_3$ ,  $\beta'$ , and  $\gamma'$ . Such a transformation may be accomplished by taking the natural logarithm of both sides of equation 24. The result is,

$$\ln x = \phi + \psi (T-1) + \theta (T-1)^{2} + n_{1} \ln D + n_{2} (T-1) \ln D + n_{3} (T-1)^{2} \ln D + \beta' \ln F + \gamma' (\ln F)^{2} (36)$$

The final determination of the equation describing the Ginna data proceeded in steps. The first step involved determining how well the basic x, T relationship fit the data. The goodness of fit of the mathematical formula to the data was determined by, (18)

$$R = \sqrt{\frac{\sum_{i=1}^{m} (y_i - \bar{y})^2 - \sum_{i=1}^{m} (y_i - \hat{y}_i)^2}{\sum_{i=1}^{m} (y_i - \bar{y})^2}}$$

(37)

where:

m = number of data points  $y_i$  = the data point ln  $x_i$   $\bar{y}$  = average value of ln x for the m data points  $\hat{y}_i$  = predicted value of ln  $x_i$ and R = correlation coefficient.

As can be seen from examining equation 37, R represents the success of the mathematical formulation to predict the data as measured against how well the average of the data describes individual data points. If the mathematical formula is an exact description of the data, R=1. If the formula is no better than using the average of the data, R=0. Therefore, the better the description of the mathematical formula to the data, the greater will be the value of R.

After the correlation coefficient was determined for the basic x, T relationship,

$$\ln x = \phi + \psi (T-1) \tag{38}$$

additional terms in equation 38 were investigated. For example,

$$\ln x = \phi + \psi(T-1) + \theta(T-1)^{2}$$
(39)

was next investigated. It was found that this additional term resulted in an insignificant improvement in the data fit. The functional dependence of F on the centerline excess temperature was next investigated by first considering,

$$\ln x = \phi + \psi (T-1) + \beta' \ln F + \gamma' (\ln F)^{2}$$
(40)

and then considering,

$$\ln x = \phi + \psi(T-1) + \beta' \ln F.$$
(41)

It was found that the addition of the Froude number dependence to equation 38 resulted in an insignificant statistical advantage for the surface isotherms. However, equation 41 was seen to provide an improvement in the correlation coefficient for the 6 foot depth isotherms, although equation 40 was no improvement over equation 41.

The effect of dimensionless lake depth, D, on the excess centerline temperature was investigated in a manner similar to the investigation of the densimetric Froude number. It was found that the effect of D on the Ginna isotherms was small. After determining in this way that equations 38 and 41 represented the centerline temperature excess at the surface and 6 feet, respectively, the complete form of equation 36 was checked to see if any synergistic effects existed. The correlation coefficient was found to be substantially unchanged. The final equations, therefore, that were used to describe the centerline temperature excess at Ginna were

$$\ln X = \varphi + \psi (T-1), \text{ at the surface}$$
(38)

and

$$\ln x = \phi + \psi (T-1) + \beta' \ln F, \text{ at 6 foot depth}$$
(41)

The constants  $\phi$  and  $\psi$  are, of course, different for the two depths. The values of R for the surface and 6 feet are, 0.784 and 0.746, respectively. The standard deviations,  $\sigma$ , of the independent variable, ln x, at the two depths are, 0.351 and 0.374, respectively. Table 1.4-5 summarizes the correlation constants and associated statistical data for the surface and 6 feet.

The form of equation 38 shows that the excess centerline temperature at the surface of the Ginna thermal plume is unaffected by the Froude number and dimensionless lake depth over the range of (19) the Ginna data. This type of behavior was observed by Jen, et al, and Engelund and Pederson;<sup>(13)</sup> both of whom found that the excess centerline temperature at the surface was dependent only upon the distance from the discharge for large Froude numbers. Shirazi;<sup>(6)</sup> on the other hand, reports a Froude number dependence, although it is not known whether he investigated the statistical significance of this dependence.

The six foot depth excess centerline temperatures were found to to be affected by the Froude number, although not affected by the dimensionless lake depth except as that variable affects the Froude number. As the Froude number increases, the subsurface centerline

temperature excess increases. This is expected because an increase in Froude number indicates that the inertial forces increase relative to the buoyant forces. This implies that the plume bottom does not rise until later in its development. The higher the Froude number, the longer the plume remains in contact with the six foot depth ambient water. As the Froude number decreases, the longitudinal distance at which the thermal plume separates from the six foot contour decreases. This heat rises to the surface, causing plume spreading to increase, as will be shown in Section 1.4.1.1.4.3.

The statistical results given in Table 1.4-5 show that the mathematical model is a better representation of the surface data than of the six foot data. This reflects the fact that the six foot data actually represents lake depths between 4'll" and 7'l", whereas the surface data were always at a depth of 0'6".

Figure 1.4-10 shows xvs T for the lake surface. Figure 1.4-11 gives the same information for six foot depth.

1.4.1.1.4.3 Plume Half-Width

The expected form of the plume half width relationship is,

$$r_{0.5} = \exp\left[\alpha + \beta \ln x + \gamma (\ln x)^{2} + \delta \ln F + \epsilon (\ln F)^{2} + \xi \ln D\right]$$
(30)

as shown in Section 1.4.1.1.2.3. As described in Section 1.4.1.1.4.1, a form of this equation which is linear in the correlation constants,  $\alpha$ ,  $\beta$ ,  $\gamma$ ,  $\delta$ ,  $\epsilon$ , and  $\xi$ , is preferred. Such a form can be obtained by taking the natural logarithm of each side of equation 30. The resulting equation is,

$$\ln x_{0.5} = a + \beta \ln x + \gamma (\ln x)^2 + \delta \ln F + \epsilon (\ln F)^2 + \xi \ln D.$$
 (31)

As in the case of the centerline temperature excess determination, the basic  $r_{0,5}$ , x relationship was determined from

$$\ln r_{0.5} = a + \beta \ln x . \tag{42}$$

The effect of adding the term in  $(\ln x)^2$  was then studied. It was found that this effect was significant. The addition of the terms describing F were investigated by studying first,

$$\ln r_{0.5} = \alpha + \beta \ln x + \gamma (\ln x)^2 + \delta \ln F$$
(43)

and then,  $\ln r_{0.5} = \alpha + \beta \ln x + \gamma (\ln x)^2 + \delta \ln F + \epsilon (\ln F)^2$ . (44)

It was found, for both the surface and subsurface data, that equation 43 resulted in a definite improvement in the fit to the data, but no further improvement was gained through the addition of the term in  $(\ln F)^2$ , equation 44. The term in ln D was then considered and found to be statistically unjustifiable. The complete equation 31 was then tried and the correlation coefficient was found to be essentially the same as for equation 43. Therefore, the final form of the plume half width equation was taken as,

$$\ln r_{0,5} = \alpha + \beta \ln x + \gamma (\ln x)^2 + \delta \ln F, \qquad (43)$$

for both surface and six foot depth isotherms.

The correlation constants  $\alpha$ ,  $\beta$ ,  $\gamma$ , and  $\delta$  are different at the two depths and are given in Table 1.4-5. The correlation coefficients, R, for the surface and six foot depth equations are, 0.647 and 0.600. The standard deviations,  $\sigma$ , of the independent variable, ln r<sub>0.5</sub>, at the two depths are, 0.481 and 0.570 respectively.

The form of equation 43 indicates that the dimensionless lake depth does not affect the plume half width, except through its effect on the densimetric Froude number. This characteristic was hypothesized in Section 1.4.1.1.2.3 and confirmed by the statistical study. The Froude number behavior, in which  $\delta$  is less than zero, agrees with that of Shirazi (6) Jen, et al (19) and Engelund and Pederson. (13) In fact, Jen found the dependence of the half width on the densimetric Froude number at the water surface to be as  $F^{-0.25}$ . The Ginna data shows this dependence as  $F^{-0.264}$ .

The fact that the surface plume widths increase with decreasing Froude number was discussed in Section 1.4.1.1.4.2. As the Froude number decreases, the effect of buoyancy increases. Therefore, the plume rises from the six foot contour more quickly, resulting in greater spreading on the surface. This is exactly the behavior predicted by the centerline temperature excess and plume half width relations.

Figure 1.4-12 and 1.4-13 show the plume half widths as a function of centerline distance and densimetric Froude number. The surface isotherms are seen to have half widths always greater than those at six foot depth, illustrating the effect of buoyancy on plume behavior.

## 1.4.1.1.4.4 Lateral Distribution

As shown in Section 1.4.1.1.2.4, the lateral distribution is expected to have the form,

$$T_{m} = n \exp\left[-p(r/r_{h})^{2}\right].$$
 (31)

The Ginna lateral distribution can be determined by measuring the r values corresponding to the various isotherms at each centerline point where  $r_h$  has been determined. Such an undertaking, however, would be impossible to complete within any reasonable time constraint due to the large number of r values which could be measured (from 3-15 points must be measured for each  $r_h$ ). Instead of considering all 43 surveys, five surveys were chosen for the lateral distribution analysis. The survey dates were 5/1/70, 12/1/71, 5/14/73, 11/13/73, and 8/4/75. They were chosen so as to represent the range of lake elevations and Froude numbers experienced by the Ginna discharge.

For each centerline point at which the plume half width was measured, values of n and p were determined for  $0.5 \le T \le 1$  and  $T_m \le 0.5$  in accordance with equations 31 and 33, the latter being,

$$n = 0.5 \exp(p)$$
 (33)

Equation 33 results from the fact that  $r = r_h$  at  $T_m = \Delta T / \Delta T_c = 0.5$ , as shown in Section 1.4.1.1.2.4.

The values of n and p were determined from a least squares fit of the studied lateral distributions, of which there were 23 in the five surveys. It was found that p=0.661 described the distributions for 0.5 < T < 1 and p=0.663 described the distributions for  $T_m < 0.5$ . As described in the analytical discussion, the fact that  $T_m = 1$  when r = 0 and  $T_m = 0.5$  when  $r=r_n$  implies that  $P = \ln 2 = 0.693$ . Table 1.4-6 compares the lateral distributions found from the Ginna data with that of a normalized Gaussian (n=1, p=ln 2). It is seen that, except for values of  $T_m$  near one, the normalized Gaussian is virtually the same as the Ginna distribution. Since it was shown that the normalized Gaussian must apply for the region  $0.5 \le T \le 1$ , and since the two distributions are almost identical except for the small region where  $T_m \approx 1$ , the normalized Gaussian is taken as the appropriate distribution. That is

$$T_{m} = \exp\left[-\ln 2(r/r_{h})^{2}\right]$$
(45)

describes the lateral temperature distribution. This distribution is the one most frequently used by investigators of thermal plumes. (3,6,8,11,14) Figure 1.4-14 is a graphical depiction of the lateral distribution, equation 45.

## 1.4.1.1.4.5 Possible Sources of Data Scatter

Scatter in the correlation model may result from either inadequacies in the model or inaccuracies in the data. Inadequacies in the model would stem from neglecting important mechanisms which affect the thermal distribution. The major model assumption was that Lake Ontario currents do not affect the thermal plume except for a gradual bending of its trajectory. Such an assumption was shown to be valid for current velocities much less than the discharge velocity, a condition normally expected at Ginna. Greater current velocities result in increased mixing with the ambient in addition to the bending of the jet trajectory. Any increase in ambient entrainment was not accounted for by the correlation model. Section 1.4.1.1.2 discusses the other mechanisms which affect the Ginna thermal plume.

Data inaccuracies are inherent in any sampling program. The inaccuracies of the temperature measuring devices, inaccuracies in boat position and speed determinations, and inaccuracies in the determination of sampling depth due to the presence of waves cannot be eliminated.

- - -

A perhaps more important data error source lies in the determination of ambient temperatures and therefore the determination of excess temperatures. The ambient temperature for each survey was obtained by sampling offshore of the thermal plume. However, Chermack and Galletta <sup>(20)</sup> found that the undisturbed ambient at Ginna always exhibits a horizontal thermal gradient between the shoreline and 5000 feet offshore. When this gradient is positive, as it is from March until August, the Ginna data excess temperatures are overstatements of their actual value. When the gradient is negative, as it is from September until February, the Ginna data excess temperatures are understatements of their true value. Table 1.4-7 shows the monthly temperature difference found by Chermack and Galletta between the shoreline and 5000 feet offshore in the vicinity of the Ginna site for the years 1969-1972. It is seen that the yearly average gradient is +0.6°F between these points. Of the Ginna thermal surveys, 60% were sampled during positive gradient months and 40% during negative gradient months. The average gradient between the shoreline and 5000 feet offshore for all of the thermal surveys was +0.7°F, thereby indicating that the overall effect of the horizontal

temperature gradient is to make the excess temperature data conservatively high, although the opposite will be true for thermal surveys taken between September and February. In practice, no surveys are taken in January and February.

## 1.4.1.1.5 Model Application

## 1.4.1.1.5.1 Isotherm Construction

The first step in constructing isotherm maps from the mathematical model is a specification of the ambient conditions. Lake elevation and ambient temperature uniquely determine, for a constant temperature rise, the densimetric Froude number, F, and linear scale factor,  $\sqrt{a/2}$ , for a given discharge. The values at Ginna of the latter two parameters may be found from Figures 1.4-15 and 1.4-16 or calculated directly from their definitions. Note that the densimetric Froude numbers given in Figure 1.4-15 assume the Ginna design discharge excess temperature of 20°F. Dimensionless temperature excesses, T, along the plume trajectory, x, are then found from either Figure 1.4-10 or equation 38 for surface isotherms and either Figure 1.4-11 or equation 41 for six foot depth isotherms. At each location along the plume centerline, dimensionless half widths, r<sub>0,5</sub>, are calculated from equation 43 or Figures 1.4-12 (surface) and 1.4-13 (six foot depth). Multiplication of the dimensionless half widths and centerline distances by the linear scale factor and of the dimensionless centerline temperature excess by the discharge temperature excess,  $\Delta T_{c}$  , results in the corresponding dimensioned variables,  $r_h$ , s, and  $\Delta T_c$ . Use of Figure 1.4-14 or equation 45 then allows the calculation of the temperature excess at various distances normal to the centerline for each value of s and the corresponding value of r, and  $\Delta T$ . Within the core region, T=1, the lateral temperature profile changes from a constant to Gaussian. No data are available within this region. It can be assumed that the isotherms spread linearly between the discharge and the end of the core region.

## 1.4.1.1.5.2 Worst Case Isotherms

The surface and subsurface isotherms described in Section 1.4.1.1.5.1 are derived from expected values of the dimensionless centerline temperature excess and half width. However, due to data scatter, any single measurement will normally not conform to its expected value. This data behavior can be described by considering confidence limits around the expected value. That is, any single measurement may not conform to its expected value but it will have a certain probability, the confidence limit, of being within a specified range. The probability chosen for the confidence limit is frequently 0.95, or 95%. This confidence limit allows one to state with reasonable certainty that a single measurement will lie within a physically meaningful data range.

If two variables were directly proportional, the probability that both would exceed their 95% upper confidence limit would be the same as the probability that one would exceed its 95% upper confidence limit. If two variables were totally independent, then the probability that either will exceed its 77.6% upper confidence limit is 0.224, but the probability that both will exceed their 77.6% upper confidence limit is 0.95. Expressed another way, if two variables are directly proportional, their combined 95% upper confidence limit is the 95% upper confidence limit of each; whereas, if two variables are independent, their combined 95% upper confidence limit is the 77.6% upper confidence limit of each. Next, consider the case of two inversely proportional variables. The probability that both will exceed their 95% upper confidence limit is virtually zero since as one increases from its expected value toward its 95% upper confidence limit the other will decrease.

In this analysis we are dealing with a case which is intermediate of the latter two cases described in the previous paragraph. found by all investigators of the thermal plume phenomenon, for a given set of discharge conditions, half widths will always decrease with increasing isotherm lengths. Indeed, this must be true because a constant heat rejection rate implies a constant plume heat flux. Due to the many factors which affect thermal plumes, it is not possible to quantify this inverse relationship. The joint 95% upper confidence limit of centerline temperature excess and half width, therefore, cannot be quantified. However, an upper confidence limit can be ascribed to these variables. If the centerline temperature excess or plume half width were at its 95% upper confidence limit, the other variable should be less than its expected value due to the inverse relationship described A 95+% upper confidence limit (the exact confidence value above. is not determinable) can therefore be taken as either variable at the upper range of its 95% confidence limit with the other variable at its expected value. The resulting isotherms can be labelled "worst case."

Isotherm areas were calculated for the 95% confidence limit of centerline temperature excess with the expected plume half width and vice versa. Results from the former case indicated 3°F surface isotherm areas approximately 10% larger than the latter. Therefore, the former case is used to quantify "worst case" isotherm effects.

# 1.4.1.2 Comparison of Model With Data

As explained in Section 1.4.1.1.5.2, an individual measurement may not be equal to its expected value. The measurement must, therefore, be compared with some confidence range, 95% being chosen. Figures 1.4-6 through 1.4-9 show typical surface and six foot centerline temperature excess and plume half width data. Also shown are the 95% confidence limits corresponding to the ambient conditions prevalent on each date. Note that all of the data lies within the chosen confidence limits. Figure 1.4-8, surface data on 5/1/70, was specifically chosen in order to illustrate a case where centerline temperature excess data may be near their upper confidence limit. Note, however that the half width data are near their expected values. Most of the other data points are near their expected values, except for a few surface half width points on 10/27/71. Here again the centerline temperature excess data are near their expected values.

Section 1.4 .2.6 gives the plume size for a wide range of ambient conditions. As will be shown there, the worst case plume will have a 3°F surface area ranging up to approximately 470 acres. This can be compared with the largest 3°F area ever noted during the Ginna thermal surveys of 235.2 acres. The worst case plume will have a 3°F area at six foot depth ranging up to approximately 160 acres. This can be compared with the maximum value actually observed at Ginna of 120.4 acres. This illustrates the fact that the worst case plume is actually a 95+% confidence limit, as explained in Section 1.4.1.1.5.2. The above figures are exclusive of winter, when ambient conditions are such that the plume will sink. As explained in Section 1.4.1.1.3.2, the model has not been derived for these conditions. However, winter plume effects are addressed in Section 1.4.2.

As described in Section 1.4.1.1.3, Ginna thermal survey data taken from 5/1/70 through 8/4/75 were used to develop the mathematical model. Eight surveys were performed during the period from 9/11/75 through 11/5/76. These surveys were used as an independent check of the model. Three of the eight surveys had no 3°F isotherm existing at the six foot level. Three others had six foot thermal distributions which did not emanate from the discharge, an underlying assumption of the model. It is of interest to note, however, that these latter three had 3°F six foot depth areas 31, 33 and 92% of that given by worst case plume predictions corresponding to their ambient and discharge conditions.

The remaining two six foot depth temperature distributions along with the eight surface distributions were reduced to dimensionless form in the manner described in Section 1.4.1.1.3. Figures 1.4-17 through 26 show this data along with their associated 95% confidence limits. Two half width data points at the six foot depth and one point at the surface lie slightly outside the 95% confidence range on 10/21/75. Note that the corresponding centerline temperature excesses are near their expected value. These large half widths can be attributed to uncertainty in determining the plume trajectory. A different plume trajectory would result in different values of the dimensionless variables.

A number of centerline temperature excess data points at high excess temperatures are less than the low end of the 95% confidence range. These, together with the three surveys which showed no  $3^{\circ}F$  excess temperatures at six foot depth, is evidence suggesting that the model may be somewhat of an overstatement of the thermal plume size at Ginna. If the surveys performed subsequent to 8/4/75 were integrated into the model, predicted isothermal areas would probably be somewhat smaller than those given in this study.

## 1.4.2 THERMAL EFFECTS OF DISCHARGE

## 1.4.2.1 Ambient Conditions

As explained in Section 1.4.1, the temperature distribution resulting from the Ginna discharge will depend upon the lake elevation and lake temperature. Lake elevations were obtained from the daily records of NOAA's Rochester gaging station for the period from January 1953 through December 1976.(15) Lake temperatures were determined from the daily records of the Ginna intake water temperature for the period from January 1970 through November 1976.

Seasonal elevations and temperatures were determined from the daily records. The winter, spring, summer, and fall seasons were taken as consecutive three month periods beginning with January. Table 1.4-8 gives the seasonal lake temperatures and elevations.

## 1.4.2.2 Lake Bottom Temperature Rise

In May 1974, RG&E sponsored 3 field surveys to determine discharge induced lake bottom temperatures and velocities at the Ginna site. (See Section 1.4.3.1.2 for a discussion of bottom velocities). Excess temperatures and associated areas from these surveys were nondimensionalized in a manner similar to that described in Section 1.4.1.1. The relationship between excess temperatures and areas, for the conditions existing while the measurements were being performed, was found to be,

$$A_a = -18.86 \frac{\Delta T}{\Delta T_o} + 9.49$$
 (46)

and

 $A_{\rm m} = -20.22 \frac{\Delta T}{\Delta T_{\rm o}} + 13.35,$  (47)

where  $A_a$  = area of isotherm whose excess temperature is  $\Delta T$ , average of field measurements (acres)  $A_m$  = area of isotherm whose excess temperature is  $\Delta T$ , maximum of field measurements (acres)  $\Delta T$  = excess temperature and  $\Delta T_a$  = discharge excess temperature.

Equations 46 and 47 were determined for values of  $\Delta T/\Delta T_0$  between approximately 0.17 and 0.37. This corresponds to temperature excesses from approximately 3 to 7°F for a discharge excess temperature of 20°F.

The conditions existing during the field measurements were equivalent, for a discharge excess temperature of 20°F, to a lake elevation of 248.7 feet USGS and a lake temperature of 40°F. It can be assumed that the area-temperature behavior along the lake bottom follows the subsurface, six foot depth plume behavior determined in Section 1.4.1.1.4. In this manner, equations 46 and 47 will be extended to ambient conditions other than those existing during the measurements.

Although not enough information is available to define lake bottom isotherm shapes, two items of interest were noted. Firstly, the extent of the isotherms will range from approximately 700 feet for the 7°F isotherm to approximately 1000 feet for the 3°F isotherm. Secondly, the maximum widths of the isotherms occur at approximately 0.75 of the total distance along the centerline.

# 1.4.2.3 <u>Velocity Decay</u>

The decay of velocity along the path of the plume can be estimated from the temperature decay. In the near field, plume temperatures are decreased chiefly by mixing with the cooler ambient water. Some heat is also lost to the atmosphere, but, as shown in Section 1.4.1.1.2.1, this contribution is small. The decrease in plume velocity arises, as does the decrease in temperature, chiefly from mixing with the lower momentum ambient water. Therefore, it can be postulated that, in the near field, the dimensionless velocity decays in the same way as the dimensionless temperature.<sup>(14)</sup> This can be expressed as,

$$\frac{U}{U_{o}} = \frac{\Delta T}{\Delta T_{o}}$$
(48)

where U = plume excess velocityand  $U_{c} = discharge velocity$ .

Given the temperature decay and the discharge velocity, it is therefore possible to calculate the velocity at any point in the plume. Figure 1.4-27 shows the discharge velocity, which depends only on the lake elevation, for the range of conditions encountered at the site.

# 1.4.2.3.1 Exposure Time

The use of equation 48 in conjunction with the temperature decay determined in Section 1.4.1.1.4 allows determination of the time it takes for a parcel of water to cool to a given temperature. If this calculation is performed along the plume's surface centerline during still water conditions; maximum exposure times result. The relationship between time, distance, and velocity is,

$$\int_{t_0}^{t} dt = \int_{0}^{s} \frac{1}{u} ds, \qquad (49)$$

where

t = travel time from condenser entry to lake discharge

t = travel time from condenser entry to s

If equation 48 is substituted into 49, the result is,

$$t = t_{o} + \frac{\Delta T_{o}}{U_{o}} \int_{0}^{s} \frac{1}{\Delta T} ds$$
 (50)

where  $\Delta T$  is a function of s. Note that  $\Delta T$  at the centerline is given in Table 1.4-5.

1.4.2.3.2 Plume Trajectory

It is explained in Section 1.4.1.1.2.1 that the effect of the ambient currents, for the normally occurring current range at Ginna, is a gradual bending of the plume's trajectory. Since the model described in Section 1.4.1.1 is derived in terms of centerline distances along the path of the plume, the temperature distribution in the presence of an ambient current can be estimated from knowledge of the plume's trajectory.

The absolute velocity along the centerline of plume is the resultant of the plume and ambient velocity components. For an ambient velocity perpendicular to the discharge velocity, this leads to the expressions,

$$\sin \theta = \frac{U_c}{\sqrt{U_c^2 + U_a^2}}$$
(51)

anđ

$$\cos \theta = \frac{U_a}{\sqrt{U_c^2 + U_a^2}}$$
(52)

where 
$$U_c$$
 = plume centerline excess velocity  
 $U_a$  = ambient velocity  
 $\theta^a$  = angle between the ambient velocity component and  
the resultant velocity  
and  $\sqrt{U_c^2 + U_a^2}$  = resultant velocity.

If x is taken as the direction of the discharge and y as the direction of the ambient current, then

$$\frac{dx}{ds} = \sin \theta$$
(53)  
$$\frac{dy}{ds} = \cos \theta$$
(54)

anđ

Substituting equations 51 and 52 into 53 and 54, respectively, and integrating both sides yields,

$$\dot{x} = \int_{0}^{s} \frac{U_{c}}{\sqrt{U_{c}^{2} + U_{a}^{2}}} ds$$
(55)

anđ

$$y = \int_{0}^{s} \frac{U_{a}}{\sqrt{U_{c}^{2} + U_{a}^{2}}} ds , \qquad (56)$$

where x, y, and s are measured from the center of the discharge plane. Note that  $U_c$  can be calculated as a function of s by use of equation 48 and the information in Table 1.4-5.

## 1.4.2.4 Winter Recirculation

When intake temperatures drop below  $40^{\circ}$ F, such as occurs during the winter, discharge water is recirculated so that the condenser inlet water temperature is  $40^{\circ}$ F. This has the effect of lowering the flow rate of the discharge to the lake while raising the discharge excess temperature. Figure 1.4-28 shows the discharge flow rate and excess temperature as a function of ambient (intake) temperature.

Although the model developed in Section 1.4.1.1 is not directly applicable to ambient temperatures much below 40°F, it can be used as an indicator of the size of the winter plume. This is because

the basic mechanisms which govern plume dilution are similar whether the plume is buoyant or not. That is, dilution is governed by the mixing properties of the plume with the ambient. The major differences between the buoyant and non-buoyant cases are the buoyant plume will lose heat to the atmosphere while the non-buoyant plume will exhibit more complete vertical mixing. As shown in Section 1.4.1.1.2.1, the former difference is unimportant. The latter difference will cause a deepening of the thermal field. However, the increased vertical mixing will also result in more rapid decay of the discharge temperatures.

In the sections which follow, plume areas along the surface and six foot depth are presented for the winter season. The calculations are based on the model of Section 1.4.1.1 and are intended only as general guides to the overall extent of the thermal field. They are, accordingly, indicated as dashed lines in the appropriate figures. Volumes have also been calculated. These are shown as solid lines in order to demonstrate that, although the vertical trajectory of the winter plume makes the surface and six foot depth areas only general indications of plume extent, the volumes, or overall plume size, will be better approximations.

## 1.4.2.5 Seasonal Thermal Effects

Thermal effects of the Ginna discharge during normal (expected) and extreme (worst case) seasonal conditions follow. Figures describing the seasonal thermal effects are arranged by type rather than season. Figures 1.4-29 through 40 illustrate surface and six foot depth isotherm maps for the seasonal cases. Figures 1.4-41 through 44 give the corresponding isotherm areas, while Figure 1.4-45 relates lake bottom isotherm areas. Figure 1.4-46 shows isotherm volumes, 1.4-47 through 52 gives exposure times, and 1.4-53 through 58 illustrates plume trajectories.

All plume calculations assume a vertically uniform ambient temperature. If the ambient temperatures are not vertically uniform, such as occurs in the summer, the plant will take in colder water than will be seen by the discharge. This means that the discharge excess temperature will be decreased by the amount of stratification between the intake and discharge levels. This will reduce the thermal effects of the discharge for two reasons. First, the lower discharge excess temperature means lower excess temperatures throughout the plume's development. Second, the lower discharge excess temperature lowers the buoyancy of the plume, thus resulting in greater discharge diluting capabilities. Neglect of ambient stratification, therefore, results in conservatively large summer plume predictions.

#### 1.4.2.5.1 Expected Seasonal Conditions

Expected seasonal conditions, given in Table 1.4-8, are defined as the expected plume under average ambient conditions.

# 1.4.2.5.1.1 Expected Winter Plume

As explained in Section 1.4.2.4, the mathematical model was not derived for winter conditions. Because of the uncertainty in plume configuration, no isotherm maps were drawn. Figures 1.4-41 and 42 show surface and six foot depth areas calculated. from the model. These areas are presented to give a general idea as to plume extent and are indicated as dashed lines, as described in Section 1.4.2.4. Figure 1.4-46 gives the expected winter volumes, as calculated from the model. As noted in Section 1.4.2.4, these values are larger than those which will occur, due to the increased vertical mixing caused by the decreased buoyancy effects.

#### 1.4.2.5.1.2 Expected Spring Plume

Figures 1.4-29 and 30 show the expected surface and six foot depth isotherms. Figures 1.4-41 and 42 give the corresponding areas. Figure 1.4-45 gives the area along the lake bottom,

while volumes can be found from Figure 1.4-46. The 3°F isotherm has areas on the surface, six foot depth and bottom of 86, 32, and 5.6 acres, with a volume of 460 acre-feet. Figure 1.4-47 shows that the maximum time a parcel of water will be at 3°F or higher is 42 minutes.

Figure 1.4-53 shows the plume trajectory for alongshore currents of 0.17, 0.33, and 0.50 fps. Note that these trajectories do not take into account the presence of Smoky Point. Alongshore ambient currents will be deflected into the body of the lake due to the existence of Smoky Point. This phenomenon is not accounted for here. The trajectory curves assume an undeflected ambient current direction.

## 1.4.2.5.1.3 Expected Summer Plume

Figures 1.4-31 and 32 show the surface and six foot depth isotherms. 3°F areas along the surface, six foot depth, and bottom, as found in Figures 1.4-41, 42, and 45, are 87, 27, and 4.6 acres, respectively. The 3°F volume, as found in Figure 1.4-46, is 420 acrefeet. The 3°F exposure time, found in Figure 1.4-48, is 39 minutes. Figure 1.4-54 shows the plume trajectories for currents up to 0.5 fps. As noted in Section 1.4.2.5, these thermal effects are conservatively large in that ambient vertical temperature stratification is not considered.

#### 1.4.2.5.1.4 Expected Fall Plume

Table 1.4-8 shows the expected fall lake elevation to be over one foot lower than the spring and summer elevations. The resulting larger discharge velocity, in conjunction with the low ambient temperature, can be expected to cause a decrease in the plume size. This decrease should be most pronounced at the surface, as the increase in Froude number will increase plume mixing. Subsurface areas, however, will also be affected by the decrease in buoyant plume rise.

Expected fall isotherms can be found on Figures 1.4-33 and 34. 3°F areas, found on the same figures as the other expected seasonal conditions, are 63, 30, and 5.1 acres, corresponding to the surface, six foot depth, and bottom, respectively. The 3°F volume is 380 acre-feet. Note that, as expected, the overall plume size has decreased from the spring and summer, although the subsurface areas have not.

The maximum 3<sup>O</sup>F exposure time is 30 minutes, as seen in Figure 1.4-49. Figure 1.4-55 shows the plume trajectories.

## 1.4.2.5.2 Extreme Seasonal Conditions

Extreme seasonal conditions were defined as high lake elevations and high lake temperatures, both conditions being conducive to low rates of plume thermal decay. For the winter, when dischargeintake recirculation occurs, the lowest ambient temperature results in the largest thermal field due to the increase in excess temperature and decrease in discharge velocity. Seasonal extreme elevations and temperatures were taken as the daily extreme found in the entire record described in Section 1.4.2.1. These ambient conditions were combined with the "worst case" plume predictions described in Section 1.4.1.1.5.2 and the maximum bottom areas described in Section 1.4.2.2. The result can be considered an upper limit to the size of the Ginna plume. It should be noted that most plumes will exhibit behavior similar to the expected plumes, with the frequency of occurrence sharply decreasing as extreme plume behavior is approached. Table 1.4-8 shows the extreme seasonal conditions.

#### 1.4.2.5.2.1 Extreme Winter Plume

As explained in Section 1.4.2.4, the mathematical model was derived for buoyant plume behavior. During the winter, the negative buoyancy of the plume makes its configuration uncertain. Figures 1.4-43, 44 and 46 show the surface and six foot depth isothermal areas along with the volumes. As noted in Section 1.4.2.4, these values are conservatively large.

#### 1.4.2.5.2.2 Extreme Spring Plume

Figures 1.4-35 and 36 show the surface and six foot depth isotherm maps. Figures 1.4-43 and 44 give the corresponding areas for each season. Figures 1.4-45 and 46 give the seasonal lake bottom areas and volumes, respectively, for all seasonal conditions. The surface, six foot depth, and bottom 3°F areas are 463, 133 and 9.5 acres, respectively. The 3°F volume is 2100 acre-feet. The maximum 3°F exposure time, shown in Figure 1.4-50, is 155 minutes. Plume trajectories are given in Figure 1.4-56.

#### 1.4.2.5.2.3 Extreme Summer Plume

Figures 1.4-37 and 38 show the extreme summer plant induced thermal distributions. 3°F areas are 396, 119, and 8.5 acres, for the surface, six foot depth, and bottom, respectively. The 3°F volume is 1800 acres. Figure 1.4-51 gives the 3°F exposure time as 126 minutes. Figure 1.4-57 gives plume trajectories. As noted in Section 1.4.2.5, these thermal effects do not account for vertical temperature stratification in the ambient. Consideration of this phenomenon would lower the predicted effects of the summer plume.
## 1.4.2.5.2.4 Extreme Fall Plume

As in the case of the expected conditions, extreme fall conditions have lake elevations much less, more than two feet less in this case, than the extreme spring and summer conditions. In addition, the extreme fall lake temperature is much less than that of the extreme spring and summer. The result will be a decrease in plume size, chiefly reflected in near surface areas. 3°F surface, six foot depth, and bottom areas are 257, 111, and 7.9 acres, respectively. The 3°F volume is 1400 acres. The 3°F exposure time, as found from Figure 1.4-52 is 84 minutes, reflecting the relatively large discharge velocity and the rapid temperature decay. Extreme fall plume trajectories are given in Figure 1.4-58.

## 1.4.2.6 Parametric Thermal Plume Analysis

As shown in Section 1.4.1.1, of the factors which might affect the Ginna plume, only variations in lake elevations and temperatures will cause major variations in the size of the discharge plume. As the lake elevation increases, the discharge velocity decreases. This results in a decrease of the mixing capabilities of the plume. As the lake temperature increases, the nonlinear temperature-density relationship of water causes an increase in plume buoyancy. This behavior inhibits plume mixing and causes the plume to spread on the lake surface.

Surface and six foot depth isothermal areas were calculated for lake elevations of 244 to 250 feet USGS and lake temperatures of 40 through 80°F. Results for lake temperatures below 40°F, which include discharge-intake recirculation effects, are also shown for completeness. As indicated in Section 1.4.2.4, areas for ambient temperatures less than 40°F should be interpreted as indications of overall plume size. These areas are also useful in determining isothermal volumes, which will give a better, but still conservatively large, idea of the overall plume size for lake temperatures less than 40°F. It is of interst to note that surface isotherm areas decrease with decreasing lake temperature. However, below 40°F, surface isotherm areas will increase with decreasing lake temperatures due to winter recirculation (see Section 1.4.2.4). 'This behavior is noted on the figures discussed below.

Figures 1.4-59 through 62 show expected 2,3,5 and  $10^{\circ}$ F surface areas. For the range of conditions considered, other than winter, these values range from 56 to 225 acres, 41 to 167 acres, 24 to 97 acres, and 6.7 to 27 acres, respectively. As explained above, the isothermal areas increase with increasing lake temperatures and elevations. Figures 1.4-63 through 66 show expected 2,3,5 and  $10^{\circ}$ F six foot depth areas. For the non-winter conditions, these areas range from 31 to 57 acres, 22 to 40 acres, 12 to 20 acres, and 2.7 to 4.0 acres, respectively. Six foot depth areas increase with increasing lake elevation but decrease with increasing lake temperature. The former shows the effect of the decreased mixing caused by the decrease in discharge velocity. The latter is caused by an increase in plume buoyancy, causing the plume to rise from the six foot level earlier in its development. This increase in buoyant rise causes an increase in surface areas but a decrease in subsurface areas.

Figures 1.4-67 through 69 show isothermal areas along the lake bottom for lake temperatures between 40 and 80°F and lake elevations between 244 and 250 feet USGS. 3°F expected bottom areas range from 3.8 to 6.9 acres. The behavior of the lake bottom isotherms with varying temperatures and elevations is the same as the behavior of the six foot depth isotherms.

Figures 1.4-70 through 73 show worst case 2,3,5, and  $10^{\circ}$ F excess temperature areas along the surface. For the same range of lake elevations and lake temperatures considered for the expected plume discussion, these areas range, in acres, from 150 to 606, 116 to 471, 74 to 298, and 25 to 100, respectively. Six foot depth areas, shown in Figures 1.4-74 through 77, range from 100 to 216 acres, 75 to 159 acres, 45 to 90 acres, and 13 to 23 acres, respectively. Maximum 3°F lake bottom areas range from 5.4 to 11.3 acres.

Parametric isothermal volumes can be estimated from the surface and six foot depth isothermal area information. Note that lake bottom areas are always much less than six foot depth areas. Using the trapezoidal integration rule and assuming zero areas at 10 foot depth yields,

$$v = 3A_0 + 5A_6$$
 (57)

where V = volume (acre-feet)

 $A_0 =$  surface area (acres) and  $A_6 =$  six foot depth area (acres).

The use of equation 57 gives approximate 3°F expected volumes from 260 to 630 acre-feet for lake temperatures from 40 to 80°F and elevations from 244 to 250 feet USGS. 3°F worst case volumes range from 760 to 2000 acre-feet.

The centerline time-temperature decay of expected and worst case plumes were calculated for lake elevations of 244 through 250 feet USGS. As shown in Table 1.4-5, the surface centerline temperature decay is independent of Froude number, and, therefore, ambient temperature. Since it was assumed that the excess velocity decays in the same way as excess temperature, the calculated centerline surface exposure times are independent of ambient temperature. As shown in Figures 1.4-78 through 81, 3°F exposure times range from 21 to 76 minutes for the expected plume and 40 to 149 minutes for the worst case plume. The larger elevations result in longer exposure times because the discharge velocities are lower.

### 1.4.3 PHYSICAL EFFECTS OF DISCHARGE

## 1.4.3.1 Velocity Effects

## 1.4.3.1.1 Surface Velocities

As explained in Section 1.4.2.3, plume surface velocities can be assumed to decay in the same manner as plume surface temperatures. Discharge excess temperature has been taken as 20°F for all conditions except lake temperatures less than 40°F. Discharge velocity, on the other hand, varies with lake elevation, as shown in Figure 1.4-27.

Table 1.4-9 shows the surface excess velocity decay for seasonal conditions, as a function of distance along the plume trajectory. It is of interest to note that higher discharge velocities result in greater mixing of the discharge and ambient cooling water. This results in a greater velocity decay rate. Expected seasonal conditions show excess velocities of the same magnitude as the lake approximately 4000 feet from the discharge. This distance is approximately 8000 to 9000 feet for the extreme conditions.

## 1.4.3.1.2 Bottom Velocities

In May 1974, RG&E sponsored 3 field surveys to determine discharge induced lake bottom temperatures and velocities at the Ginna site. (See Section 1.4.2.2 for a discussion of bottom temperatures.) Velocities and areas were reduced to dimensionless form and the relationship between them determined. The result was,

$$A_a = -20.84 \frac{U}{U_o} + 9.20, .36 > U/U_o > .18$$
 (58)

and 
$$A_{\rm m} = -39.62 \frac{U}{U_{\rm o}} + 17.30$$
,  $.36 > U/U_{\rm o} > .18$  (59)

where

and

U	Ξ	bottom velocity
ບ	=	discharge velocity
Aa	=	area of isopleth of velocity U, average of field measurements (acres)
А <sub>т</sub>	=	area of isopleth of velocity U, maximum of field measurements (acres).

1.4-41

The areas determined from equations 58 and 59 were applied to conditions other than those existing during the field measurements by multiplying by appropriate scale factor ratios. Figure 1.4-82 shows average and maximum lake bottom scour areas, defined as areas along the lake bottom where the velocity is greater than 1 fps, for lake elevations from 244 to 250 feet USGS. Average scour areas range from 0.4 to 2.8 acres; maximum areas range from 0.5 to 5.2 acres. Spring, summer, and fall expected seasonal conditions correspond to average areas of 2.6, 2.6 and 2.8 acres, respectively. The higher area for fall reflects the lower lake elevation. Spring, summer, and fall extreme seasonal conditions correspond to maximum areas of 0.1, 2.4, and 4.7 acres, respectively. The low value for spring results from the high lake elevation, 250.19 feet USGS.

## 1.4.3.2 Concentrations

It is possible to determine the characteristics of chemical dilution in the Ginna discharge by drawing the analogy between temperature and chemical dilution. Both are chiefly products of mixing of discharge and ambient water. Temperature decay also occurs by atmospheric cooling but, as shown in Section 1.4.1.1.2.1, this is unimportant in the near field.

The characteristics (isopleth shape, area, and volume) of the chemical dilution will be the same as the characteristics of the thermal dilution if the dimensionless excess concentration is equal to the dimensionless excess temperature. That is,

$$\frac{C - C_a}{C_o - C_a} = \frac{\Delta T}{\Delta T_o} , \qquad (60)$$

where

C = concentration

C<sub>2</sub> = ambient concentration

 $C_0 = discharge concentration$ 

 $\Delta T = excess temperature$ 

and  $\Delta T_{a}$  = discharge excess temperature.

Equation 60 can be used to relate concentration characteristics with the thermal characteristics developed in Section 1.4.2. If equation 60 is satisfied, then the isopleth of concentration C will have the same shape, area, and volume as the isotherm of excess temperature  $\Delta T$ .

1.4-42

## 1.4.3.3 Shoreline Erosion

The major erosion effect of the Ginna discharge is bottom scouring in the vicinity of the discharge. This has been discussed in Section 1.4.3.1.2, where it was shown that scoured areas may range from 0.4 to 5.2 acres, depending on lake and discharge conditions. It should be noted that the scour areas exhibit shapes similar to isotherm shapes, their major influence being directed offshore.

It is also possible to postulate that a shoreline discharge of water, such as exists at Ginna, can act as a barrier to movement of lake sediments. If the discharge were to give the same effects as a solid barrier, deposition would occur upstream of the discharge and erosion would occur downstream of the discharge. However, a number of factors mitigate this behavior.

Currents at the site are alternately in both alongshore directions with a predominance of west to east currents. This would cause alternate erosion and deposition on either side of the discharge, with a small net effect. Furthermore, the plume completely blocks the normal alongshore flow for a distance of approximately 1000 feet offshore. After this point, the alongshore flow can pass under the plume.

No shoreline erosion due to discharge operation has been noticed since Ginna began operating in 1969.

## REFERENCES

- Motz, L.H. and B.A. Benedict, <u>Heated Surface Jet Discharged</u> <u>Into A Flowing Ambient Stream</u>, Water Pollution Control Research Series, Environmental Protection Agency, 16130FDQ, 1971.
- Stolzenbach, K.D. and D.R.F. Harleman, <u>An Analytical and Experimental Investigation of Surface Discharges of Heated Water</u>, School of Engineering, Massachusetts Institute of Technology, Report No. 135, 1971.
- 3. Shirazi, M.A. and L.R. Davis, Workbook of Thermal Plume Prediction - Vol.2 - Surface Discharges, Environmental Protection Technology Series, EPA-R2-72-005b, Environmental Protection Agency, 1974.
- 4. Pritchard, D.W., "Design and Siting Criteria for Once Through Cooling Systems," presented at American Institute of Chemical Engineers, 68th Annual Meeting, Houston, Texas, 1971.
- 5. Asbury, J.G. and Frigo, A.A., <u>A Phenomenological Relation-</u> ship for Predicting the Surface Areas of Thermal Plumes in Lakes, Argonne National Laboratory, ANL/ES-5, 1971.
- Shirazi, M.A.., "Some Results From Experimental Data On Surface Jet Discharge of Heated Water," <u>Proceedings of the</u> <u>International Water Resources Association</u>, Chicago, Illinois, 1973.
- 7. Stefan, H., L. Bergstedt, and E. Mrosla, <u>Flow Establishment</u> and Initial Entrainment of Heated Water Surface Jets, Ecological Research Series, United States Environmental Protection Agency, EPA-660/3-75-014, 1975.
- 8. Jirka, G.H., G. Abraham, and D.R.F.Harleman, <u>An Assessment</u> of <u>Techniques</u> for Hydrothermal Prediction, Ralph M. Parsons Laboratory for Water Resources and Hydrodynamics, Massachusetts Institute of Technology, Report No. 203, 1975.
- 9. Asbury, J.G., Effects of Thermal Discharges on the Mass/ Energy Balance of Lake Michigan, Argonne National Laboratory, ANL/ES-1, 1970.
- 10. Fan, L.N., <u>Turbulent Buoyant Jets Into Stratified or Flowing</u> <u>Ambient Fluids</u>, W.M. Keck Laboratory of Hydraulics and Water Resources, California Institute of Technology, KH-R-15, 1967.

1.4-44

- 11. "Analytical Assessment of Thermal Plumes for Surface Discharges From One or Two 600 MWe Fossil-Fueled Power Plants," Appendix 5A of Sterling Power Project Nuclear Unit Number 1 Environmental Report, Revised 1974.
- 12. Stolzenbach, K.D., E.E. Adams, and D.R.F. Harleman, <u>A User's</u> <u>Manual for Three Dimensional Heated Surface Discharge</u> <u>Conditions</u>, Ralph M. Parsons Laboratory for Water Resources and Hydrodynamics, Massachusetts Institute of Technology, Report No.156, 1972.
- 13. Engelund, F. and F.B. Pederson, "Surface Jet at Small Richardson Numbers," Journal of Hydraulics Division, <u>A.S.C.E.</u>, 99(HY3), 1973.
- 14. Edinger, J.E., D.K. Brady, and J.C. Geyer, <u>Heat Exchange</u> and Transport in the Environment, Electric Power Research Institute, Report No.14, 1974.
- 15. NOAA National Ocean Survey, Lake Survey Center, Detroit, Michigan.
- 16. Singer, J., <u>Elements of Numerical Analysis</u>, Academic Press, New York, N.Y. 1964.
- 17. Conte, S.D., Elementary Numerical Analysis, An Algorithmic Approach, McGraw-Hill Book Company, New York, N.Y., 1965.
- 18. Bryant, P.A., <u>Applied Probability and Statistics for</u> <u>Chemical Engineers</u>, Louisiana State University, 1970.
- 19. Jen, Y., R.L. Wiegel, and I. Mobarek, "Surface Discharges of Horizontal Warm Water Jet," Journal of Power Division, ASCE, 92(PO2), 1966.
- 20. Chermack, E.E., and T.A. Galletta, "Power Plant Thermal Effluents in Southeastern Lake Ontario," Proceedings 16th Conference On Great Lakes Research, 1973.

1.4-45

LIST OF VARIABLES USED IN DISCUSSION OF MATHEMATICAL MODEL

Variable	Definition
A	aspect ratio, W/h
C_	specific heat of water, Btu/lb- <sup>O</sup> F
D	dimensionless lake depth, $(E-b)/(\overline{E}-b)$
DT	date (Tables 1.4-3 and 1.4-4 only)
E	lake surface elevation, feet USGS
Ē	average lake surface elevation, feet USGS
ELEV	lake surface elevation, feet USGS (Tables 1.4-3 and 1.4-4 only)
F	(densimetric) Froude number, $U_0 / \sqrt{gh_0 \frac{(\rho_a - \rho_0)}{\rho_a}}$
F'	modified densimetric Froude number, FA <sup>-1/4</sup>
FR	densimetric Froude number (Tables 1.4-3 and 1.4-4 only)
I	isotherm area, ft <sup>2</sup>
NO.PTS (CL)	number of centerline temperature excess data points (Tables 1.4-3 and 1.4-4 only)
NO.PTS (RHALF)	number of half width data points (Tables 1.4-3 and 1.4-4 only)
K	heat loss parameter, $k/\rho_{a}C_{p}U_{c}$
Q	discharge flow, ft <sup>3</sup> /sec
R	correlation coefficient
R'	cross flow parameter, $U_a/U_o$
RHALF	dimensionless plume half width, $r_h / \sqrt{a/2}$ (Tables 1.4-3 and 1.4-4 only)
Ŝ	sum of the squares of the difference between predicted and measured data
т	dimensionless centerline temperature excess, $\Delta T_{C} / \Delta T_{O}$
Tm	dimensionless lateral temperature, $\Delta T / \Delta T_{c}$

## TABLE 1.4-1 (CONT'D)

4

<u>Variable</u>	Definition
Ua	ambient velocity, ft/sec
υ <sub>o</sub>	discharge velocity, ft/sec
W	discharge channel width, feet
x	dimensionless distance along plume trajectory, $s/\sqrt{a/2}$ (Tables 1.4-3 and 1.4-4 only)
a '	discharge cross section area, ft <sup>2</sup>
a'	correlation constant
a"	correlation constant
a <sub>j</sub>	vector of correlation constants
b	effective lake bottom elevation, feet USGS
b' .	correlation constant
c'	correlation constant
d'	correlation constant
e'	correlation constant
ē	difference between the i <sup>th</sup> data point and its predicted value
f'	correlation constant
f(A)	function describing the effect of aspect ratio on dimensionless centerline excess temperature
f(D)	function describing the effect of dimensionless lake depth on dimensionless centerline temperature excess
f(F)	function describing the effect of densimetric Froude number on dimensionless centerline . temperature excess
<b>f(T)</b>	function describing the relation between dimen- sionless plume centerline distance and dimensionless centerline temperature excess
a	gravitational acceleration, ft/sec <sup>2</sup>
g†	correlation constant
h	discharge depth, feet
h'	correlation constant

-

## TABLE 1.4-1 (CONT'D)

.

.

•

Variable	Definition
i	index describing the data point order
i'	correlation constant
k	surface heat transfer coefficient, Btu/ft <sup>2</sup> - <sup>o</sup> F-sec
m	number of data points
n	constant used in describing lateral temperature distribution
nl	correlation constant
<sup>n</sup> 2	correlation constant
<sup>n</sup> 3	correlation constant
P	constant used in describing lateral temperature distribution
r.	horizontal coordinate normal to plume centerline, feet
r <sub>h</sub>	plume half width, feet
r <sub>0.5</sub>	dimensionless plume half width, $r_h^{}/\sqrt{a/2}$
S	distance along plume trajectory, feet
Ÿ	average value of the independent variable over the m data points
y <sub>i</sub>	the i <sup>th</sup> data point value of the independent variable
Ŷi	the i <sup>th</sup> predicted value of the independent variable
ΔΤ	temperature excess (temperature above ambient) at (s,r), <sup>o</sup> F
	centerline temperature excess, <sup>O</sup> F
ΔT <sub>o</sub>	discharge temperature excess, <sup>O</sup> F
a	correlation constant
<sup>α</sup> c	angle between discharge and ambient velocities, radians
a'	correlation constant
β	correlation constant
β'	correlation constant
у	correlation constant

•

## TABLE 1.4-1 (CONT'D)

Variable	Definition
γ <sup>t</sup>	correlation constant
δ	correlation constant
E	correlation constant
ζ	correlation constant
θ	correlation constant
ρ <sub>a</sub>	ambient density, lb/ft <sup>3</sup>
P0	dïscharge density, lb/ft <sup>3</sup>
σ	standard deviation of independent dimensionless variable
¢	correlation constant
<b>\$</b> '	correlation constant
φ"	correlation constant
x	dimensionless distance along plume trajectory, $s/\sqrt{a/2}$
$\psi$	correlation constant
ψ'	correlation constant

•

,

Survey Date	Subsurface Isotherm Depth (Feet-Inches)	Densimetric Froude Number	Lake Elevation (Feet USGS)
1970			<u></u> ,
5/1	5-0	9.05	246.23
6/23	6-5	6.29	246.62
7/14	6-5	5.37	246.71
8/20	6-8	4.91	246.38
9/25	6-8	6.87	245.80
10/21	5-0	6.87	245.48
11/6	5-0	7.73	245.40
11/17	. 5-0	8.06	245.35
12/5	5-0	8.90	245.36
<u>1971</u>			
5/21	5-11	6.50	246.90
5/28	5-11	6.75	246.89
6/28		6.74	246.72
7/15	5-11	4.76	246.63
7/28		4.65	246.55
8/31	5-6	5.55	246.23
9/30	5-6	9.21	245.66
10/27	5-8	9.99	245.27
11/11	5-8	8.40	245.06
12/1	6-0	10.48	244.90

BASIC PAPAMETERS OF SURVEYS USED TO DEVELOP MODEL

.

Survey Date	Subsurface Isotherm Depth (Feet-Inches)	Densimetric Froude Number	Lake Elevation
<u>1972</u>			(Feet USGS)
4/13	6-0	8.89	246.49
7/19	6-0	3.78	248.02
8/30	6-0	4.25	247.39
11/22	. 6-0	9.83	245.89
<u>1973</u>			
4/16	6-8	4.77	249.06
5/14		4.24	249.25
6/20	5-1	5.07	249.19
7/10	5-4	2.87	248.75
7/18		2.98	248.46
8/16	5-1	3.63	247.74
9/10		5.11	246.98
9/13		4.19	246.91
10/1	4-11	5.40	246.48
11/13		7.75	245.60
12/5		8.19	245.58
<u>1974</u>			
5/21	5-2	8.57	248.67
6/4	—	4.30	248.83
6/28	4-11	4.51	248.63
7/30		3.74	248.13
9/26	5-8	5.08	246.35
10/23	5-4	8.11	245.58

## BASIC PARAMETERS OF SURVEYS USED TO DEVELOP MODEL

٠

## TABLE 1.4-2 (CONT'D)

BASIC PA	ARAMETERS	OF	SURVEYS	USED	TO	DEVELOP	MODEL
----------	-----------	----	---------	------	----	---------	-------

Survey Date	Subsurface Isotherm Depth (Feet-Inches)	Densimetric Froude	Lake Elevation
<u>1975</u>			(Feet USGS)
6/10	5-6	4.56	247.08
7/1	<u> </u>	12.88	246.97
8/4	7-1	4.01	246.47
Average	5-8	6.37	246.81

Total Number of Surveys at Surface = 43

.

- -

Subsurface= 32

Note: \_\_\_\_\_ indicates survey date not used for subsurface model development (see Section 1.4.1.1.3.4).

.

TABLE 1.4-3 GINNA SURFACE ISOTHERM DATA

T.

		na											
_	52	26.		0.10	1.00		0,40	0100	N0,0 8000 919	9 0 9 0 9 0 9 0	0 0 0	90N0 040 6000 040 4191 94	1000 1000
•		= 3 FH2LF= FH4LF=	E MALET	= 5 FH&LF= FH&LF= EHALE=	8 6 6 4 7 4 4 7 4 4 7 4 4 7 4 7 4 7 4 7 4 7 4	E S HALFE FHALFE FHALFE			S FHALFE FHALFE FHALFE	t FHALFs FHALFs	FHALF= FHALF= FHALF=	6 6 7 H A L F H 7 H A L F H	2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2
;	IS ( R44LF ) IT = 670 IT = 670 IT = 270 IT = 057	15 ( R4ALF ) T= 400 T= 100	St RHALF1 Т= .460 Т= .230	5 ( RHALF ) 7= , 640 7= , 430 7= , 211	54 RHALF) 74 - 630 14 - 630 17 - 330 17 - 330 18 - 033	5(R4ALF); 5(R4ALF); 14 - 480 17 - 300 17 - 120	S(R44LF): T= •530 T= •350 t= •180	51 RHALF)= 51 RHALF)= 14 0610 17 0610 17 0610 17 0230 17 0230	5( PH <u>E</u> LF <u>)=</u> F= •470 F= •290 F= •120	5 6 44 4 5 1 = 45 0 1 = 45 0 1 = 23 0	S( FHALF)=	КНАЦТО КНАЦТО КНАЦТО С 2003 КАНССТО КОО СО КОО СО КОО СССТО КОО СО СССТО КОО СО СО СССТО С С С С С С С С С С С С С	(RHALF)= (RHALF)= = 625 = 433 = 250 = 063
	1 91 .6 272 .4 339 .4	2 10 . P	123.7 155.9	9,5 9,5 142,5 274,9	0. PT 0. 4 1.57.0 2.39.8 4.03.6	131.1 131.1 224.9 209.9	N0. PT N0. PT 1 28.4 1 74.8 2 N7.1	46.2 46.2 161.0 182.0	N0. PJ	ND-EI3	73.7 73.7 7.8 7.8 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7	76.975 56.96 78.2 78.2 78.2 77 78.2 7 78.2 7 7 78.2 7 7 76.9 7 7 76.9 7 7 76.9 7 7 76.9 7 7 76.7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7	44.9 44.9 75.7 15.7 17 196.2
		ᅝᇥᇥ ᄣᄣ	*****						2		·····································		
		-1.01 -1.0 - 26.7	-PTS (CL) -0.0 45.8 -0.0	PTS(CL) 21.9 -0.0 79.3	PTS (CL) -0.0 33.6 -0.3	PTS (CL) -0.0 61.1 -0.0	PTS(CL) 6.2 37.5 37.5	PTS(CL)= 23.6 -0.0 -0.0	PTS (CL) -	PTS (CL)-	PTS (CL)	915 (CL)= 915 (CL)= 910 6 10 6 10 6 10 6 10 6 10 6 10 6 10 6	
	3 84865 84865 84865 84865 84865 84865	2 PHALFE 7HALFE	1 MO RHALF= PHALF= RHALF= RHALF=	8 . NO 54415= 94415= 94415=	0 244 LF = 244 LF = 244 LF = 244 LF =	RHALFE RHALFE RHALFE RHALFE	PHALFE RHALFE RHALFE RHALFE	RHALFE RHALFE RHALFE RHALFE	RHALFE RHALFE RHALFE	RHALF= RHALF= RHALF= RHALF=	NO. RHALFE RHALFE RHALFE PHALFE	КНА Г. КНА Г. ВНА Г. ВНА Г. КНА Г. КНА Г. КНА Г. КНА Г. С. С. С. С. С. С. С. С. С. С	на 14 14 14 14 14 15 14 15 15 15 15 15 15 15 15 15 15 15 15 15
	124 C	246.6 00 100	246.7 40 110 77	7 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4	- 02	4 - 1 0 2 2 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4	1 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2	442° 42	5	00340		10000 13 V V V	400K0  N
	EL EV= T= •7 T= •7 T= •1	ELEV= 7= 5 7= 2	EL EV# T= • 5 T= • 3 T= • 9	ELEV# 7= .7 7= .7 7= .7	ЕL ЕV Т 9 Т				CL EV#2			10023 10026 0.1506 10500 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10	1 H H H H H 4 M M M M 4 M M M M
	8 N M D	 	1 						i				ццццц
	1.62 2.75 2.75 2.75 2.75 2.55	6.3 197. 286.	5.4 107- 145- 371-3	4 • 9 8 4 • 1 1 3 1 • 1 1 6 6 • 1	59-69- 59-69-12 74-32-34-32-32	120-9 295-9 295-9	7.7 90.3 156.9 731.8	8.1 90.5 134.7 134.7 283.5	3.9 103.0 164.7 207.7	1000 1000 1000 1000 1000 1000 1000 100	6.8 107.8 149.8 496.3	6.7 1197.7 125.5 125.4 125.4 107.6 107.6 107.6 107.6 107.6 107.6 107.6 107.6	4.7 51.6 94.9 94.9 155.7
	~ . ~ .	8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8	***** *****	~ * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * *		8 X X X X 6 4 H 8 H 8 H					н н н н в ж ж ж ж а		инии иххххх С
	0400 M000 141	25.9	0000 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 0	0000 000 1000 000	~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~	2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	112.00	1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	999 999 1999	29.2 - 0.0 - 10.0	0 N 0 J 0 4 0 4 0 1 1 1 1 1		
	DT=5/1/70 244L5 244L5 04AL5 24AL5	ΠT=5/23/7 04ΔLF= P43LF=	01=7/14/7 24 AL F= QH AL F= RH AL F=	CT+A/ 22/7 24 11 54 24 AL 54 04 AL 54 04 AL 54 04 AL 54	01=3/25/7 RM &LFE 2H &LFE 3H &LFE 9H &LFE PH &LFE	DT=16 /21/ DH4LF= PH4LF= DH4LF= PH4LF=	07=11/6/7 044[F= 044[F= 244[F= 844[F=	01=11/17/7 04ALF= 04ALF= 04ALF= P4ALF= 04ALF= 04ALF=	57=12/5/7] 94 LE= 94 ALE= 94 ALE= 94 ALE= 94 ALE= 94 ALE=	)T=5/21/71 245[F= 246[F= 246[F=	04 ALF=	ites/28/7] ites/28/7] PHALF= PHALF= OHALF= PHALF= PHALF= PHALF= PHALF=	T=7/24/71 044[5= 044[5= 044[5= 044[5= 044[5= RH4[5=
	4 4 4 6 6 4 4 6 6 6 4 4 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6	503	520 190	00 00 10 00 10 00 10 00	750 250 250	1 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4			2400 2400 2400	52. 1911			50 53 75 89
		22	유부분				нини 1 нини 1 нини						
		£n ac	<b></b>			10 -0 -0 -		. i					<b>4 7</b> 7 7
•	155. 197. 235. 413.	179.	67 133 232	1111 1111 1111 1111	56. 175. 250.5	101 147 167	69.1 151.1 195.2	444444 446444 4469644 4469864 146986	57.7 130.7 193.7 310.6	77.9	82.5 145.1 105.1	92.6 6.6 6.6 6.6 6.6 6.6 6.6 7.5 7.5 7.5 7.5 7.5 7.5 7.5 7.5 7.5 7.5	54.9 71.6 113.2 76.2
ł	****	**	***	* * * * *			****	- *****					45 4 4 4 4 7 7 7 7

1

-

.

Sheet 1

;

ı

TABLE 1.4-3 (CONT'D)

GINNA SURFACE ISOTHERM DATA

...

;

•	:			!		· ;				I.		
	****	**** ×	11 11 XX XXX	<b>, , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , </b>	* * * * * *	****	***	*****	*** ' *		****	** **
162	31 27 27 27 27 27 27 27 27 27 27 27 27 27	2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2	240	2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2	68 133 275	3237	116 16 16	3 3 2 4 7 3 3 3 5 3 4 7 3 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7	1903		2 25 9	4.2 14 2 14 2 14 2 14 2 14 2 14 2 14 2 14
		+ 6 6 4 F	·····		 	4 <b>6 7 6</b>	5 N 4		N 8 3		9 4 7 9	
	مرقب مرقب	ف قدف م		، مەرىپەر مەرىسا	م ام ا	 	• •					
777		7777 7	1777 - A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A		777	7777						
N 4 3 1	50.005	1 4 5 7 1 4 7 5 7 6 6 4 5 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6	143 143 143	1 N F 6 7 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	231	32502	500	1 1 2 2 1 2 1 2 1 2 1 2 1 2 1 2 1 2 1 2		1.7.3	191	45 7 C
ੜ੍ਹਾਂ	D.1.	07.	DT.	9 1	07.	, DI		9	, D1	q	,	3
1 4 4 1			5/1 044 044	HIPO TOUCO	111	I H H H H		N L L L L L N	A HOOD	H •••000 •••	0 0 0 0 0 0 1 1 1 1 1 1	JU DU DU
					1777 1777 1777							22222
и 1 и 1 <sup>- 1</sup>	1413	1215 1			1.31			1.01.41	· · · · · · ·	H		
000	ou on i				040	10000	010 V		30 A   0		0 N 0 N 1	NO NO
· .	: 3	Ţ			רד י גע	: 3				, ·	· · ·	<u>r</u>
***	****	****** * ****			* * *	****	***	*****	жжжй ж Ч.Н.Н. Н	****	****	** ** **
169.	265.	20 0 0 V.	2555 5555 555 555 555 555 555 555 555 5		1.3.5.	1 9 1 0 4	12 9 9 9 8 9 0 9		21122	2 2 2 3 4 2 2 3 3 4	2494	11111 11111 11111 11111
60.0	лын 1	400	HW 10155	0803 VIVID8	N 2 1		₩0 N	NUNUE	ά μαζ; ά 		• • • • • • • •	4N + 3
		1 7 7 7 2	*******						   .   .   .   .   .		' 	: 
		N - 6 -		1							* * * * * ₹	
2 2	6 U D Z	4 4 5 N :	900	10 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	4 51 5 7	10 1 10 1 10 1 1 1 10 1 1	45 H N 85 H N 1	3156480	1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1		1226	
								e ' '	i i ". · u.			6.21
					2 H A C	A LA		7 0 7 0 7 1 4 1 1 1 2 2 2 2 2	<b>R</b> H <b>A</b> <b>R</b> H <b>A</b> <b>H A</b> <b>H A</b>	L L L L L L L L L L L L L L L L L L L	7 007 1111 9 9 9 9	5,000 1111 , 4444
1 17 17 1 1 11 12 3	"1"1" """Z	1111 1112	<b></b>	11 11 112 111 10 111	1 11 1 1 11 1 1 11 1 0	້າ່າ້າ ###2	, , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , ,	111111 1111112	1717 ' T			
부분명과	- 9 - 7	1917		600 F 600		1311	10101 1001	F L L L L L L L L L L L L L L L L L L L		1317	6 6 2 6 3	16142
7 6 6	ວ ຫມື ດີ:	۵×۵ <u>6</u> ,				0,50 C				C		
5 5 5	ii ii m x x x	155 155	A.M	1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1		ы. Н. Н. К.К.К. (	X X X	****	਼ ਹੈ ਸ਼ੁਸ਼ਿਸ਼ੀ ਸ਼			· ] 
•••• ••••	оннн 10 ннн	64 H H H G		NH (JNH	11 11 13 30 Njun	ини <sub>1</sub> сэ мин		ทุกทุก กุก (กุก) เลเลเล (กุก)	индор Индор	₩₩₩N2 N2 MA	77775 222	88885 8886
5.07		0 10 0 N 9 11 Z			6 0			75771 PNF 20		5 5 6 · · ·	S 25 4 6 4	
	Ō	O P			10.P					, .		5 N J N N N
1111	7777				7275					1112	****	
	 1: \\			- · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	4 F	1 4 5 F			N F N F 9	 		<u>.</u>
				647 1647				4		ປີວີບີ່ຫຼີ   #1		FS 555
	ין י <u>ד</u> ד ד	<u>1</u> 111			774	7 7 7 7	777		<b>n</b>			,   , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , ,
					55 55		555					
		# # #			# #				**************************************		, , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , ,	27777 2888 1
	-77		33.0			611 S. 600 G	75	- N   F   D + D > D				
DNO					<b>6</b> 0			00040				
			i   :									

-

.

Sheet 2

;

TABLE 1.4-3 (CONT'D)

# GINNA SURFACE ISOTHERM DATA

10.0	0 0 0	100 100 100 100 100 100	NG 40 NG 40 N ( 41			51.7 -0.0	61.9 -0.0	0 M G 0 V D 1 V I	010 00 010 00 1 1 1 1	3 De .		
FHLEF					FHALF= FHALF= FHALF= FHLLF=	FHALF=	FHALF=	FHALFE FHALFE FHALFE				
545	EHALF) = -	RHALF)= 6 -554 -612 -235	244LF)= 5 • 526 • 369 • 211	2474511 • 595 • 432 • 270	CHALF) = 2 • 400 • 417 • 417 • 157	HALF)= 4 .387 .194	HALFJ= 4	4ALF)# 5 -529 -176	HALF]= 7 667 503 133	HALF)= 5 +471 - 294 - 118 - 118 HALF)= 1	44LF3#6 579 253 105	
부분 ·	=1 -1 -1	1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1			PTS(7 1= PTS(6 7= 7=	PTS(R 1=	PTS(R	PTS (R		PTSCR T= T= PTSCR		
220.0	120'00 1 N 35 1	78.3 152.6 217.3 321.2	23155 N	158.0 158.0 2549.0 357.2	787.2 787.2 148.3 360.5	97.8 756.2	2 m 1 NM NL	1 25 9 1 25 9 2 5 3 1	0 2 9 9 1 1 9 1 9 1 9 1 9 1 9 1 9 1 9 1 9		20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 2	
		()=12 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	11] # 12			1) = 4 = 4 = = 7 = =					ан а	
-0-1	0. PTS (1	24 - D	0.PTS (C -0.0 -0.1 -0.0 -0.0	29-2 29-2 68-7 68-7	79-0 -0-0 31-3 -0-0	* PTS (C -0 * 0 55 * 6	. PTS (C -0.0 122.3 -0.0	+ PTS (C) +1. 2 -0. 0 151. 7 -0. 9		PTS'CCI -0.3 -0.3 -0.5 -0.0 -12 -0.0	PTS (CL 23.8 -0.0 -1.0	
PHALF= P44LF= RHALF=	91 91 94 LF= 84 LF= 84 LF=	4.8 RHALFE PHALFE QHALFE QHALFE	60 NO 84415= 94415= 94415= 94415=	58- 0445+ 0445+ 0445+ 0445+ 0445+ 0445+	CHALFE RHALFE RHALFE RHALFE RHALFE	S NO CHALFE Rhalfe Rhalfe	3 NO PHALFE RHALFE PHALFE	5 244 244 244 244 244 244 244 244 244 24	0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	PHALFE PHALFE PHALFE RHALFE PHALFE	7 RHALFE RHALFE RHALFE RHALFE PHALFE PHALFE	TA POINT
T= .646 T= .354 T= .091	EL EV= 24.6.	EL EV= 74 6. T= .647 T= .471 T= .471 T= .411 T= .119	EL EV=?45. T= .579 T= .421 T= .421 T= .263 T= .263	EL EV # 24 5 T# 649 T# 649 T# 374 T# 374	THE 533	EL FV=24 8. F= 452 F= 255 F= 065	CL EV=24 6.1 F= 5 5 9 0 F= 2 7 16 F= 0 7 1	CL EV# 24 6.1 ***5 85 ****6 12 ***2 35 ***2 35 ***0 59	н - 5556 н - 55566 н - 555666 н - 555666 н - 555666 н - 5556666 н - 5556666 н - 555666666666666666666666666666666666	LEV#24 1.0 = .529 - = .353 - = .176 - EV#24 6.9	LEV#246.4	FERLINE D
	0 + M N N N		.00.00		ar UN colar Part of Point			10040	N3000			OF CEN
x = 13 x = 33 14 15	40 96 1 4 4 1 4 4 1 4 1	а 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	2 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	ы ы ы ы ы ы ы ы ы ы ы ы ы ы	хжн хжн 22 хжн 24 хжн 24 х хжн 24 хжн 24 х хжн 24 х хжн 24 х х х х х х х х х х х х х х х х х х х	X = 209 X = 209 X = 329	хн 105- хн 105- хн 205-	10000 1010 1010 1010 1010 1010 1010 10				
 		Nono	ш но но но по			1 O N			NONON		00'000	
	1 J I 1					/74 F= 21 F= -0 F= 79	/74' / 74 / 14 78 / 14 78 / 14			7.75 1.15 1.15 1.15 1.15 1.15 1.15 1.15	№ Н Н Н Н Н   ~   ~   ~   ~   ~   ~   ~   ~   ~   ~	.
	01=9/1 	01=10 2	77±11/1 2441 - 2421 - 2421 - 3441	01=12/5 9421 9421 9421 7441 8441 8441 8441 8441 8441		DT=5/2P 2H AL PH AL PH AL	DT=7/3C. 94 AL 94 AL	01=9/26		07=5/10 9H3L6 9H4L6 9H4L6 9H4L6 17=7/1/3 9H4L6	)7=4/4/3 2446 2446 2446 2446 2446 2446 2446 244	
1 82	555 575 575 8851		• 5 1 2 • 6 7 6 • 1 3 1 5 • 1 5 8	• 703 • 541 • 378 • 2178 • 754	- 567 - 557 - 553 - 555 - 555	-516 -723 -129	1251 1251	• 547 • 671 • 718 • 118	- 278 - 511 - 511 - 578 - 518		584 556 •536 •3353 •211 •2111 •053	• •
			4 9 9 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4					****		- <u></u>		
235.4	61.0 157.8 271.6	43.1 43.0 451.4 252.4	72.0 126.6 159.4 296.5	63.7 130.5 1373.4 323.7 367.5	379.6 421.6 421.6 273.1 391.6	39.9 162.5 321.0	82.5 155.0 394.0	64.6 134.0 192.1 427.7	1111 1111 1111 1111 1111 1111 1111 1111 1111	53.1 147.1 1555.1 105.6	25 25 26 26 26 26 26 26 26 26 26 26 26 26 26	-
1 H H 1 X X	4 8 8 X X X	****	, , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , ,	\$\$\$\$\$ !		* * *	***				л т т т и и и и и и и Х Х Х Х Х	

,

Sheet 3

•

÷.

.

.

# GINNA SIX FOOT DEPTH ISOTHERM DATA

••

<b>4 4 4</b>	<b>4</b> 14 14 14 14 14 14 14 14 14 14 14 14 14			XXX XXX XXX	****	1 ' I 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2
75.P 137.4 197.4	107.5 156.7 156.2 157.3 157.5	841. 841. 841. 841. 841. 841. 841. 841.		103.4 1159.7 113.4 1159.7 103.4 1159.7	11172 11172	213.5 215.5 215.5
000 100 100	76 1 2 4 1 1 4 1 4		10000 1000000	000 000 0000 0000 0000 0000 0000 0000 0000	1000 110 110 110 110 110 110 110 110 11	
NT=10/27/71 0421 F= -0. 0421 F= -0.	DT=3/11/11 OHALF= -0 OHALF= -0 OHALF= -0 OHALF= -0 OHALF= -0	07#5/2#/71 07#5/2#/71 04415# 000000000000000000000000000000000000	01411/17/70 944154 -0 944154 -1 944154 -1 944154 -1 944154 -0 014154 -0 944154 -0 9441	nt=9/25/70 94315= 19 94315= 19 94315= 19 94415= 19 94415= 19 94415= 19 94415= 19 94415= 19 94415= 19 94415= 19	07#7/14/70 0+8[9# 17 0+8[9# -0 0+8[9# -0 0+8[9# -0 0+8[9# -0 0+8[9# -0 0+8[9# -0 0+8[9# -0	DT#5/1/70 - 944[F# -0 - 944[F
000 N				048 0W0 0W0	HOD POD	
***** * * * *	о, о, о жжжя жжжн яни нии	י הי הי האצא האצא האא האאא האצא האה האה האה	177 - 72 - 173 197 - 72 - 173 197 - 72 - 73 197 - 75 197	ті ті ті 15 15 15 15 жж. ж. ж. ж. ж. н. н. н	ннн, ннн 1 ннн, ннн	
2155+0 155+0 N 60	2449 2449 2449 2449 2449 2449 2449 2449	146.8 87.2 161.6 172.7 123.9 1	* 111   * 111     6   1 - 100     7   1 - 100     8   1 - 100     9   1 - 100     9   1 - 100     9   1 - 100     9   1 - 100     9   1 - 100     9   1 - 100     9   1 - 100     9   1 - 100     9   1 - 100     9   1 - 100     9   1 - 100	6.9 416-9 6.9 170-0 100-0 100-0 100-0 100-0 100-0 100-0 100-0 100-0 100-0 100-0 100-0 1000	1630. 1700. 17	9247.9 313.6 492.6 113.2 113.2 113.2 113.2
ELEV#248.2 T= .530 T= .13? T= .13?	FLEV=746.6 T= .515 T= .335 T= .154 T= .154 T= .516 T= .516 T= .323 T= .129	- T= .360 T= .600 T= .600 T= .600 T= .600 T= .200 T= .200 T= .200 T= .200 T= .200	- ELEV=24.4.9 T= .570 T= .570 T= .540 T= .540 T	- T= .530 - T= .530 - T= .530 - T= .530 - T= .540 - T= .540 - T= .270 - T= .220	ELEV#246. T# .560 T# .600 T# .600 T# .200	ELEV-246. T= .530 T= .110 T= .790 T= .790 T= .790 T= .570 T= .140
7 813. 944[5= 944[5= 944[5=	24 24 24 24 24 24 24 24 24 24 24 24 24 2		С 57 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5	0   0	71 70 70 70 70 70 70 70 70 70 70	- 52 9 9 9 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1
PTS(CL)= 17.0 -0.3 39.5	PTS (CL) -3-3-5 -55 96-1 -1-5 PTS (CL) -0-5 -0-5	PTS (CU)	PTS (CL)	PTS (CL) 23-0 23-0 7-1 23-0 7-1 23-0 7-1 7-1	PTS (CL)	.PTS (CL) .35.1 .0.3 .0.3 .47.8 .97.9 .24.3 .24.3 .24.3
2 x x 4 0 x x x 4 0 x x x 4 0				н н н н н н н н н н н н н н н н н н н		
NO.	N0-	15900	N1419 999400	107.0 10	1102.9 146.2 146.2 79.3 1175.2 1175.2	253.9 518.2 779.4 1119.7 1117.5 7
12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 1					PIS( 1= 1= 1=	
HALF)= +470 +270 +657	.452 .253 .452 .452				RH11F)	9415 270 270 8415 270 270 200 200 200
- FHD[FH FHD[FH FHD[FH	1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1		2 - FHALFE FHALFE FHALFE FHALFE FHALFE		и	
	-9.6 77.4 -9.0 56.3					

.

Sheet 1

ı

TABLE 1.4-4 (CONT'D)

٠

GINNA SIX FOOT DEPTH ISOTHERM DATA

•

11/11/71 FR= 0.4ELEV=245.06 M0.PTSICL)=12NOLPTS(RP4LF)=59.7 04.4.15 1P.6 X= 66.4 T= 6.4.4 R44.15 -0.0 X= 71.6 T= 6.12 FH4.159.7 04.4.5 -0.0 X= 86.4 T= 526. R44.15 22.4 X= 89.7 T= 4.74 FH4.150.0 0.4.15 -0.0 X= 95.1 T= 576 R44.15 -0.0 X= 129.2 T= 515 FH4.150.0 0.4.15 -0.0 X= 172.31 = 516 R44.15 -0.0 X= 129.2 T= .316 FH4.150.0	12/1/71FP=_12.5ELEV=744.99 NO.PTS(CL)= 9NO.PTS(FHALE <u>)= 2</u> PHALE= -0.0	4/17/72 FR= 6.9 ELEV=746.49 NO.PTS(CL)= 8 NO.PTS(RHALF)= 2 PHALT= -C.0 X= 63.9 T= .556 PHALF= -44.7 X= .70.2 .T= .500 FHALE= -0.0 PHALT= 55.1 X= 96.2 T= .319 RHALF= -0.0 Y= 94.2 T= .533 FHALE= -0.0 PHALT= -0.0 X= 113.3T= .222RHALF= -0.0 X= 94.2	7/19/77 FR= 3.8ELEV=24.02NJ.PTS(CU= 4NQ.PTS(P4LE <u>1= 1</u> 944LF= -0.0 x= 253.6 T= 250 PHALF= 106.7 x= 379.7 T= 188 FHALF= -0.0 944LF= -0.0XE 75.6 T= 250 PHALF= 106.7 x= 379.7 T= 188 FHALF= -0.0	A/30/72 . FR: 4.3ELEV=74,39 PO.PTS(CL)= 8NO.PTS(RHALF) <u>= 4</u> PHALE= 23.2 X: 35.2 T: 4467 RHALE= -0.0 X: 100.2 T: 400 FHALE= 32.1 RHALE= -0.0 X: 131.6 . T: 2267 . RHALE= 42.6 . X: 140.6 . T: 200EHALE= <u>-0.0</u> RHALE= 59.8 X: 285.6 T: 0067 RHALE= -0.0 Y: 140.6T: 200EHALE= <u>-0.0</u>	11/22/72 FRE 9.6 ELEVE245.99 NO.PTSICLIE11 NO.PTSIRHALFIE5 PHALFE -0.0 XE 177.3 TE 6525 RHALFE 3.43 XE 272.5 TE 561 FWALFE -0.0 PHALFE 40.1 XE 271.0 TE .438 PHALFE 3.40 YE 202.7 TE .375 FHALFE 37.6 PHALFE -0.0 XE 3362. TE .250 PHALFE 30.1 XE 346.3 TE A195 544 LFE -0.0 PHALFE 20.1 XE 368.0 TE .053 RHALFE -0.0 YE 346.3 TE A195 544 LFE -0.0	W/16/73 FRE 4.8 ELFVEY45.06 NO.075(CL)= 6 ND.075(FHALF1= 3 RHALF= -0.0 X= 94.5 T= 4400 PHALFE 132.0 X= 09.2 TE.350 FHALFEC0 RHALFE 150.1 X= 211.0 T= 2550 RHALFE -0.0 X= 237.3 T= 200 FHALFE 174.9	5/20/7 FR= 5.1 ELEV=245.19 NO.PTS(CL)= 5 NO.PTS(RHALF)= 3 PHALE= 22.0 X= 93.1 T= .443. PHALE= .20.0 X= 154.3 T= .414 FHALE= 43.2 PHALE= -0.0 X= 242.1 T= .276 RHALE= 49.9 X= 154.3 T= .414 FHALE= 43.2	7/10/73 FR= 2.9 ELEV=24.0.75 NO.PTS(CL)= 5 NO.PTS(RHALF)= 2 24ALF= 20.5x= 95.7t= 20424ALF=20.0 X=121.6T= 2355EMALF= <u>33.5</u> 24ALF= -0.0 x= 158.5 T= 118 RMALF= -0.0 <del>x=</del>	1/16/73 FR= 3.6 ELEV=247.74 NO.₽TS(EL)= 6 NO.₽TS(RHALF)= 2 24ålf= 13.9 x= 62.7 T= 0313 04ålf= -0.0 m x= 86.1 m1± 0250 fwalf= 25.5 24ålf= -0.0 m x= 170.7 m1= 0125 04ålf= -0.0 m x= 208.7 m1± 0550 fwalf= -0.0 mmm	IO /1/73 FR# 5.4 EL EV=746.64 NO.PTS (CL)=10 NO.PTS (RMLF)=5   NALF# 9.6 X# 79.9 T# 523 PHALF# 0.0   PHALF# 9.6 X# 79.9 T# 523 PHALF# 0.0   PHALF# 0.0 X# 135.6 PHALF# 0.0 X# 233 PHALF# 0.0   PHALF# 25.0 X# 145.6 T# 533 PHALF# 175.6 T# 534 FHALF# 0.0   PHALF# 27.0 X# 252.6 T# 535.6 T# 544 T# 544 FHALF# 0.0   PHALF# 26.0 X# 252.6 T# 545.6 T# 545.6 T# 544.7 0.0   PHALF# 20.0 X# 262.8 T# 543.6 FHALF# 544.7 0.0	5/21/74 <sup>-</sup> FR= 7.6 <sup></sup> ELEV=242.67 NO.PTS(CL)= 5 NO.PTS(FHALF)= 2 <sup></sup> Half= -0.0 - x=402.3 - T= 0513 - RHALF= 24.4 Y= 409.2 - T= 240 <u>0 - FHALF= -0.0</u> Half= 13.7 - x=422.9 - T= 0133 - RHALF= -0.0 - X= 409.2 - T= 240 <u>0 - FHALF= -0.0</u>	5/28/74 FR= 4.5 ELEV=246.63 K0.PTS(CL)= 3 NO.PTS(R4ALF)= 1	J/26/74 FR= 5.1 ELEV=24€.35 NO.PTS(CL)= 4 NO.PTS(RMALF)= 2 HALF= 21.8 X= 143.7 T= 0.167 PHALF= -0.3 X= 4.21.3 T= 0.111 RHALF= 112.2 MALF= -0.0 Y=	10/23/74 FRE 9.1 ELEVE245.58 NO.PTS(CL)=10 NO.PTS(RHALF)= 5 Halfe 12.9 XE 94.4 TE 5500 PHALFE -0.3 XE 103.0 TE 444 FHALFE 18.0 Halfe -0.0 XE 121.9 TE 0.3 TE 441FE 22.3 XE 133.9 TE 278 FHALFE -0.0 Halfe -0.0 XE 350.3 TE 0.167 RHALFE -0.0 YE 367.5 TE 0.111 FHALFE -0.0 KHALFE -0.0 XE	/10/75 FR= 4.6 ELEV=247.08 NO.PTS(CL)= 4 NO.PTS(RH4LF)= 2 H4LF= 132.9 X= 206.3 T= 4.76 RH4LF= -0.0 X= 378.9 T= 4.18 FMALF= 87.9 H4LF= -0.0 X= 206.3 T= 4.76 RH4LF= -0.0 X= 378.9 T= 4.18 FMALF= 87.9	/4/75 FR= 4.0 ELEV=246.47 NO.PTS(CL)= 8 <u>NO.PTS(RHALF)= 4</u> Half= 14.4 X= 68.8 T= .368 PHALF= -9.0 X= <u>N3.2 T= .316 FHALF= 24.0</u> Half= -0.0 X= 115.1 T= .211 PHALF= 44.0 X= 1.29.5 T= .158 FHALF= -6.2 Half= 87.2 X= 105.5 T= .053 RHALF= -0.0 X= 1.29.5 T= .158 FHALF= -6.2	NUMEER OF MALF WIDTH POINTS= 259 NUMPER OF MALF WIDTH POINTS= 111
179 71 79 79 71 79 79 71 91 79	10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 1	10 11 12 12 13 14 14 15 15 15 15 15 15 15 15 15 15 15 15 15	DT=7/ 13 PH 25 PH	01#1/ 33 01#1/ 33 24		50 8H	01=5/ 5294 4994	17=71 53	10 51 10 51 10 51	11=10 11=10 12 12 12 10 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12	ñt=5/ 57 84	17=6/ 94 04	01±9/	012 012 012 012 012 012 012 012 012 012	n1=5/ 19	01+9/ 01+9/ 01 01+9/ 01+9/ 01+9/ 01+9/ 01+9/	
н н н н И и и и		юз і. 	йн н н			. эм 1 нн	· · ·	- 12 H	<u>н</u> н н			1.1	200			3 N 44	
<b></b>		й нн	й й 1	1 1 1 1 1 1	aaaa I	1 66 1	44 	44	÷	4444	řř ,	÷	÷	4444 1	44 ;	4 4 4 4 4 4	
7.00 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0	X= 37.4 X= 255.8 X= 331.44	Хн 56.3 Хн 75.0 Хн 109.6	X= 14C.4	X= 71.9 X= 119.1 X= 237.8	7= 142.2 Y= 142.2 X= 247.4 X= 247.4 X= 359.0		X= 65.2 X= 170.3	X= 71.1 X= 146.2	. X= 52.5.	X= 59.9 X= 103.9 X= 147.8 X= 319.6	- X= -199.1	¥=65.P	X= 116.2 X= 434.2	X= 355.0 X= 1155.0 X= 140.0 X= 240.0	X= 180.2 X= 394.2	X= 54.4 X= 95.0 X= 174.3	•

Sheet 2

- - ----

## CORRELATION CONSTANTS AND STATISTICAL RESULTS FOF THE GINNA DATA REPRESENTATION

## Mathematical Representation

Dimensionless Centerline Temperature Excess;  $\ln \chi = \phi + \psi(T-1) + \beta' \ln F$ Dimensionless Plume Half Width;  $\ln r_{0.5} = a + \beta \ln \chi + \gamma (\ln \chi)^2 + \delta \ln F$ 

	Surface	<u>6 Foot</u>
Centerline Temperature Excess		
$\phi$	3.921	2.388
$\psi$	-2.098	-2.288
ß'	0	0.598
R	0.784	0.746
σ	0.351	0.374

Plume Half Width

α	-8.027	-8.376
β	4.247	4.495
Ŷ	-0.352	-0.371
δ	-0.264	-0.664
R	0.647	0.600
σ	0.481	0.570

# GINNA LATERAL DISTRIBUTION AND NORMALIZED GAUSSIAN DISTRIBUTION

Distribution; 
$$T_m = \Delta T / \Delta T_c = n \exp \left[-p \left(r/r_h\right)^2\right]$$

•

			T <sub>m</sub> =	.95	.8	.6	.4	.2	.05	
r/r <sub>h</sub>	for	Ginna Data,	1>T <sub>m</sub> > 0.5	.170	.538	.851	-	-	-	
$r/r_h$	for	Ginna Data,	T <sub>m</sub> < 0.5	-	-	-	1.156	1.543	2.115	_
r/r <sub>h</sub>	for	Normalized	Gaussian	.272	.567	.858	1.150	1.524	2.079	

## MONTHLY DIFFERENCE IN AMBIENT TEMPERATURE BETWEEN THE SHORELINE AND 5000 FEET OFFSHORE IN THE GINNA VICINITY AS GIVEN BY CHERMACK AND GALLETTA (20)

Month	Offshore	Temperature Minus	Shoreline	Temperature	( <sup>0</sup> F)
January	•	-0.6			
February		-0.4			
March		+0.5			
April		+4.8			
May		+4.9			
June		+1.2			
July	_	+1.2			
August		+0.3			
September		-0.2			
October		-0.4			
November		-2.9			
December		-1.7			
Yearly Average	2	+0.6			

**~**.

1

. .

## SEASONAL DISCHARGE AND AMBIENT CONDITIONS

•

.

.

٠

Season WINTER	Conditions	Discharge Flow Rate (cfs)	Discharge Velocity (fps).	Discharge Temperature .( <sup>°</sup> F)	Lake Temperature ( <sup>°</sup> F)	Lake Elevation (ft. USGS)
WINTER	Expected	696.3	3.43	60.0	34.4	245.46
SPRING	Expected	891.2	3.52	66.5	46.5	246.85
SUMMER	Expected	891.2	3.68	85.8	65.8	246.55
FALL	Expected	891.2	4.42	66.8	46.8	245.41
WINTER	Extreme	636.6	2.02	60.0	32.0	248.45
SPRING	Extreme	891.2	2.30	82.0	62.0	250.19
SUMMER	Extreme	891.2	2.64	94.6	74.6	249.00
FALL	Extreme	891.2	3.49	77.1	57.1	246.91

.

## SURFACE CENTERLINE EXCESS VELOCITY DECAY FOR SEASONAL CONDITIONS

;

DISTANCE ALONG CENTERLINE (FEET)	SPRING EXPECTED	SUMMER EXPECTED	EXCESS VELOC FALL EXPECTED	CITY - FPS SPRING EXTREME	SUMMER EXTREME	FALL EXTREME
0	3.52	3.68	4.42	2.30	2.64	3.49
1000	2.57	2.65	2.99	2.30	2.64	3.49
2000	1.41	1.43	1.53	1.90	2.10	2.55
3000	0.73	0.72	0.67	1.46	1.59	1.87
4000	0.24	0.21	0.06	1.15	1.23	1.39
5000	0	0	0	0.90	0.95	1.02
6000				0.70	0.72	0.72
7000				0.53	0.53	0.46
8000				0.39	0.36	0.24
9000	:			0.26	0.21	0.04
10,000				0.14	0.08	0
11,000				0.04	0	
12,000		ļ		o		<b>)</b> , ,

## Table 1.4-10 Ginna Station Triaxial Surveys

		GET	ERAL	. DAT	A				MET	EORO	LOGIC	CAL D	ATA							SURV	EYĽ	DA I A					
		7	7		e	7		/ _/	Sky C	Conditi	ions	Wie	d Lake	Condi	tions	Ten	perat	ures	<u> </u>			bur	Data	. 301	(۲ ۵		
	Time		F Plant Load		Reviewing	H Lake	o Lievation u Temperature	a Air Belative	Humidit	Covers (tentha)	mph	Direction	Description	-wave r Height	<sup>4</sup> Surface Ambient	J Intake	10 Discharge	F Plurre Range	C Depti	Level	T Depth	d d d Acres	r Depth	t end solv Acres	T Depth	evel 4	7
3/9/ ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~	1200	RGE	1300	yes	NYS Doh	245.0	29	58	clear	0	2	030	smooth	05	33	33	52.5	2900	.5	26.7	2.5	25.5	5.0	27.4	7.5	30.8	
<sup>5</sup> //70	200	RGE	1118	NA	NYS Doh	246.0	87	38	hazy	10	14	220	small swells	.5-2	42	42	57	3500	.5	152	2.5	14.5	5.0	115	7.5	59	
23/0	1200	RGE	1079	NA	D.E.C	246.5	73	45	clear	2	15	312	smooth	0	65	57	75	2200	.5	22	1 7		C A		0.7		
7/4,									thunder												10.0		0.4	0.4	19.7		
170 120	1200	RGE	1300	NA	D.E.C.	246.6	78	84	hozy	10	10	190	smooth	0	64	60	77	1600	.5	19.2	3.3	4,8	6.7	2.6	9.7	0	
2700	1200	RGE	1274	NA	D.E.C.	246,4	82	61	clear	7	15	223	<u>choppy</u>	2-5	75	72	89	2900	.5	38.2	3.3	19.6	6,7	10.2	9,7	<u> </u>	
25/7	1200	RGE	1287	NA	D,E,C.	245.7	77	<u>67</u>	clear	9_	_5	315	swells	2-3	64	59	76	2500	.5	48	3.3	<u>.</u>	6.7	4.0	9.7	0	
1×12/7	1200	RGE	1300	NA	D.E.C.	245.2	68	78	fog	10	5.3	145	swells	2-3	56	55	72	2800	.5	49.8	2.5	54.4	5.0	6.7	7.6	5.3	
16/70	1200	RGE	1300	NA	D.E.C	245.3	44	74	clear	8	9	234	caim sweils	2-3	50	51	67	2000	.5	29.2	2.5	6.4	5.0	8.8	7.5	3.1	
2/5 /70	1200	RGE	1300	NA	D.E.C.	245.3	30	78	overcast	8	7	188	calm	0	45	45	62	2200	.5	45.9	2.5	52 3	5.0	14 6	7 6	2.2	
1/24	1200	RGE	1300	NA	0.5.0	246.7	C.E.	40		_	ć	765			<i>.</i>										1.5	2.2	
6, /28,	1200	200	1700			240,1	-85-	-40 -	thunder-		-0-		CHOODY	1-2	- <del>2</del> 1	4/	64	3700	2-	101.2	<u> 4, </u>	89.9	5.9	17.3	9.7	0.7	
15,		RGE	1300	., .	0.2.0	240.0	80	- 01		-0		00	CUODDA	1-3		48	65	3500	,5	229,1	13,8	149.3	<u>19.6</u>	0		L{	
84 11	11200	RGE	1300		DE.C.	246.6	81	58	clear clear 20 mi	_ <u>4</u> _	_6	351		<u>.0-1.</u>	69	_68	.84	3200	.5	127.5	3.8	129.8	5.9		9.6	15.3_	
- <u>771</u> 1/20	1300	RGE	1300	NA	D.E.C.	246.2	69	44	visibility	4	6	65	swells	2-3	70	67	83	3300	_5_	100.3	3.3	35.1	5.5	33.2	<u>B</u> 2	•	
<sup>13</sup> / <sub>71</sub>	1200	RGE	1300	NA_	D.E.C	245.9	-66	52	12 mi. visibility		_10_	60	choppy	1-3	63	61.5	77.5	2400	,5	63	2.5	76.0	5.0	54.0	7.5	8.5	
27	1100	RGE	1300	NA	D,E,C	245.1	65	66	clear	3	_14	140		1-2	45	43	60	2700	.5	77	2.8	30	5.7	25.4	8.1	14.0	
" <sup>א</sup> יידי	1200	RGE	1300	NA	D,E.C.	244.9	36	52	clear	6	9	323	choppy_	2-3	50	50	67	1660	.5	50.0	2.8	15.0	5.6	12.0	8.5	1,0	

Table 1.4-10 (continued) Ginna Station Triaxial Surveys

		GEI	LERAJ	DAT	A				MET	EORO	LOGI	CAL D	ATA							SURV	EY/	DA" A					
	' I	/ /	' /		_	/ /			Sky	Condit	ions	wi	d Lake	Cond	itions	Ter	n pera	tures		7		Inr	• Dat	a .301	Δ)		
	Tume		M Study A Plant : .oad		<b>Becirculatio</b> Reviewing	Take Lake	o Lievalion Temperature	a Air Belative	Humidity Description	Covers (tenths)	mph	Direction	Neecription	Heig't	Surface	Intake	e Wal	er Plume Range	T Depth	l.eve		l.evi	1 2 Habit	Y Lev	·1 3	evel Acre	
<sup>12</sup> / <sup>1</sup> / <sub>71</sub>	1100	RGE	1300	NA	D.E.C.	244,9	22	<u>B1</u>	cloudy	9	7	338	choppy	2-3	41	44	60	3220	.5	71.0	3.2	68.0	6.0	47.0	88	10.0	ĺ
×30	1100	RGE	1290	Yes	DE,C.	246,1	39	65	_cloudy_	9	3	25	swells	.5-1	34	335	54.5	3420	.5	192.0	3.2	200.0	6.0	200.0	8.8	208.0	
13772	1200	RGE	1310	yes	D E.C.	246.2	61	87	cloudy	9	_15	240	choppy	1-3	38	38	56	1840	.5	47.7	3.2	67.2	6.0	59.4	8.8	52.1	
1/9 1/2 B	1100	RGE	1260	NA	D E.C.	247.9	75	63	cloudy	7	5	318	swells	.5-1	73	68	86	2710	.5	35.5	3.2	13.0	6.0	0	8.8	0	
<sup>7</sup> 39 72	1100	RGE	12.60	NA	0,E.C.	247.1	75	45	clear	2	4	205		1-2	73	70	86	3320	.5	54.5	3.2	17.2	6.0	42.0	8.0	1.0	
2277	1200	RGE	1180.	NA	D.E.C.	245.B	27	_78	cloudy	_9	_6	022	Choppy	1-2	43	42	57	3060	.5_	53.8	3.2	44.0	6.0	42,0	8.8	1.0	
16 773	1100	RGE	1260	NA	D.E.C.	248.9	75	27	clear	7	13_	212	choppy	1-2	42	40	59	3420	,5	73.1	2.3	53,7	4.5	46.6	6.7	п.1	
744/73	1100	RGE	1265	NA	D.E.C.	249.2	51	96	overcast 4 mi	10	3_	050	choppy	0-1	49	45	63	2350	.5	29.0	2.7	19.0	4.6	6.0	7.4	2.0	
720, 7,73	1200	RGE	1265	NA	D,E,Ç.	249.0	77	42	visibility hazy	10	3	310	choppy	0-1	70	70	88	3200	.5	107.4	3.4	26.4	5.1	23.4	8.5	3,9	
18, 18, 73	1100	RGE	1449	NA	DE.C.	248.5	81	88	visibility clear	Q	7	050	choppy	0-1	70	70	88	3200	.5	137.8	2.3	90,7	, 4,6	27.8	7.9	0	
16, 173 9(-	1200	RGE	1379	NA	D.E.C.	247.6	74	88	clear	_1	15	015	choppy	1-3	74	71	89	1700	_,5	30.8	2.5	3.3	5,1	4,6	8.4	0	ļ
19/ 73	1400	RGE	1376	NA	<u>d E.C.</u>	2 <u>46.9</u>	68	60	clear	2	10	060	choppy	1-2	72	71	88	3200	.5	61.8	2,4	10.1	4.8	·3.0	7.9	0	I
1/273	1400	RGE	1387	NA	DE.C.	246.8	68	55	clear	3	8	170	choppy	i-2	56	55	73	2700	.5	36.9	25	19,6	4.9	13.0	8.3	0	
1-3/3 1-2/5	1200	RGE	<u>1375</u>	NA	D.E.C.	245,3	54	70	overcast	10	9	240	şwells	1-2	45	46	62	2500	.5	53.5	1.8	30.5	3.4	47.0	6.1		
1 73 5	1 <u>500</u>	RGE	1375	NA	D.E C	245.5	60	88	overcast clear	10	16	180	choppy	1-2	44	45	62,5	3400	.5	93.8	1.8	97,7	3.8	48.7	6,1		
174	1000	RGE	022	NA	D.E.C.	248.7	56	70	puits	4	_6	100	swells	0-1	44	43.5	51.5	4500	.5	141.2	2.6	123.4	5.2	120.4	8.7	3.5	

,

.

# Ginna Station Triaxial Surveys

4

.

	L	GE	ERA	DAT	A				MET	EORO	LOGI	CALT	DATA							eucu							
									Sky	Condit	ions	WI	nd I.ake	Cond	tions	Ter	perat	ures		7	<i>r.</i> Y 1		12-14	101			
/		· /		/	b /	` <b>、</b> /	ម		À / .	7	- 1	7	mag.	7		lak	e Wat	er /	<u> </u>	<u> </u>		7	1740	1 · 307	<u> </u>		
	· /.	. /				ų / :			non l		_ / _	. /	N / 5		- <b> </b> -		7		0/	7				/ : e	$\frac{13}{1}$	evel	<b>└</b> ┛
	/		ý/ S		ũ/ 2		2 4	\$/			/ 3	/s	, iii	/	1.	. /	/ ÿ	, / ,	·~ /		- /				- /		
1	5/ F	:/ .	ಕ/ ಕೃ			7.	ā/ ģ	7 \$	27		/ 🖗	<b>}/</b> ĕ	/ 1		j j	. / .		/	5.	1.	1.		1.	1		1	/
/	/	/	/ 1	/	9 5	/ *	/ Ē		/ č	/ š 5	/	/ Ľ				1 3	/ 1	/ 18 1	14	/ 2	/ 1	/ 5		/ 5	/ #	/ 2	/
ļ			MWT		<u> </u>		0 F. H	7.		0 =	mph	Def	(	۱ <u>۶</u> .	S <sup>L</sup>	1.5	<sup>6</sup> - <sup>6</sup>		( Å	[ ~	(ĕ	<u>ج</u>		(, <sup>z</sup>	(ă	[ ~ ]	
6/28	1		]						cirrus					1			<u>+</u>	1	1	Acres	<u> </u>	Acres	1 .	Actes	111	Acres	
774	1200	RGE	10 60	NA	DE.C	2486	60	90	cumulus		10	80	choony	12	A 0	50	076	1.000						Í			
1/20,									strato-		<u> </u>	<u></u>		<u>  -                                   </u>	-40	1 30	103.3	12200	1.3	82.4	12.7	24.9	4.9	7.0	17.9		
174	1100	RGE	1076	NA	DE.C.	248.3	70	80	cumulus	7	5	240		0.6					-								
9/16.									cirrus			240	l cuim	105	-68	6/	82	12800	[. <u>)</u>	90.2	4.1	15.3	8.1	<u> </u>	<b>.</b>		
-7 <sub>74</sub>	1200	RGE	1390	NΔ	DE.C.	246.3	66	60		2	7	250	ave lla							1			1		1		
10/2	·			r a	T and				CITTUS	- <u>-</u>		250	swells	1-2	62	61	79	2500	.5	100.2	2.8	14.8	<u> 5.7</u>	46	8,5	Q	
- 27	100	RGE	1385	NA	DE.C.	245.6	52	88	stratus	,	10	1		1								1					
ξ,				<u> </u>	1				20mi		10	1300	<u>choppy</u>	1-3	45	45	63	2500	.5	62.6	2,8	40.2	5.3	34.9	7.8	0	
775	1200	RGE	1362	NA	DE.C.	247.1	60	79	visibility			075		1.					I								
ž					†				CIFFUS			0/5	<u>cnoppy</u>	10-1	59	59	76	3200	.5	116.2	2.8	64.0	5.5	69.4	8.3	0	
1775	1000	RGE	1504	NA	DEC	2460	67	60	hazy		_			1					1			!	İ I				
ey -			1004		102.0.	2400	-01	69	2mi VISID.		7	190	swells	0-5	_61	43,5	63,6	3900	_5_	0	1.8	0	5.2	0	7.5	0	
14,	1100	DOC	1612						visibility					1													
5/	100	<u>nyc</u>	1312	NA	UE,C,	246,5	78	100	hazy	10	6	165	choppy	1-2	76	75.5	95	3500	.5	235.2	2.3	90.3	4.8	12.8	7.1	0	
14/70	1200	RGE		N A	0				10mi.																		
10/	1200		1218	NA	0.2.0	2458	74	_70_	VISIDINITY	_4	12	195	choppy	1-2	60	62,3	82	4200	.5	120.0	2.7	85.8	5.4	14.1	80	0	
2/2	1200	RCE	1510	N A	050				cumulus					1													
5,	1200	NUL	1210	NA .	D.E.C.	243.5	57	83	IOmi, visib.	_6	_!!	255	choppy	1-3	50	49.9	69.8	2200	.5	63,7	2.9	71.0	5.5	34.5	81		
124									cumulus																	<u> </u>	
	1200	RĢE	1520	NA	D.E.C	248.7	50	91	<u>20mi visib</u>	10	6	360	swells	,5-1	53	48	67,5	4700	.5	90.5	22	10.3	4 2	12 4	56		
10,									cumulus hazy																<b>.</b>	<b>-</b> ¥ <b>-</b> -{	
<u>_/76</u>	1200	RGE	1515	NA	D.E.C.	<u>248,6</u>	80	61	5mi.visib.	5	10	270	choppy-cam	0-1	60	52	72	4000	.5	176.0	22	38.0	<u>.</u>	17 5	5.5		
16									puffs												<u></u>			<u>_17.5_</u>	5.5		
<u>776</u>	1200	RGE	1517	NA	0.E.C	<u>248,</u> 4	73	88	visibility.	0	4	90	calm-smooth	0	62	60.7	80	3700	.5	209.7	1.9	84.3	3.6	11.9	4 8		
13,									CITTUS															111.0	1.0	<u> </u>	
/76	1200	RGE	784	NA		2469	73	61	visibility	4	9	245	choppy	.5'-1'	63	64	75	3200	.5	132.2	2.1	117 1	3.0	38.0	5 2		
3.									stratus 15 mi.	T	T	•											<del></del>	30.3	5.6	<u></u>	
-776	1100	RGE	1447	NA	D.E.C	246.4	63	60	visibility		17	270	swells	1-2'	58	57	76	3100	6		<u>,</u>	07.0	<u> </u>				
12			T						strato-					- <u>`-</u> ¥		<u> </u>		5100	-0	100.1	<u> </u>	03.0	<u>.9</u>	(3.8	6.1	31.8	
3/76	1200	RGE	1512	NA	DEC	2450	40	64	Cumulus 15mi vielb	<u>а</u>		250	a alaa	0_ E	<u>,</u> ,	<u> </u>	<u>_</u>					1	ł				
							<u> </u>			<del></del> +		200	sgim-swells	05	43	41	67	4800	.5	180.2	2.5	154.3	4.1	136.6	5.5	10.4	
							1	1			1							1				[	- 1			1	
		_																			- F				1		



**DISCHARGE PLUME** 

.....



FIGURE 1.4-2 COMPARISON OF POSSIBLE FROUDE NUMBER FUNCTIONAL FORMS





FIGURE 1.4–3 COMPARISON OF HYPOTHESIZED RELATION BETWEEN T AND X WITH VALUES DETERMINED AT GINNA



.

FIGURE 1.4-4



FIGURE 1.4–5 RANGE OF GINNA THERMAL SURVEY DENSIMETRIC FROUDE NUMBERS AND LAKE ELEVATIONS



DIMENSIONLESS CENTERLINE DISTANCE, s/va/2

FIGURE 1.4–6 DIMENSIONLESS CENTERLINE TEMPERATURE EXCESS AND HALF WIDTH MEASURED ON 9/25/70 AT THE LAKE SURFACE



FIGURE 1.4-7 DIMENSIONLESS CENTERLINE TEMPERATURE EXCESS AND HALF WIDTH MEASURED ON 10/27/71 AT THE LAKE SURFACE



FIGURE 1.4–8 DIMENSIONLESS CENTERLINE TEMPERATURE EXCESS AND HALF WIDTH MEASURED ON 5/1/70 AT SIX FOOT DEPTH


DIMENSIONLESS CENTERLINE DISTANCE, \$/ Ja/2

FIGURE 1.4–9 DIMENSIONLESS CENTERLINE TEMPERATURE EXCESS AND HALF WIDTH MEASURED ON 10/1/73 AT SIX FOOT DEPTH



SURFACE

١





FIGURE 1.4–12 DIMENSIONLESS PLUME HALF WIDTH – SURFACE

ì



FIGURE 1.4-13 DIMENSIONLESS PLUME HALF WIDTH - SIX FOOT DEPTH



FIGURE 1.4-14 LATERAL TEMPERATURE DISTRIBUTION



FIGURE 1.4-15 VARIATION OF DENSIMETRIC FROUDE NUMBER (F) WITH LAKE CONDITIONS FOR THE GINNA DISCHARGE



FIGURE 1.4-16 LINEAR SCALE FACTOR VS. LAKE ELEVATION



FIGURE 1.4-17 DIMENSIONLESS CENTERLINE TEMPERATURE EXCESS AND HALF WIDTH MEASURED ON 9/11/75 AT THE LAKE SURFACE



FIGURE 1.4-18 DIMENSIONLESS CENTERLINE TEMPERATURE EXCESS AND HALF WIDTH MEASURED ON 9/11/75 AT SIX FOOT DEPTH



FIGURE 1.4-19 DIMENSIONLESS CENTERLINE TEMPERATURE EXCESS AND HALF WIDTH MEASURED ON 10/21/75 AT THE LAKE SURFACE



FIGURE 1.4-20 DIMENSIONLESS CENTERLINE TEMPERATURE EXCESS AND HALF WIDTH MEASURED ON 10/21/75 AT SIX FOOT DEPTH



FIGURE 1.4-21 DIMENSIONLESS CENTERLINE TEMPERATURE EXCESS AND HALF WIDTH MEASURED ON 5/24/76 AT THE LAKE SURFACE



FIGURE 1.4-22 DIMENSIONLESS CENTERLINE TEMPERATURE EXCESS AND HALF WIDTH MEASURED ON 6/10/76 AT THE LAKE SURFACE



FIGURE 1.4-23 DIMENSIONLESS CENTERLINE TEMPERATURE EXCESS AND HALF WIDTH MEASURED ON 7/6/76 AT THE LAKE SURFACE



FIGURE 1.4-24 DIMENSIONLESS CENTERLINE TEMPERATURE EXCESS AND HALF WIDTH MEASURED ON 9/13/76 AT THE LAKE SURFACE



FIGURE 1.4-25 DIMENSIONLESS CENTERLINE TEMPERATURE EXCESS AND HALF WIDTH MEASURED ON 9/29/76 AT THE LAKE SURFACE



FIGURE 1.4-26 DIMENSIONLESS CENTERLINE TEMPERATURE EXCESS AND HALF WIDTH MEASURED ON 11/5/76 AT THE LAKE SURFACE



FIGURE 1.4-27 DISCHARGE VELOCITY vs. LAKE ELEVATION

DISCHARGE VELOCITY - FPS



FIGURE 1.4-28 DISCHARGE FLOW RATES DURING RECIRCULATION MODE



FIGURE 1.4-29 LAKE SURFACE ISOTHERMS - EXPECTED SPRING CONDITIONS

2



FIGURE 1.4-30 SIX FOOT DEPTH ISOTHERMS - EXPECTED SPRING CONDITIONS



FIGURE 1.4-31 LAKE SURFACE ISOTHERMS - EXPECTED SUMMER CONDITIONS



SIX FOOT DEPTH ISOTHERMS - EXPECTED SUMMER CONDITIONS



FIGURE 1.4-33 LAKE SURFACE ISOTHERMS - EXPECTED FALL CONDITIONS



FIGURE 1.4-34 SIX FOOT DEPTH ISOTHERMS - EXPECTED FALL CONDITIONS



FIGURE 1.4-35 LAKE SURFACE ISOTHERMS - EXTREME SPRING CONDITIONS



FIGURE 1.4-36 SIX FOOT DEPTH ISOTHERMS - EXTREME SPRING CONDITIONS



LAKE SURFACE ISOTHERMS - EXTREME SUMMER CONDITIONS



FIGURE 1.4-38 SIX FOOT DEPTH ISOTHERMS - EXTREME SUMMER CONDITIONS



FIGURE 1.4-39 LAKE SURFACE ISOTHERMS - EXTREME FALL CONDITIONS



FIGURE 1.4-40 SIX FOOT DEPTH ISOTHERMS - EXTREME FALL CONDITIONS



ISOTHERM AREAS ALONG LAKE SURFACE - EXPECTED SEASONAL CONDITIONS



FIGURE 1.4-42 ISOTHERM AREAS AT SIX FOOT DEPTH - EXPECTED SEASONAL CONDITIONS

--



FIGURE 1.4-43 ISOTHERM AREAS ALONG LAKE SURFACE - EXTREME SEASONAL CONDITIONS



FIGURE 1.4-44 ISOTHERM AREAS AT SIX FOOT DEPTH - EXTREME SEASONAL CONDITIONS

۰.


FIGURE 1.4-45 ISOTHERMAL LAKE BOTTOM AREAS EXPECTED AND EXTREME SEASONAL CONDITIONS



FIGURE 1.4-46 EXPECTED AND EXTREME SEASONAL ISOTHERM VOLUMES



FIGURE 1.4-47 TIME - TEMPERATURE DECAY, EXPECTED SPRING CONDITIONS



FIGURE 1.4-48 TIME - TEMPERATURE DECAY, EXPECTED SUMMER CONDITIONS



FIGURE 1.4-49 TIME - TEMPERATURE DECAY, EXPECTED FALL CONDITIONS



FIGURE 1.4-50 TIME - TEMPERATURE DECAY, EXTREME SPRING CONDITIONS



FIGURE 1.4-51 TIME - TEMPERATURE DECAY, EXTREME SUMMER CONDITIONS



FIGURE 1.4-52 TIME - TEMPERATURE DECAY, EXTREME FALL CONDITIONS



FIGURE 1.4-53 EXPECTED SPRING PLUME TRAJECTORIES



FIGURE 1.4-54 EXPECTED SUMMER PLUME TRAJECTORIES



FIGURE 1.4-55 EXPECTED FALL PLUME TRAJECTORIES





EXTREME SUMMER PLUME TRAJECTORIES



FIGURE 1.4-58 EXTREME FALL PLUME TRAJECTORIES





EXPECTED 3°F SURFACE ISOTHERM AREAS



FIGURE 1.4-61 EXPECTED 5°F SURFACE ISOTHERM AREAS



FIGURE 1.4-62 EXPECTED 10°F SURFACE ISOTHERM AREAS

-----



FIGURE 1.4-63 EXPECTED 2°F SIX FOOT DEPTH ISOTHERM AREAS



FIGURE 1.4-64 EXPECTED 3°F SIX FOOT DEPTH ISOTHERM AREAS



FIGURE 1.4-65 EXPECTED 5°F SIX FOOT DEPTH ISOTHERM AREAS



FIGURE 1.4-66 EXPECTED 10°F SIX FOOT DEPTH ISOTHERM AREAS



FIGURE 1.4-67 AVERAGE AND MAXIMUM ISOTHERMAL LAKE BOTTOM AREAS -  $T_a = 40^{\circ}F$ 



AVERAGE AND MAXIMUM ISOTHERMAL LAKE BOTTOM AREAS -  $T_a = 60^{\circ} F$ 



AVERAGE AND MAXIMUM ISOTHERMAL LAKE BOTTOM AREAS - T = 80°F



FIGURE 1.4-70 WORST CASE 2°F SURFACE ISOTHERM AREAS



FIGURE 1.4-71 WORST CASE 3°F SURFACE ISOTHERM AREAS



FIGURE 1.4-72 WORST CASE 5°F SURFACE ISOTHERM AREAS



FIGURE 1.4-73 WORST CASE 10°F SURFACE ISOTHERM AREAS



FIGURE 1.4-74 WORST CASE 2°F SIX FOOT DEPTH ISOTHERM AREAS



FIGURE 1.4-75 WORST CASE 3°F SIX FOOT DEPTH ISOTHERM AREAS



FIGURE 1.4-76 WORST CASE 5°F SIX FOOT DEPTH ISOTHERM AREAS



FIGURE 1.4-77 WORST CASE 10°F SIX FOOT DEPTH ISOTHERM AREAS

AREA - ACRES



• .

FIGURE 1.4-78 TIME - TEMPERATURE DECAY, E= 244 FT USGS



FIGURE 1.4-79 TIME - TEMPERATURE DECAY, E=246 FT USGS



FIGURE 1.4-80 TIME - TEMPERATURE DECAY, E=248 FT USGS




#### 1.5 DEFINITION OF DISCHARGE ZONE AND MIXING ZONE

Federal and State legislation require that thermal discharges assure the protection and propagation of a balanced indigenous population of shellfish, fish and wildlife in the receiving water body. The applicant has utilized segmental impact zones to the 3°F isotherm as a basis for the areal assessment of any thermal impacts upon the aquatic ecosystem.

The zones of impact are classified as a DISCHARGE ZONE and a MIXING ZONE. The discharge zone represents a conservative description of the expected seasonal plumes and consequently warrants <u>quantitative</u> evaluation of aquatic ecosystem impacts due to its high frequency of occurrence. The mixing zone on the other hand will be addressed on a <u>qualitative</u> basis due to its low probability of occurrence. It should be noted that the zones of impact defined herein significantly exceed the areal dimensions of the expected and extreme thermal plumes of the Ginna discharge.

The DISCHARGE ZONE for an expected 3°F surface isotherm consists of a circular segment with a radius of 3374 feet which covers an included angle of 75.94 degrees at the discharge location and contains a surface area of approximately 175.7 acres. The MIXING ZONE for an extreme 3°F surface isotherm consists of a circular segment with a radius of 8316 feet which covers an included angle of 99.51 degrees at the discharge location and contains a surface area of approximately 1384.7 acres.

Thermal plumes for the Ginna discharge during normal (expected) and extreme (worst case) seasonal conditions are illustrated in Figures 1.4-29 through 40. An evaluation of these figures demonstrates the spring plumes to be the largest in almost all instances with regard to lake penetration, plume width and area. No isothermal maps were drawn for the winter season as explained in section The impact zones were developed by taking the expected 1.4.2.5.1.1. (discharge zone) and extreme (mixing zone) spring plumes and enveloping their possible orientations for lake currents up to 0.5 fps in either alongshore direction. A sector of a circle was used as the impact zone shape. Plume trajectories were calculated by the methods given in Section 1.4.2.3.2. Figures 1.5-1 and 2 show the development of the 3°F lake surface discharge and mixing zone. Impact zones were similarly developed for excess temperatures up to 19°F for the surface, six foot depth, and lake bottom (discharge zone only). These are illustrated in Figures 1.5-3 through 7. Numerical information on the isothermal impact zones are given in Tables 1.5-1 and 2. Figures 1.5-8 and 9 illustrate the comparative sizes of the expected spring 3°F isotherm, the 3°F discharge zone, and the 3°F mixing zone for the lake surface and six foot depth, respectively. Table 1.5-3 provides a ratio of the seasonal thermal plumes to the discharge and mixing zone.

A current greater than 0.5 fps will occur approximately 5 percent of the time. The expected plumes are defined such that, given a set of ambient conditions, 50% of the time the plume will be smaller than the expected plume. Therefore, the 3°F isotherm can be expected to lie somewhere within the discharge zone approximately 50% of the time, exclusive of winter conditions. The extreme plume is defined such that, given a set of ambient conditions, 97.5% of the time the plume will be smaller than the extreme plume. The probability of the simultaneous occurrence of the worst case plume with extreme ambient conditions is very low, probably less than 1%, exclusive of winter months.

# TABLE 1.5-1

GINNA DISCHARGE ZUNES

	ат тн	E SUR	FACE	AT 6 F	F () () T	DEPTH		1 E B O	TTDH
EXCESS TEMP (Deg F)	INCLUMEN ANGLE (DEGHEES)	I THEAR EXTENT (FEET)	AFEA (ACRE5)	TNCLUDED ANGLE (DEGREES)	LINFAR Extfnt (FEET)	AREA (ACRES)	INCLHDED ANGLL (DEGREES)	LINFAR Extent (FFFT)	AREA (ACHES)
2	A2,22	3747	233.9	63,01	2642	- 89.5	48,86	1091	12.1
3	75:04	3374	175.7	57.17	2357	64.9	44.30	1029	10,7
4	70,84	3038	133.2	52.48	2102	47.6	47,34	965	9,3
5	66.01	2736	101.6	48.49	1875	35,2	45,76	902	7,9
6	62.44	2463	77.8	44,95	1672	26.1	43,42	838	6,5
• 7	58,79	2218	59.7	41.76	1491	19,4	39,80	775	5.1
8	55, 39	1997	45.8	38+85	1330	14.5			
9	52.19	1798	, 35+5	36417	1186	10.9			
10	49,15	1619	27.1	33:69	1058	6,2			
11	46,25	1458	20.9	31,40	944	6.1			
12	43.49	1313	15.1	29,25	842	4.6			
13	40.84	1142	12.4	27,22	751	3,5			
14	38.30	1064	9.6	25.29	670	2.7			
15	35.72	958	7.4	25.47	597	2.0			
16	32.99	863	5.6	21.75	533	1.5			
17	50,01	717	4.3	20.12	475	1.2			
18	26,61	700	3,2	18.49	424	۰,9			
19	22.34	n30	2.3	16,48	378	.7			

.

# TABLE 1.5-2

٩

.

#### GINNA MIXING ZONES

•

.

.

•

•

•

	АТ ТН	E SUI	RFACE	AT 6 F	0 O T	ОЕРТН
EXCESS Temp (UEG F)	INCLUDED ANGLE (DEGREES)	LINEAR EATENT (FEET)	AREA (ACHES)	INCLUDED ANGLE (DEGHEES)	LINEAR FXTENT (FEET)	AREA (ACRES)
2	105.03	9235	1801.2	100+27	409Z	· 338.6
3	99+51	8316	1384.7	97•43	3650	251.4
4	94+92	7488	1071.8	87•6R	3255	188.1
5	90.86	6742	832.7	87.57	2904	141.2
6	87.13	6071	648.1	77.87	2590	106.2
7	83-61	5460	505.0	73.47	2310	80.0
8,	80.24	4922	393.5	69+32	2060	60.3
9	76.96	4432	306.5	65+35	1838	45.4
10	73+71	3990	238.6	61+56	1639	34.2
11	70.48	3233	185.4	57•91	1462	25.8
12	67.22	3235	143.8	54.42	1304	19.4
13	63.89	2913	111.2	51.07	1163	14.6
14	60.44	2623	85.7	47.86	1037	11.0
15	56.82	2362	65.7	44.80	925	8.3
16	52.94	2127	49.4	41.89	825	6.3
17	48.67	1915	37.6	34.88	736	4.7
18	43.74	1724	27.7	35.45	656	3.5
19	37.49	1552	19.6	31.13	585	2.6

•

### TABLE 1.5-3

### RATIOS OF SEASONAL THERMAL PLUMES TO THE GINNA ZONES OF IMPACT

GINNA	IMPACT ZONES		Ratio of 3°F Area to				
	Zone	Depth (Ft)	(Spring,	Zone An Summer,	rea Fall,	Winter)	
	 Discharge	0.5	.49	.50	.36	.44	
	Discharge	6.0	.49	.41	.46	.57	
	Discharge	Bottom	.52	.43	.49		
	Mixing	0.5	.33	.28	.19	.29	
	Mixing	6.0	.53	.47	.44	.63	

.

-

.



FIGURE 1.5-1 3°F DISCHARGE ZONE DEVELOPMENT-LAKE SURFACE

5



FIGURE 1.5-2 3°F MIXING ZONE DEVELOPMENT-LAKE SURFACE



FIGURE 1.5-3 ISOTHERMAL DISCHARGE ZONES- LAKE SURFACE

.



FIGURE 1.5-4 ISOTHERMAL DISCHARGE ZONES-SIX FOOT DEPTH



FIGURE 1.5-5 ISOTHERNAL DISCHARGE ZONES-LAKE BOTTOM



FIGURE 1.5-6 ISOTHERMAL MIXING ZONES-LAKE SURFACE

1



FIGURE 1.5-7 ISOTHERMAL MIXING ZONES-SIX FOOT DEPTH



6000 ł 4000 .: : 1 ! ; 2000 0 2000 2000 DISTANCE FROM DISCHARGE FROM DISCH i i i DISCHARCE ZONE : :. ZONE DNIXIN -÷ ; -----• : : : ; : i 4000 •• • : : t • : ! . : i Í 1 6000 : t • • ۱ i :.

FIGURE 1.5-9

3°F SIX FOOT DEPTH INPACT ZONES WITH EXPLICITED 3°F SPRING ISOTHERM

#### TABLE OF CONTENTS

CHAPTER 2: REPRESENTATIVE IMPORTANT SPECIES DETERMINATIONS

Section					Page
2.1	IDENTIFICATION, RATIONALE	RELATED	CORRESPONDENCE	AND	.2.0-1
APPENI	DIX 2A				2A-1